
NOTICE OF REGULAR MEETING

COMMON COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF COOLIDGE

MONDAY JUNE 27 2011 700 PM

COUNCIL CHAMBERS 911 S ARIZONA BOULEVARD

PINAL COUNTY COOLIDGE ARIZONA

Members of tlle Ciry of Coolidge City Counci wil attend either in person or by telepone
conference ca or video communication

CALL TO ORDER

1 Pledge of Allegiance
2 Roll Call

PRESENTATIONS

3 Monthly report by the Coolidge Youth Coalition

CALL TO THE PUBLIC

THE PROCEDURFS TO FOLLOW IF YOU ADDRESS THE COUNCLARE COUNCIL REQUESTS
THAT YOU EXPRESS YOUR IDEAS IN FIVE MINUTES OR LESS AND REFRAIN FROM ANY

PERSONAL ATTACKS OR DEROGATORY STATEMENTS ABOUT ANY CITY EMPLOYEE A

FELLOW CITIZEN OR ANYONE ELSE WHETHER IN THE AUDIENCG OR NOT THE MAYOR

WILL LIMIT DISCUSSION WHENEVER HE DEEMS SUCH AN ACTION APPROPRIATE TO THE

PROPER CONDUCT OF fHE MEETING AT THE CONCLUSION OP AN OP6N CALL TO THE

PUBLIC INDIVIDUAL MEMBERS OF THE COUNCIL MAY RESPOND TO CRITICISM MADE BY

THOSE WHO HAVE ADDRESSGD THE COUNCIL MAY ASK STAFF TO REVIEW A MATTER OR

MAY ASK THAT A MATTER BE PUT ON A FUTURE AGLNDA HOWEVER MEMBGRS OF THE

COUNCIL SHALL NOT DISCUSS OR TAKE LEGAL ACTION ON ANY MA7TERS DURING AN

OPEN CALL TO THE PUBLIC UNLESS THE MATTERS ARE PROPERLY NOTICED FOR

DISCUSSION AND LEGAL ACTION

BUSINESS

CONSENT AGEDA AIL CONSETITEDIS YERE REVIEFDInDIVIDUALI ALL CONSFNTAGENDa ITE111S

DIAY RE ENACTED Bl ONE MO1IONaD APPROVED ANY IfEDt MAY BE REMOED FROi7t1E CONSET

AGFNDA AVD COSIUEREU SEPARATEII IFAIEh113ER OF171E COUNCIL SO REQUESCS CONSFTITE11S

ARE MARKED AYCPII AN 4STFRISR

4 Consider approval of minutes for the regular and special meetings held on

May 9 and the regular and special meetings held on May 23 20ll

Discussion and action

5 Resolution No ll23 A Resolution of the Mayor and City Council of

the City oY Coolidge Arizona authorizing the City of Coolidge by and

through the City of Coolidge Fire Department to apply for Proposition 202

Grant Funds from the TohonoOodham Nation Discussion and action

6 Resolution No 124 A Resolution of the Mayor and City Council of the

City of Coolidge Arizona approving submission of applications for grants
from the Gita River Indian Community to the Coolidge Police Department
for mobile police radios Discussion and action



7 Resolution No 1125 A Resolution of the Mayor and Council of the City
of Coolidge Arizona declaring as a public record that eertain document filed

with the Cify Clerk and entitled The 2010ll Amendments to the TaY Code

of the City of Coolidge Discussion and action

8 Ordinauce No 1107 An Ordinance of the City of Coolidge Arizona

relating to the Privilege License Tax adopfing The 20011 Amendments to

the Tax Code of the Ciry of Coolidge by reference establishing and

effective date providing for severability and providing penalties for

violations Discussion and action

9 Resolution No ll26 A Resolution of the City of Coolidge Arizona

supporting another possible alignment for the Planned NorthSouth Preeway
and discouraging the use of eminent domain by authorizing Density
Transfers for affected property owners dedicating land for the necessary

rightsofway Discussion and action

10 Resolution No ll27 A Resolution of the Mayor and City Council ofthe

City of Coolidge Arizona approving and adopting the Amendment to Pre

Annexation and Development Agreement between the City of Coolidge and

SAC II a Nevada Corporation a whollyowned subsidiary of Specialry
Trust Inc a Maryland Corporation successorininterest to Suggs Homes

Ioc and Arizona Corporation in compliance with ARS 950005
lliscussion and action

I 1 Resolution No 1128 A Resolution of the Mayor and City Council of the

Ciry of Coolidge Pinal County Arizona approving and adopting the Pre

Annexation and Development Agreement between the City of Coolidge and

DJ Point LLC an Arizona Limited Liability Company Coolidge Property

Investments LLC an Arizona Limited Liability Company Lateott LLC an

Arizona Limited Liability Company and Freds Place LLC an Arizona

Limited Liability Company in compliance with ARS950005 for a

development known as Attaway Ranch Dscussion and action

12 Ordinance No 1108 An Ordinance of the Mayor and City Council of the

Cify of Coolidge Arizona extending and increasing the corporate limits of

the City of Coolidge Pinal County State of Arizona pursuant to the

provisions of Title 9 Chapter 4 Article 7 Arizona Revised Statutes and

amendments thereto by annexing thereto certain territory contiguous to the

existing city limits of the City of Coolidge consisting of 2a0 acres more or

less and located in Sections 18 and 19 Township 6 South Range 9 East of

the Gila and Salt River Base and Meridian Pinal County Arizona known as

the Circle R III Anoexatiod Discussion and action

13 Consider approval of a Planned Area Development Conceptual Plan

submitted by DJ Point LLC Coolidge Property Investments LLC Lateott

LLC and Freds Place LLC for a development laiown as Attaway Ranch

North and South Discussion and action

14 Discussion on the intent to increase Recreation Fees for the Adult Sofrball

League and Booth Vendor Fees Discussion only



15 Consider approval Qf entering into a Strategic Alliance for Volume

Expenditures SAVG Cooperative Purchasing Agreement to allow for the

utilization of other agencies use of bids prepared for materials and services

Discussion and action

16 Consider approval of waiving the bid process on the Randolph Roadway
Asphalt Rubber Dust Palliative ARDP Improvement Project utilizing Pinal

Countys material bids work forces and equipment through the Strategic
Alliance for Volume xpenditures SAVE Cooperative Purchasing
Agreement in the best interest of the City Discussion and action

17 Consider approval of eontinuing negotiations with Pima Maricopa Irrigation
Project PMIP on Skousen Bridge Replacement in exchange Eor Signal Peak

Closure and applying for High f2isk Rural Road funds for the improvements
of the intersection on Skousen Road at SR 87 Diseussion and action

18 Resolution No ll29 A Resolution of the Mayor and Council of the City of

Coolidge Pinal County Arizona through the League of Arizona Cities and

Towns and its Municipal members to call upon the Arizona State Legislature
not to further reduce the Highway User Revenue fund allocations to Arizona

Cities and Towns Coolidge further advocates that the Arizona Legislature
develop a plan to at a minimum restore HURF Punding to Arizona Cities

and Towns to the Fiscal Year 2008 levels over the next 3 to 5 year period
Discussion and action

19 Consider approval of thc Letter of ngagement submitted by Colby
Powell PLC to perform the FY 10ll Audit Discussion and action

20 Consider approval of the Letter of Engagement submitted by Henry

Horne LLP for the prepazation of the financial statement for the FY 10ll

Comprehensive Annual Financial Report Audit Diseussion and action

21 Consider approval of a Fund Balance Policy necessary to comply with tbe

Govemmental Accounting Standards Board pronouncement refened to as

GASB 54 Discussion and action

22 Consider approval of the updates to the Capital Improvement Plan adopted
on July 31 2006 Discussion and action

REPORT FROM THE MAYORCOUNCIL ANllOR CITY MANAGER

ADJOURNMENT

THIS NOTICE IS POSTED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE CTY CODE 241 OE THE

CITY OF COOLIDGE AND ARS 38431 ET SEQ ALL MFMQERS OF THE PUBLIC

ARE 1NVITED TO ATTEND TNS MEETING

DATED this 22 day of June 201 I

Norma ORiz C Clerk



PERSONS WITH DLSABILITIES NEEDING REASONABLE ACCOMMODATIONS

IIYCLUDING LARGE PRINT MATERIALS OR iNTERPRETERS SHOULD CONiACT

THE ADA COORDINATOR AT 520 7235361 OR TllD LINE 520 7234653 NO LATER

THAN 1000 AM JUNE 27 2011

NOTICE TO PARENTS Parents and legal guardians have the right to consent before the

City of Coolidge makes a video or voice recording of a minor child ARS1602A9

Coolidge Council Meetings are recorded and may be viewed on Channel ll and the

Coolidge website If you permit your c6ild to participate in the Council Meeting a

recording will be made If your child is seated in the audience your child may be recorded

but you may request that your child be seated in a desiguated area to avoid recording
Please submit your request to the City Clerk at5207235361 Ext 6009

The Agenda and nll supportrng doeuments and nmerias pertaininK to thrs Agenda togeUer
witlt Stajj and Department Reports are nvuilable for viewing in City Ha nnd ee Li6ran

Jurirtg norma business hours

rosT L 1 l

TIME b o J1ti



Annual CYC CHS Safe Sober Grad Night Event

May 19 2011

8 Annual Coolidge Youth Coaiition Coolidge High School

Safe 8 Sober Grad Night Lockin Event 2011

Outcome and Needs Assessment Report

On May 19 Coolidge High School and the Coolidge Youth Coalition co hosted its eighth annual Grad

Night event at Bedroxx bowling in Tucson Students attending the event were asked to complete a

brief questionnaire assessing their opinions regarding underage drinking and drug use among their

peers They were also asked to rate the event

Demographics

Seventynine 79 out of one hundred and two 102 students completed the questionnaire Fifty

eight percent 58 of the attendees were seniors followed by sophomores 139 juniors 101
and freshmen25 The group was split evenly between males 507 and females 493
Students who selfidentified as LatinoHispanic represented the largest group 316fa foAowed by
CaucasianWhite228 African American 114 and Native American 101 The rest of the

students were Asian or of Mixed ethnicity

Satisfaction

100 percent of the students said yes when asked if they enjoyed the event

Perception of Underage Drinking

Ninety percent 90 of attendees stated that they feel that underage drinking is a problem in

Coolidge Over half of students indicated that underage drinking isamajor problem

Table 1 Students Perception of Underage Drinking

How much of a problem is underage
drinking

60
553

50

342

40

f

30

20
105

10

0

No Problem Somewhat of a problem Major Problem



Annual CYC CHS Safe Sober Grad Night Event

May 19 2011

Perception of Drug Use

Eightysix percent 86 of the students indicated that drug use is a problem among their peers

Table 1 Students Perception of Drug Use

How much of a problem is drug use
653

70

60

50

40

293

30
cds

is
20

53
10

tCt N a i

0

No Problem Somewhat of a problem Major Problem

Most Commonly Abused Drugs

According to these students the most commonly abused drug was marijuana followed by

prescription drugs spice and ecstasy

Comments about Prevention

The students were asked Who or what prevents you from drinking alcohol or taking drugs

The most common answer was My Family Some of the students were more specific such as my

mom my father my child and my fiance Other comments included myself my future the

church the Marine Corps God and activities

Some notable quotes included

I dont want to become at addict

All the messed up people I see in movies

Anyone who uses them looks dumb

I dont want to end up dead

Living life to the fullest and thinking positive

My parents are like GOD



Office Hours

May 9 2011

Page 1

530PM Office Hours with the Common Council of the

City of Coolidge was held at the Council

Chambers 911 S Arizona Boulevard

Coolidge Arizona Mayor Thomas Shope
called the session to order at 536 pm and

dispensed with the roll call Those present in

addition to Mayor Shope were

Councilmembers Steve Hudson Richard

Lister Les Curry Jon Thompson and Vice

Mayor Gilbert Lopez Councilmember Judy
RotzLopez was absent Also present were

City Manager Robert Flatley Acting City
Attorney Tina Vannucci City Clerk Norma

Ortiz and GM Director Alton Bruce

Discussion on the NorthSout Freeway GM Director Bruce advised Council of

Corridor Potential Alignments another possible alignment for the proposed
NorthSouth Freeway Corridor which requires
the Citys support by Resolution before

transmitting to the Arizona Department of

Transportation and the Federal Highway
Administration for their consideration There

was discussion

Ms Jordan Rose and Mr Chris Webb with

Rose Law Group gave a power point
presentation on the potential alignment with

the 1mile deviation from the corridor

alignments already proposed for Florence

Coolidge and Eloy stating this new potential
alignment better serves the needs of Coolidge
and requested CounciPs support There was

discussion

Mr Rick Miller Interim ED Director for the

City of Eloy Mr Nate Nathan with Nathan

Associates representing the City of Mesa Mr

Jess Knudson Deputy Town Manager with the

Town of Florence and Mr Doug Hansen
Pinal County Transportation Manager were all

present to comment on the potential alignment
being proposed There was discussion



Office Hours

May 9 2011

Page 2

ADJOURNMENT MOTION was made by Councilmember Lister

to adjourn the Office Hours at 642 pm

SECOND was made by Councilmember Vice

Mayor Lopez and passed unanimously

Mayor

I Norma Ortiz City Clerk for the City of Coolidge Pinal County Arizona do hereby certify that

the above is a true and correct copy of the minutes of the Office Hours with the Common

Council held on May 9 201 l I further certify the meeting was duly called and held

Norma ORiz City Clerk

The above and foregoing was acknowledged before me by Norma Ortiz who is the City Clerk

far the City of Coolidge Arizona

My Commission Expires Notary Public



Regular Meeting
May 9 2011

Page 1

700 PM A Regular Meeting of the Common Council of

the City of Coolidge was held in the Council

Chambers 911 S Arizona Boulevard Coolidge
Arizona Mayor Thomas Shope called the

meeting to order at 704 pm Those present in

addition to Mayor Shope were Councilmembers

Steve Hudson Richard Lister Les Curry Jon

Thompson and ViceMayor Gilbert Lopez
Councilmember Judy RotzLopez was absent

Also present were City Manager Robert Flatley
Acting Ciry Attorney Tina Vannucci and City
Clerk Norma Ortiz

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE The Pledge of Allegiance was led by Mayor

Shope

PRESENTATIONS

Recognition of Employces for thcir Years of HR Analyst Duran announced the ciry employees
Service with the City of Coolidge who were being recognized for 5 0 I 5 25 and

30 years of service with the City of Coolidge and

Mayor Shope and Council presented the awards

7here was discussion

Employee of he Quarter Richard Mayor Shope and Council congramlated
Petersen Firefighter Richard Petersen with the Coolidge

Fire Department for being selected as Employee
of the Quarter for January February and March
2011 There was discussion

0Minute Recess for Special Recognition Mayor Shope declared a 10minute recess at 715

pm for refreshments The meeting resumed at

725 pm

Monthly report and Business Spotlight Mr Gabe Garcia recognized Affinity Physical
Member recognitions by the Coolidge Therapy for being selected as Business

Chamber of Commerce Spotlight Member for April and recognized
State Fann Insurance and Coolidge Cleaners for

being selected as aBusiness Spotlight
Members for the mondi of May Mr Will

Humphries with Affinity Physical Therap Ms

Yolanda Manzanedo with State Farm Insurance
and Mr Jim Tyus wiLh Coolidge Cleaners were

all present to comment on their place of business

and to thank the community for their support and

to thank the Chamber for the recognition There

was discussion



Regular Meeting
May 9 20ll

Page 2

Ms Lynn Parsons and Mr Gabe Garcia then

gave the monthly Chamber report for the month

of April 201 I and advised of upcoming Chamber

events for the month of May There was

discussion

CALL TO THE PUBLIC There were no comments made by the public

BUSINESS

Consider approval of the minutes for the Consent tem

regular meeting held on March 28 the

regular and special meetings held on April
11 ad the regular and special meetings
held on April 25 2011

Ratification uf Municipal Property Consent tem

Corporation Officcrs for FY 1112

Considerreappointments to the Parks Council considered approval of Consent Items 6

Recreation Advisory Board through 8 Thcre was no discussion MOTION

was made by Councilmember Thompson to

approve Consent Items 6 through 8 as

presented SECOND was made by ViceMayor
Lopez and passed unanimously

Consider approval of awarding the bid to PR Director LaPaglia advised of the bid

either CoolImage Dance Gymnastics or process used to seek bids for lease of The Old

the Academy of Excellence to lease The Old Recreation Center stating tvo bids were

Recreation Center authorizing staff to received from CoolImage Dance Gymnastics

negotiate a Lease Agreement to bring back and the Academy of Excellence There was

to Council for approval much discussion MOTION was made by
Councilmember Curry to award the bid to Cool

Image Dance Gymnastics to lease The Old

Recreation Center authorizing staff to negotiate
a Lease Agreement to bring back to Council for

approvaL SECOND was made by
Councilmember Thompson and passed with five

5 YES votcs and one NO vote by Mayor
Shope

Presentation by the Coolidge Chamber of Mr Gabe Garcia Director with the Coolidge
Commerce on their Fiscal Year 20ll2012 Chamber of Commerce gave a short presentation
Budget Proposal on their proposed budget for FY 20112012

requesting 35000 from the City There was

discussion MOTION was made by ViceMayor
Lopez to accept the presentation by the Coolidge
Chamber of Commerce for their request of

35000 in funding for their Piscal Year 2011



Regular Meeting
May 9 20ll

Page 3

2012 Budget SECOND was made by
Councilmember Lister and passed unanimously

Resolution No 1112 A Resolution of the GM Director Bruce advised Council of

City of Coolidge Arizona supporting Resolution No 1112 which supports another

possible alignments for the planned North possible alignment for the proposed North

South Freeway and discouraging thc usc of South Freevay Corridor There was discussion

eminent domain by authorizing density MOT70N was made by ViceMayor Lopez to

transfers for affected properh owners adopt Resolution No 1112 A Resolution of the

dedicating land for the necessary rightsot City of Coolidge Arizona supporting possible
alignments for the planned NorthSouth Freeway
and discouraging the use of eminent domain by
authorizing densiry transfers for affected property
owners dedicating land for the necessary rights
ofwayiith Exhibit 1 showing that the northern

part of the alignment be established on Clemans

Road as shown by the yellow hash marks versus

Valley Farms Road and that the rest of the

alignment folloi the yello line that goes down

until it meets Eloy and within the Coolidae spear

of influence SECOND was made by
Councilmember Lister and passed unanimously
by roll call vote

To receive public commeuts on the City Manager Flatley advised Council of Judge

implementation of the Home Detention and Garcias absence due to illness Police Chief

Electronic Monitoring Program for the Brugman commented on theIIome Detention and

Coolidge CiTy Court Electronic Monitoring Program which would

assist the CiCy CouR in a cost savings if

implemented Mayor Shope inquired about the

deCendant not having money to do this program

Chief Brugman advised that the defendant would

have to go through the company vho would then

determine the fees for each individual

Councilmember Hudson inquired if this pronam

was for DUI offenders only Chief Brugman
advised that it could possibly be but not sure

Councimember Hudson then inquired about

child predators City Manager Flatley stafed he

thinks it will also cover domestic violence but
not sure about child predators Councilmember

Thompson commented on Pinal County using the

same type of program for DUI offenders
domestic violence and sex offenders stating he

doubts that the City will use it for any other

offenses but that it will mainly be used for DU

cases He also stated tlat the program is

beneficial as a cost savings to the Ciry and that

he supports the program Councilmember Cum



Regular Meeting
May 9 2011

Page 4

inquired about any costs to the City Chief

Brugman advised that the cost falls on the

offender Councihnember Thompson stated that

based on his own observation Hith the County
most individuals do come up with the money

Councilmember Curry then inquired about the

anticipated savings over the years Chief

Brugman stated he was not able to say at this

time because of not having accurate numbers

City Manager Flatley then advised that an

individual who signs up for the program will be

allowed to leave for outside employment with

permission There being no further comments

made by the public or Council Mayor Shope
closed the public hearing at 840 pm

Resolution No 1113 A Resolution of the Council considered adoption of Resolution No

Mayor and City Council of the City of 1113 which declares the Home Detention and

Coolidge Arizona declaring as a public Glectronic Monitoring Program as a public
record that certaiu document filed with the record There was no discussion MOTION was

City Clerk and entitled Home Dctention made by ViceMayor Lopez to adopt Resolution

and Electronic Monitoring Program No 1113 A Resolution of the Mayor and City
Council of the City of Coolidge Arizona

declaring as a public record that certain

document filed vith the City Clerk and entitled

Home Detention and Electronic Monitoring
Program SECOND was made by
Councilmember Curry and passed unanimously
by roll call vote

Ordinance No ll03 An Ordinauce of the Council considered adoption of Ordinance No

Mayor and City Council of the City of I103 which adopts the Home Detention and

Coolidge Arizona adopting that certain Glectronic Monitoring Program for the City
document known as Home Detention and There was no discussion MOT70N was made

Electronic Manitoring Program by by Vicelvtayor Lopez to adopt Ordinance No

reference as Article 64 0 the Code of the 1103 An Ordinance of the Mayor and Ciry

City of Coolidge and providing for Council of the City of Coolidge Arizona

severability aud the effecNve date thereof adopting that certain document known as Home

Detention and Electronic Monitoring Program
by reference as Article 64 of the Code of the

City of Coolidge and providing for severability
and the effective date thereo SECOND was

made by Councilmember Thompson and passed

unanimously by roll call vote

Consider approval of entering into an PW Director Strublc advised Council of the

Intergovernmental Agreement between Intergovernmental Agreement with Pinal County
Pinal County and the City of Coolidge to for the roadway improvements to Attaway
define responsibilities for roadway Martin Road and Nafziger Roads There was



Regular Meeting
May 9 2011

Page 5

improvements to Attaway Road from discussion MOTION ias made by
Bartiett Road north to Starview Avenue Councilmember Thompson to approve of

Martin Raad from Attaway Road to entering into an Intergovernmental Agreement

Nafziger Road both lanes Martin Road behveen Pinal County and the Ciry of Coolidge
from Christensen Road east for to define responsibilities for roadway

approximately 2500 feet north lane only improvements to Attaway Road from Bartlett

Nafziger Road from Kenilworth Road south Road north to Starview Avenue Martin Road

for approximately 300 feet both lanes from Attaway Road to Nafziger Road both lanes
Martin Road from Christensen Road east for

approximately 2500 feet north lane only
Nafziger Road from Kenilworth Road south for

approximately 300 feet both lanes SECOND

was made by ViceMayor Lopez and passed
unanimously

Consider approval of lifting the hiring Transit Manager Hoffman advised Council of the

freeze to fill one 1 acant fulltime Transit need to lift the hiring freeze to fil one 1 vacant

Driver position for the Transit Department fulltime transit driver position due to a

resignation Thcre was discussion MOT70N

was made by Councihnember Lister to approve

of lifting the hiring freeze to fill one 1 vacant

fulltime Transit Drivcr position for the Transit

DepaRment SECOND was made by Vice

Mayor Lopez and passed unanimously

Consider approval of lifting the hiring Police Chief Brugman advised Council of the

freeze to fill one 1 vacant parttime need to lift the hiring freeze to fill one 1 vacant

Records Clerk position in the Police parttime records clerk position due to a

Department resignation There was discussioa MOTION

was made by ViceMayor Lopez to approve of

lifring the hiring eeze to fill one 1 vacant part
time Records Cierk position in the Police

Department SECOND was made by
Councilmember Thompson and passed
unanimously

Consider approal of the claims for the Council considered approval of the claims for the

month of April 2011 month of April 201 1 There was no discussion

MOTION vas made by Councilmember

Thompson to approve the claims for the month of

April 2011 SECOND was made by ViceMayor
Lopez and passed unanimously

REPORTS FROM THE MAYOR

COUNCIL ANDOR CITY MANAGER

Report from Mayor Mayor Shope reminded the public about Movie

in the Park on Friday May 3 at the San

Carlos Park commented on attending the ribbon



Regular Meeting
May 9 201

Page 6

cutting for TransCanada on May 4 and wished

the 8 grade promoters and High School

Graduates good luck on their upcoming
graduations

Reports from Council Councilmember Hudson commcnted on attending
the last Airport FlyIn on May 7 sWting this

event is a great asset for the Coolidge Airport and

that you get a great mcal for a great price

Councilmember Lister commented on attending
the TransCanada ribboircutting

Councilmember Thompson had nothing to report

Councilmember Curry also invited the public to

attend Movie in the Park and asked the public
to participate and attend the 1 Amateur Fight
Night at the Gallopin Goose on Saturday May
14 stating there are still tickets for sale and

asked the community to keep a Natch and report

anyone doing graffiti throughout the City

ViceMayor Lopez commented on attending the

dinner held by TransCanada that he will be

attending the Executive Committce Meeting
stating he ill update the City on the legislation
report that stopped a lot of powerful Bills fcom

going through

Report from City Manager City Manager Flatley recognized Jacque Hendrie

Henry for her 35 years of service to the Ciry and

advised that he and Councilmember Thompson
will be attending the CAAG Regional Meeting on

May 1 l in Marana that he will be attending the

CAREDF Meeting on May 12 in Casa Grande
the Pinal Partnership Qreakfast on Solar Energy
on May 20 at Gold Canyon and the Alliance of

Cities Meeting on May 20 in Casa Grande

ADJOURNMENT MOTION was made by Councilmember

Thompson to adjoum the meeting at 900 pm

SECOND was made by Councilmember Curry
and passed unanimously

Mayor



Regular Meeting
May 9 2011

Page 7

I Norma Ortiz City Clerk of the City of Coolidge Pinal County Arizona do hereby certify that the

above is a true and correct copy of thc minutes of the Regular Meeting of the Common Council held on

May 9 2011 I further certify the meeting was duly called ad held and that a quorum was present

Norma Ortiz City Clerk

The above and foregoing was acknoledged before me by Norma Ortiz who is the City Clerk for the

Ciry of Coolidge Arizona

My Commission expires Notary Public



Special Meeting
May 23 2011

Page 1

530 PM A Special Meeting with the Common Council of the

Ciry of Coolidge was held at the Council Chambers
911 S Arizona Boulevard Coolidge Arimna

Mayor Thomas Shope called the session to order at

536 pm and dispensed with the roll calL Those

present in addition to Mayor Shope were

Councilmembers Judy RotzLopez Steve Hudson
Richard Lister Les Curry Jon Thompson and Vice

Mayor GilbeR Lopez Also present were City
Manager Robert Flatley City Attorney Denis

Fitzgibbons City Clerk Norma Ortiz Finance

Director Lisa Pannella GM Director Alton Bruce

Suilding Official James Myers and Fire Chief

Mickey McHugh

DISCUSSION

Discuss Council interest on new Finace Director Pannella advised that this was

budget and revenue issues for Fiscal continued discussion on the new budget and revenue

Year 20112012 issues for FY 1112 Budget There was discussion

GM Director Bruce and Building Official Myers
presented their proposed budget for Animal Control

and the need to fill an Animal Control Officer

position for next fiscal year There Nas discussion

Fire Chief McHugh discussed the possibiliry of

offering Ciry Ambulance services for the

community There was discussion

Finance Director Pannella then briefed on the

updated changes to the FY 112 I3udget to include

restoring the 5 reduction in pay and doing away

with furloughs which would affect the maximum

accrual of 320 hours on vacation leave to add the

Longevity Program back in and the Smartworks

Program she then gave an update on the revenues to

date for FY 1011 and gave an update on the

projected revenues for FY 1112 There was

discussion

Finance Director Pannella then asked Council for

direction on continuing or doing away with

furloughs Council expressed their opinions and

directio was given to restore the 5 back and do

away with furloughs and to leave the maximum

accrual for vacation leave at 320 hours



Special Meeting
May 23 2011

Page 2

ADJOURNMENI MOTION was made by Councilmember Lister to

adjourn the special meeting at 751 pm SECOND

was made by ViceMayor Lopez and passed
unanimously

Mayor

1 Norma Ortiz Ciry Clerk of the Ciry of Coolidge Pinal Counry Arizona do hereby certify that the

above is a true and correct copy of the minutes of the Special Meeting with the Common Council

held on May 23 2011 I further certify the meeting was duly called and held

Norma Ortiz City Clerk

1he above and foregoing was acknowledged before me by Norma Ortiz who is the City Clerk for the

City of Coolidge Arizona

My Commission Expires Notary Public



Regular Meeting
May 23 2011

Page 1

700 PM A Regular Meeting of the Common Council of

the City of Coolidge was held in the Council

Chambers 911 S Arizona Boulevard

Coolidge Arizona Mayor Thomas Shope
called the meeting to order at 703 pm Those

present in addition to Mayor Shope were

Councilmembers Judy RotzLopez Steve

Hudson Richard Lister Les Curry Jon

Thompson and ViceMayor Gilbert Lopez
Also present were City Manager Robert

Flatley City Attorney Denis Fitzgibbons and

CiTy Clerk Norma Ortiz

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE The Pledge of Allegiance was led by Mayor

Shope

PRESENTATIONS

Proclamation Click It or Ticket Mayor Shope read and proclaimed May 23

through June 5 2011 as Click It or TickeY

mobilization in Coolidge Arizona and urged
all citizens to always wear seat belts when

driing or riding on our roadways Police

Chief Brugman commented on this effort being
nationwide and thanked everyone for their

support There was discussion

Monthly report by the Coolidge Youth CYC Director Sharon Boyd reported on the Rc

Coalition Drop Box located in the Police Department
doing great stating that they will continue to

promote this program that Grad NighY held

on May 19 was a big success and thanked all

the businesses and supporters for their

contributions and donations to make this event

safe and successful and advised that a survey

was given to about 100 students who attended

the Grad NighP stating she will come back

next month to share the results of the survey

Mayor Shope also thanked all the businesses

for their suppoR of this event There was

discussion

CALL TO THE PUBLIC There were no comments made by the public



Regular Meeting
May 23 20ll

Page 2

BUSINESS

Consider approval of entering into an Fire Chief McHugh advised Council of the

Intergovernmental Use Agreement Intergovernmental Use Agreement with the

between the City of Coolidge and Central Central Arizona Valley Institute of Technology
Arizona Valley lnstitute of Technology for CAVIT which allows for joint use of

shared use of facilities training facilities training equipment and personnel in

equipment and personnel in relation to Tire relation to fire services There was discussion

services MOTION was made by Councilmember Lister

to approve of entering into an

ntergovemmental Use Agreement between the

Ciry of Coolidge and CenLral Arizona Valley
nstitute of Technology for shared use of

facilities training equipment and personnel in

relation to fire services SECOND was made

by Councilmember RotzLopez and passed
unanimously

Consider award of bid to GenTech in the Fire Chief McHugh advised Council of the bid

amount of29992A for the purchase and process used to seek bids for the purchase and

installation of an Emergency Generator installation of an emergency generator for the

Automatic Transfer Switch for the Fire Pire Department There was discussion

Department MOTION was made by Councilmember Curry
to award the bid to GenTech in the amount of

2999205 for the purchase and installation of

an Emergency Generator Automatic Transfer

Switch for the Pire Department SECOND was

made by ViceMayor Lopez and passed
unanimously

Consider approval of entering into a GM Director f3ruce advised Council ofthe 2

Second Amendment to Escrow Account Amendment to the Escrow Agreement which

Agreement and Instructions behveen the assures financial assurances on the Desert

City of Coolidge Coolidge 160 Holdings Ranches Development There was discussion

LLC and Pioneer Title Agency for the MOTION was made by ViceMayor Lopez to

purpose ofassuring that the Escrow approve of entering into a Second Amendment

Agreement iuclude an expiration date not to Gscrow Account Agreement and nstructions

less than ninety 90 days beyond the last between the City of Coolidge Coolidge 160

improvement estimated completion date of Holdings LLC and Pioneer Title Agency for

the Onsite Improvements for the Desert the purpose of assuring that the Escrow

Ranches Development Agreement include an expiration date not less

than ninery 90 days beyond the last

improvement estimated completion date of the

Onsite Improvements for the Desert Ranches

Development SECOND was made by
Councilmember Curry and passed
unanimosly



Regular Meeting
May 23 2011

Page 3

Consider approval of appointing Alvin GM Director Bruce advised Council of the

Brent Kempton to the Planning and three 3 vacancies on the Planning and Zoning

Zoning Commission for a rivoyear term Commission and recommended appointing
Ahin Brent Kempton as a member for a 2year
tenn There was discussion MOTION was

made by Councilmember Thompson to appoint
Abin Brent Kempton to the Planning and

Zoning Commission for a twoyear term

SECOND was made by Councilmember Rotz

Lopez and passed unanimously

Consider approval of entering into a Lease PR Director LaPaglia advised Council of the

Agreement between the City of Coolidge Lease Agreement with Cool lmage Dance and

and Cool Image Dancc and Gymnastics Gymnastics LLC to lease the Old Recreation

LLC for lease of the Old Recreation Center for a period of one year There was

Center located at 670 W Pima Avenue for discussion MOTiON was made by
a period of one year commencing on June Councilmember Lister to approve of entering
1 2011 and ending May 31 2012 into a Lease Agreement between the City of

Coolidge and Cool Image Dance and

Cymnastics LLC for lease of the Old

Recreation Center located at 670 W Pima

Avenue for a period of one year commencing
on June 1 2011 and ending May 31 2012

SECOND was made by Councilmember Curry
and passed unanimously

Consider approval of entering into an Finance Director Pannella advised Council of

AgreemenY between the City of Coolidge the Agreement with Valley Collection Service

and Valley Collection Services for the for the purpose of providing the City collection

purpose of providing collection services on services on the Citys Liquid and Solid Waste

the Citys Liquid and SQlid Waste delinquent accounts There was much

delinquent accounts discussion MOTION was made by
Councilmember RotzLopez to approve of

entering into an Agreement between the City of

Coolidge and Valley Collection Services for

the purpose of providing collection services on

the Citys Liquid and Solid Waste delinquent
accounts SECOND was made by ViceMayor

Iopez and passed with six 6 YES votes and

one 1 NO vote by Councilmember Lister

Consider approval of changing the Citys HR Analyst Duran advised Council of the

Medical Insurance Provider to Aetna recommendation made to change the Citys
HMO and PPO and keeping the same Medical Insurance Plan to Aetna HMO as a

provider for Dental Short Term Disability better plan for employees and a cosY savings to

and Life the City There was discussion MOTION was

made by Councilmember Thompson to approve



Regular Meeting
May 23 2011

Page 4

approve of changing the Citys Medical

Insueance Provider to Aetna HMO and

keeping the same provider for Dental Short

Tenn Disability and Life SECOND was made

by Councilmember Curry and passed
unanimously

To receive public comments regarding the Asst City Manager Dusenberry advised this

FY 2011 Community llevelopment Block was a public hearing to obtain input on the FY

Grant CDBG Regional and State Special 2011 CDBG applications and to give the public

Project SSP applications for CDBG aoother opportunity to comment She then

funding advised thaz the Ciry was eligible to receive

approximately 140000 in CAAG Regional
CDBG Punds and up to 300000 in CDBG

State Special Project Funds which would also

have to cover administrative costs Asst Ciry
Manager Dusenberry reviewed the top six 6

projects that were prioritized by Council this

year stating that the Owner Occupied Housine

Rehabilitation Program ranked umber one

stating the City will move forward with

applying for funds to continue the Housing
Rehabilitation Program There being no further

comments made by the public or Council

Mayor Shope closed the public hearing at 758

pm

Resolution No 1114 A Resolution of the Asst City Manager Dusenberry advised

Mayor and City Council of the City of Council of Resolution No 1114 which adopts

Coolidge Arizona authorizing the the Owner Occupied Housing Rehabilitation

adoption of the Owner Occupied Housing Guidelines dated May 2010 required to apply
Rehabilitation Guidelines dated May 2010 for FY 201 I Regional and State Special Project
in relation to applications for FY 2011 CDBG Funds There was discussion

State Community Development Block MOTION was made by ViceMayor Lopez to

Grant funds for a Housing Rehabilitation adopt Resolution No 1114 A Resolution of

Program the Mayor and City Council of the City of

Coolidge Arizona authorizing the adoption of

the Owner Occupied Housing Rehabilitation

Guidelines dated May 2010 in relation to

applications for FY 2011 State Communiry
Development Block Grant funds Sor a Housing
Rehabilitation Program SECOND was made

by Councilmember Lister and passed
unanimously by roll call vote



Regular Meeting
May 23 2011

Page 5

Resolution No 1115 A Resolution of the Asst City Manager Dusenberry advised

Mayor and City Council of the City of Council of Resolution No 115 which

Coolidge Arizona authoriziog the authorizes the submission of an application for

submission of an application for FY 20ll PY 2011 CDBG Regional Account Funds to

State Community Development Bloek contiue the Owner Occupied Housing
Grant Funds Regional Account Projects Rehabilitation Program There was discussion

certifying that said application meets the MOTION was made by Councilmember

communityspreviously identified housing Thompson to adopt Resolution No 115 A

and community development needs and Resolution of the Mayor and City Council of

the requirements of the State CllBG the City of Coolidge Arizona authorizing the

Program and authorizing all actions submission of an application for FY 2011 State

necessary to implement and complete the Community Development Block Grant Funds
activities outlined in said applications Regional Account Projects certifying that said

application meets the communityspreviously
identified housing and community development
needs and the requirements of the State CDBG

Program and authorizing all aetions necessary

to implemet and complete the activities

outlined in said applications SECOND was

made by Councilmember RotzLopez and

passed unanimously by roll call vote

Resolution No 1116 A Resolution of the Asst City Manager Dusenberry advised

Mayor and City Council of the City of Council of Resolution No I116 which

Coolidge Arizona authorizing the authorizes the submission of an application for

submission of an application for FY 2011 FY 2011 CDBG State Special Project Funds to

State Community Development Block continue the Owner Occupied Housing
Grant Funds State Special Projects Rehabilitation Program There was discussion

certifying that said application meets the MOTION was made by Councilmember Rotz

communityspreviously identified housing Lopez to adopt Resolution No 1116 A

and wmmunity development needs and Resolution of the Mayor and City Council of

the requirements of the State CDBG the City of Coolidge Arizona authorizing the

Program and authorizing all actions submission of an application for FY 2011 State

necessary to implement and complete the Community Development Block Grant Funds
activities outlined in said applications State Special Projects certifying that said

application meets the communityspreviously
identified housing and community development
needs and the requirements of the State CDaG

Program and authorizing all actions necessary

to implement and complete the activities

outlined in said applications SECOND was

made by Councilmember Lister and passed
unanimously by roll call vote



Regular Meeting
May 23 2011

Page 6

REPORTS FROM THE MAYOR

COUNCIL ANDOR CITY MANAGER

Report from Mayor Mayor Shope commented on attending the

meeting with APS regarding Solar Energy that

he was glad to see so many families attending
Movie in the Park people having a great
time at the Fight Night at the Gallopin Goose
and that he took part in the 8 Grade and High
School Graduation ceremonies

Reports from Council Councilmember RotzLopez had nothing to

report

Councilmember Hudson cominented on

attending the ight Night at the Gallopin
Goose stating Les Curry Lynn Parsons and

Barry Dunn did a greatjob on this event

Councilmember Lister commented on visiting
the Coolidge Airport stating that it was looking
very welL that the north wall on the Hanger
was rebuilt that ew hangers are also being
built and that hes glad to see the Airport is

moving along

Councilmember Thompson had nothing to

report

Councilmember Curry commented on the

Movie in the Park event being well attended

with over 200 people and thanked Cox

Communications Parks Recreation and the

Chamber for a greaf job that the Fight Night at

the Gallopin Goose had over 300 people in

attcndance stating it was a good event and that

another event would be held next quarter

thanking the City of Coolidge Police and Fire

Departments the Gallopin Goose and the

Chamber of Commerce and the Economic

Development Committee

ViceMayor Lopez commented on the

attendig the NLC Economic Development
Committee Steering Meeting which was held in

Ventura California stating they discussed some

interesting topies on Economic Development



Regular Meeting
May 23 201I

Page 7

Block Grants Economic Development

Corporations raising private funds for

economic developments and a great incubator

program which loans money to small

businesses which could be a good idea to look

into for investments to fund projects at the

Coolidge Airport

Report from City Manager Ciry Manager Flatley advised Council of the

groundbreaking at the Imagine Schools stating
this event was not posted so if planning to

attend that it could only be limited to 3 council

members that the State League of Cities

Towns Conference is being held in the fall in

Tucson for anyone interestcd in attending and

that this upcoming year the Council has the

opportuniry to attend the NLC Congress of

Cities Conference being held in Phoenix

Arizona in 2012 stating travel and training
money is available in the budget for those

iuterested in attending

ADJOUI2IVMENT MOTION was made by Councilmember

Thompson to adjoum the meetig at 815 pm

SECOND was made by ViceMayor Lopez and

passed unanimously

Mayor

1 Norma Ortiz City Clerk of the Ciry of Coolidge Pinal County Arizona do hereby certify that the

above is a true and correct copy of the minutes of the Regular Meeting of the Common Council held

on May 23 2011 I further certify the meeting was duly called and held and that a quorum was

present

Norma Ortiz City Clerk

The above and foregoing was acknowledged before me by Norma ORiz who is the City Clerk for the

City of Coolidge Arizona

My Commission expires Notary Public



AGENDA ITEM

Date June 27 201I

CITY OF COOLIDGE

CITY COUNCIL ACTION FORM

SUBJECT Resolution to apply for Proposition STAFF PRESENTER Mickey McHugh Fire

202 Funds from TohonoOodham Community Chief

RECOMMENDATION

Staff recommends that the Mayor and City Council approve the Resolution to apply for

Proposition 202 funding from the TohonoOodham Indian Community

DISCUSSION

The grant proposal is for the replacement of safety equipment Bunker Coats Pants

Boots for Fire Department personnel

FISCAL IMPACT

A cost savings of73250 to the City of Coolidge if awarded ihe funds

ATTACHMENTS

Resolution

Grant Proposal

REVIEWED BY PREPAf2ED BY

9v M Mcafu
Robert tley City lanager Mickcy McHugh Pire Chief

I
LisaP ellaFinanceDirector

Reviewed via Email

Denis Fitzgibbons City Attorney

CDocmnents and SctlinsnormaoLocalSetfingsTcmporuq INemet FilesOLKD2Aecnda Form3doc Pae Of

6172011



RESOLUTION No 1123

A RESOLUTION OF THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE

CITY OF COOLIDGE ARIZONA AUTHORIZING THE CITY OF

COOLIDGE SY AND THROUGH THE CITY OF COOLIDGE FIRE

DEPARTMENT TO APPLY FOR PROPOSITION 202 GRANT

FUNDS FROM THE TOHONOOODHAM NATION

WHEREAS the Tohono Oodham Nation is seeking proposals from local

agencies for projects relating to public safety and

WHEREAS the City of Coolidge Arizona through the Fire Department is

interested in submitting projects to be considered for funding from Proposition 202 funds

through the TohonoOodhamI3ation

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and City
Council of the City of Coolidge Arizona as follows

1 That the City of Coolidge by and through the City of Coolidge Fire

Department is authorized to submit projects for consideration in the Tohono Oodham

Nation Grant program for 2011

2 That Mickey McHugh Fire Chief is appointed as the agent for the City of

Coolidge Arizona to conduct all negotiations and to execute and submit all documents

and any other necessary or desirable instruments in connection with such grant

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Mayor and City Council of the Ciry of

Coolidge Arizona this 27 day of June 2011

Mayor

ATTEST APPROVED AS TO FORM

City Clerk City Attorney



CITY OF COOLIDGE FIRE DEPARTMENTHNF

Mailing Address 130 W Central Avenue CoolidQe AZ 85128

F Station 1103 W Pinkley Avenue

Phone5207236015 Fax5207236018

Fire Chief Mickey McHughr

The Coolidge Fire Department a public safety provider is requesting to upgrade
and replace 30 sets of existing turnout gear which consists of bunker coats
bunker pants and bunker boots The current turnout gear used to protect our

firefighters during emergency responses is beginning to show wear due to use

and aging this creates an exposure to personnel with the risk of injury Fire

departments report yearly to the National Fire Protection Association that a

significant number of injuries on the fire ground are sprains strains cuts bruises

and burns Because our department is volunteer any injury creates potential
problems to the City the firefighter and their employer due to insurance costs
lost wages and lost productivity

The City of Coolidge consists of residential commercial industrial and farming
it covers approximately 65 square miles with a population of 11825 citizens

which are of low to moderate income The Coolidge Fire Department is funded

from the City of Coolidge general fund which consists of sales tax and State of

Arizona State Shared Revenues The City of Coolidge has had to transfer the

Capital Sales Tax funds to the general fund thus eliminating availability of funds

for the replacement of turnouts There have been no cost of living raises for

several years and for fiscal year 20102011 a 5 across the board reduction in

pay for all departments has been instituted The City of Coolidge has recognized
the needs of the Fire Department for new and replacement equipment in the past
and would be receptive to replacement of the turnout gear if funding were

available

Our operations would continue with the existing equipment until deemed unsafe
unusable or such time that another funding source was located If funding is not

located the worst case scenario would be restricted fire scene activity due to the

lack of protective equipment

The Tohono Oodham Nation awarded 2000000 in 2005 and the Gila River

Indian Community awarded 5000000 in 2010 for an emergency backup
generator for station 1 No other sources for funding have been applied for



Designated contact person Mickey McHugh Fire Chief

130 WCentral Ave

Coolidge AZ 85128

5207236015Phone
520 5605902 Cellular
5207236018Fax
mickevmccoolidQeazcom

Alternate contact person Jill Dusenberry
Assistant City Manager
130 W Central Avenue

Coolidge Arizona 85128

520 7236014 Phone
5207236067Fax
iilldccoolidqeazcom



CITY OF COOLIDGE

662011

ANNUALBUDGET

Fund Number

Name

TOHONOOODHAMTURNOUT GEARPROP 202 20575

NARRATIVE

20112012

Account Description Amount

911 CAPITAL EQUIPMENT 73250
Bunker Coats 30 110000 33000
BunkerPants 30 87500 26250
Bunker Boots 30 28000 8400

Tax Shipping 5600

TOTAL 73250



AGENDA ITEM

Date June 27 20 I

CITY OF COOLIDGE

CITY COUNCIL ACTION FORM

SUBJECT Resolution to apply for Grants STAFF PRESENTER Joe Brugman Police

from he Gila River Indian Community Chief

RECOMMENDATION

Staff recommends that the Mayor and City Council approve the Resolution to apply for

grant funding from the Gila River Indian Community

DISCUSSION

The grant pmposal is to fund the replacement of the Police DepartmenYs mobile police
radios to improve communications and the safety of the residents of Coolidge and its

police officers

FISCAL IMPACT

A savings of8769700 to the City of Coolidge

ATTACHMENTS

Resolution

Grant Proposal

REVIEWED BY PI2EP D BY

a6

Robert tle City an ger Roger Stinson ommander
i

Li annella Finance Director

Reviewed Via Email

Denis Fitzgibbons City Attorney

CDocuments and SettingssinsonrUeskloplPD Grant Fmidingdoc Page 1 Of 1
67201 I



RESOLUTION No 1124

A RESOLUTION OF THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF

COOLIDGE ARIZONA APPROVING SUBMISSION OF APPLICATIONS FOR

GRANTS FROM THE GILA RIVER INDIAN COMMUNITY TO THE COOLIDGE

POLICE DEPARTMENT FOR MOBILE POLICE RADIOS

WHEREAS the City of Coolidge and Coolidge Police Department are focused on

providing quality services to the residents of the community and

WHEREAS the City of Coolidge supports the Coolidge Police Departments efforts to

improve Public Safety Communications and

WHEREAS the Coolidge Police Department has identified the safety of its Police

Officers as well as residents of the community as its highest priority

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and City Council of the City of

Coolidge Arizona that the City of Coolidge hereby

Approves the City of CoolidgeCoolidge Police Department submitting an

application to fund the replacement of the police departmenYs mobile police
radios to improve communications and the safety of the residence of Coolidge
and its Public Safety Officers

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Mayor and City Council of the City of Coolidge
Arizona this 27 day of June 2011

Mayor

ATTEST APPROVED AS TO FORM

City Clerk City Attomey



Gila River Indian Community Grant Application Cover Sheet

Date of Application June 6 2011

Name of City Town or County City of Coolidge

Mayor or Board of Supervisor s Chairman Thomas R Shope

Mailing Address 130 W Central Ave

City CoolidgeState AZ Zip Code 85138

Contact PersonlTitle Roger Stinson Commander

Organization or Dept Coolidge Police Department

Mailing Address 9ll S Arizona Blvd Coolidge AZ 85128

Phone Number 520 7235311 Fax Number 520 7234016

Email Address rogers@coolidgeazcomThe
individual listed here will be our direct point of contactfor grant relatedquestions or
requests for information Duplicates of all grant correspondence will be sent to the contact

person Program

or Project Name Mobile Radio Replacement Purpose

of Grant one sentence To replace all Coolidge Police Department mobile radios

with new Narrowband and P25 compliant radios Beginning

and Ending Dates
of Programor Project712011thru6302012Amount

Requested8769700Total Project Cost 87 69700Geographic

Area Served Cityof Coolidge and ail surrounding areas Signature

Mayor
or County Chairperson Date Typed

Name and Title ThomasR Shope Mavor



COOLIDGE POLICE DEPARTMENT

GILA RIVER INDIAN COMMUNITY GRANT

2011

PROJECT DESCRIPTION

A NARRATIVE

1 Purpose of Grant

a Describe the uroposed proeram or proiect

The Coolidge Police Departmentsproject is to purchase

26 Motorola XTL 2500 Mobile Police Radios that are Narrowband and P25

Compliant

b Describe how the proposed proeram or proiect satisfies one or more of the

priority areas identi6ed by the Gila River Indian Community

The acquisition of the above item will benefit the citizens of Coolidge and the

Coolidge Police Department as a Public Safety activity as listed by the Community for

priority funding

c Identifv the needsnrobiems to be addressed taret population and number of

peoule to be served bv the proiect

The Coolidge Police Department has an immediate need to upgrade our

mobilevehicle radios The current police department mobile radios are not P25 compliant
and have exceeded their service life with some being over nine ar ten years old The FCC

has mandated that in the neaz future all public safety radios will be both Narrowband

Capable and P25 compliant If awarded these funds would be used to purchase 26 new

Motorola Radios that aze both Narrowband and P25 compliant These radios would be

used by police officers in the field when responding to emergency calls for service

throughout the Ciry of Coolidge and all surrounding areas The Department currently
serves a population oE 12300 and covers approximately 63 square miles 10 additional

square miles aze currently being processed for annexation This project would serve the

entire City of Coolidge population as well as all citizens of the surrounding areas where

we assist other poice agencies with calls for service



dl Describe the proiect oals and obiectives and vour plan to meet them

The goal of this project is to increase the level of safety to our ofticers the public
and any other regional agency responder in our area This will be done by replacing our

current 26 mobile radios with new current Narrowband and P25 compliant radios

el Define the proiect as a new or continuina proram

This is a new project that the city does not have current funding for

tl Identifv other oreanizations partners or funders participatine in the nroiect and

their roles

There are none

g Indicate anv application to andorawards made bv a Tribe other than the Gila

ffiver Indian Communitv for state shared reveuues for this andor anv other

proiectsproQrams

The Coolidge Police Department has no other current Tribal funding applications
pending

The Coolidge Fire Department is working on submitting a grant to the Tohono

OOdham Community to replace flre safety equipment

h Provide a timetable for implementatiou

The purchase of the requested items would begin as soon as funding is made

available the purchasing would be complete in fiscal year 20112012

i Identifv loneterm fundina resources

The Coolidge Police DepaRment has implemented a five yeaz schedule for life

expectancy of its radios and each year the schedule is updated and radios that will be

reaching the end of their serviceable life will be added to the following years capital
budget for replacement

2 Reaorts

The Police Department will record when the invoices for the equipment were

received and paid and will track how the equipment is being maintained and used We

will provide this information to the Community in a timely manner or as required by the

Community



B ATTACHMENTS

1 The Resolution is attached

2 The budget is attached along with a copy of the quote from Motorola for the

radios requested
3 There are no additional funders nor amounts committed or requested

A HEADING

Budget Period July 1 2011 to June 30 2012

BEXPENSES

Proposed Budget Amount Amount secured In Kind Total Budget

list each budget Requested from From other Expense
iten GRIC Funders

26 Mobile Radios 8769700 8769700

Total Budget 8769700 8769700

RESOLUTION



AGENDA ITEM

DATE June 27 2011

CITY OF COOLIDGE

CITY COUNCIL ACTION FORM

SUBJECT 2011 Model City Tax Code STAFF PRESENTER Lisa Pannella Finance
Amendments Director

RECOMMENDATION

Adopt Resolufion No ll25 a Resolution of the Mayor and Council of the City of

Coolidge Arizona declaring as a public record that certain document filed with the City
Clerk and entitled The 2011 Amendments to the Tax Code of the City of Coolidge

Adopt Ordinance No 1107 an Ordinance of the City of Coolidge Arizona relating to

the Privilege License Tax adopting The 2011 Amendments to the Tax Code of the City
of Coolidge by reference establishing an effective date providing for severability and

providing penalties for violations

DISCUSSION

These are the most recent amendments to the Tax Code These amendments are a

product of new legislation which we are required to adopt Attached is an explanation of

the changes and the code

FISCAL IMPACT

None

Attachments

Resolution No 1125

Ordinance No 1107

Explanation ofchanges
Revised Tax Code

REVIEWED BY PREPARED Y

icIl
Robert F tley CityM nager Lisa Pa ella Finance DirectorCFO

Lisa ella Finance Director

SFinanceLisaCouncilCouncil Action Forms7a Code Amendmen 201Idoc Page 1 Of 1
6212011



RESOLUTION No 1125

A RESOLUTION OF THE MAYOR AND COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF COOLIDGE
ARIZONA DECLARING AS A PUBLIC RECORD THAT CERTAIN DOCUMENT

FILED WITH THE CITY CLERK AND ENTITLED THE 2010ll AMENDMENTS

TO THE TAX CODE OF THE CITY OF COOLDGE

WHEREAS pursuant to Ordinance No 0918 the City of Coolidge previously adopted that certain

document known as The 2009 Amendments to the Tax Code ofthe City ofCooidge Arizona based on the

League of Arizona Cities and Towns Model Tax Code and

WHEREAS in April 201 1 the Municipal Tax Code Commission approved the 20102011 Tax Code

Amendments and

WHEREAS the City Council believes that declaring such document a public record and adopting its

provisions by reference will be in the Citys best interest

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and Council of the City of Coolidge
Arizona as follows

That certain document entitled THE 2010I I AMENDMENTS TO THECAX CODE OF

THE CITY OF COOLIDGE three 3 copies of which are on file in the office of the Ciry
Clerk is hereby declared to be a public record and said copies are ordered to remain on file

with the City Clerk

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Mayor and Council ofthe City ofCoolidge Arizona this 27 day of

June 201 I

Thomas R Shope Mayor

Attest Approved as to Form

Norma Ortiz City Clerk Denis Fitzgibbons City Attorney



ORDINANCE NO 1107

AN ORDINANCE OF THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF

COOLIDGE ARIZONA RELATING TO THE PRIVILEGE LICENSE TAX
ADOPTING THAT CERTAIN DOCUMENT KNOWN AS THE 201011

AMENDMENTS TO THE TAX CODE OF THE CITY OF COOLIDGE BY

REFERENCE ESTABLISHING AN EFFECTIVE DATE PROVIDING FOR

SEVERABILITY AND PROVIDING PENALTIES FOR VIOLATIONS

WHEREAS the certain document known as The 20102011 Amendments to the Tax Code ofthe City
of Coolidge was adopted as public record by Resolution No 1 125 on June 27 201 1 and

WHEREAS the Mayor and City Council of the City of Coolidge believe after consultation with its

staff that adopting The 2010201 1 Amendments to the Tax Code of the City ofCoolidge would be in the best

interest of the City of Coolidge and

WHEREAS ARS9802 allows a City to adopt a public record by Ordinance as a means to reduce

publication costs while ensuring that the public gets fair notice and opportunity to review its operative
provisions

NOW THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED BY THE MAYOR AND COUNCIL OF THE CITY

OF COOLIDGE ARIZONA AS FOLLOWS

Section 1 Pursuant toARS9802 that certain document known as The 201011 Amendments to

the Tac Code of the City of Coolidge three copies of which are on file in theoce of the City Clerk of the

City ofCoolidge Arizona which document was made a public record by Resolution NolI25 ofthe Ciry of

Coolidge Arizona is hereby referred to adopted and made a part hereof as if fully set out in this ordinance

Section 2 Any person found guilty ofviolating any provision of these amendments to the tac code shall

be guilty of a dass one misdemeanor Each day that a violation continues shall be a separate offense

punishable as herein above described

Section 3 If any section subsection sentence clause phrase or portion ofthis ordinance or any part of

these amendments to the taY code adopted herein by reference is for any reason held to be invalid or

unconstitutional by the decision of any court of competent jurisdiction such decision shall not affect the

validity of the remaining portions thereof

Section 4 The provisions of section 1 of this ordinance shall be effective from and after June l 201 l

The provisions of section 2 through 5 of this ordinance shall be effective from and after July 29 2010 The

provisions of section 6 of this ordinance shall be effective from and after September 30 2009

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Mayor and Council ofthe City ofCoolidge Arizona this 27 day of

June 201 l

Thomas R Shope Mayor

Attest Approved as to Form

Norma Ortiz City Clerk Denis Fitzgibbons Ciry Attomey



OUTLINE OF CHANGES TO MODEL CITY TAX CODE

The attached Model City Tax Code changes summarized below were approved by the Municipal Tax

Code Commission in April 2011

Section 1

This section adds language to the existing definitions of Food and Prosthetic and creates a new

definition for the phrase Medical marijuana These changes were made for the purpose of specifically
excluding medical marijuana from those definitions and thus excluding sales of inedical marijuana from

the related exemptions available under the Retail classification of the Model City Tax Code MCTC The

additional language makes it clear that medical marijuana sales are taxable at the regular Retail tax rate

in all cities and towns This section shall be effective from and after June 1 2011

S2CtiOnS 24

The changes in these sections are to comply with the 2010 regular legislative session passage of HB

2700 HB2700 changed the sunset date under Contracting in ARS425075B14 for installed solar

energy devices extending the deadline from January 1 2011 to 2017 The three affected sections of the

MCTC have the same language and these changes align the sunset date in the MCTC with the State

statute A technical correction adding reference to the Arizona Revised Statutes is also being added to

the exemption for development fees in each section These sections shall be effective from and after July
29 2010

Section 5

New subsection 445s is added to incorporate H62510 passed during the 200 regular legislative
session which prohibited cities and towns from taxing commercial rentals between two corporations
when either the landlord or lessor corporation owns at least 80 of the voting stock of the other

corporation Also allows exemption if a third corporation owns 80 of both the landlord and the lessor

corporations and treatsareciprocal insurer as if it wereacorporation for purposes of the exemption
This section shall be effective from and after July 29 2010

Section 6

The changes in this section were made based on cooperation and compromise between the Unified Audit

committee and banking interests The changes address the treatment of successor privilege tax liability in

the event of a foreclosure The new language allows for the deferral of payment of the delinquent
privilege tax until after the creditor subsequently sells the property aligning the cash flow related to the

property with payment of the tax liability

In addition this amendment will allow for the creditors tax base to be based on their subsequent selling
price and also provides for tax credits in the event the debtor comes forward to pay their liability after the

creditors payment This section shall be effective from and after May 1 2010

SeCtiOn 7

During the 2009 regular legislative session SB1196 created a use tax exemption for school districts and

charter schools which was not previously incorporated into the MCTC This preemption in ARS 42

6004Fexempts the storage use or consumption of tangible personal property by a school district or

charter school This section shall be effective from and after September 30 2009



20102011 AMENDMENTS TO THE

TAX CODE OF THE CITY OF COOLIDGE

Section 1 Section91100 of the Tax Code of the City of Coolidge is amended to read

Sec91100 Geoeral definifions

For the purposes of this Chapter the following definitions apply

Assembler means a person who unites or combines products wares or articles of manufacture so as to

produce a change in form or substance of such items without changing or altering component parts

Broker means any person engaged or continuig in business who acts for another for a consideration in

the conduct of a business activity taxable under this Chapter and who receives for his principal all or part

of the gross income from the taxable activiry

Business means all activities or acts personal or corporate engaged in and caused to be engaged in with

the objecC of gain benefit or advantage either direct or indireck but not casual activities or sales

Business Dav means any day of the week when the I ax Collectors oPfice is open for the public ro

conduct the Tax Collectors business

Casual Acfivirv or Sale means a transaction of an isolated nature made by a person who neither

represents himself to be nor is engaged in a business subject to a tax imposed by this Chapter Iiowever no

sale rental license for use or lease transaction conceming real property nor any activity entered into by a

business taxable by this Chapter shall be treated or be eacmpt as casual This definition shall indude

sales of used capital assets provided thaf the volume and frequency of such sales do not indicate that the

seller regularly engages in selling such property

Combined Tases means the sum of al applicable Arizona Transaction Privilege and Use Taxes all

applicable transportation taxes imposed upon gross income by this County as authorized by Article III

Chapter 6 Title 42 Arizona Revised Statutes and all applicable taxes imposed by his Chapter

Commercial ProperY is any real property ot portion of such property used for any purpose other than

lodging or lodging space including structures built for lodging but used otherwise such as model homes

apartments used as offices ete

Communications Channel means any line wire cable microwave radio signal light beam telephone

telegraph or any other electromagnetic means of moving a message

Construction ContractinQ refers to the activiry of a construction contractor

Construction Contractor means a person who undertakes to or offers to undertake to or purports to have

the capacity to undertake to or submits a bid to or does himself or by or through others construct alter

repair add to subtract from improve move wreck or demolish any building highway road railroad

excavation or other structure project development or improvement to real property or to do any part
thereof Construction contractor includes subcontractors specialty contractors prime contractors and

any person receiving consideration for the general supervision andor coordination of such a construcLOn



project except for remediation contracling This definition shal govern without regard to Nrhether or not

the construction contractor is acting in fulfillment of a contract

Deliverv ofNofice bv the Tax Collector means receipt of otice by the taYpayer

Deliverv Installation or Other Direct Customer Services means services or labor excluding repair labor

provided by a taYpayer to or for his customer at the time of transfer of tangible personal property provided
further that the charge for such labor or service is separately billed to the customer and maintained

separately in the taxpayers books and records

Engaging when used with reference to engaging or continuing in business includes the exercise of

corporate or franchise powers

Equivalent Lxcise Ta means either

1 a Privilege or Use Tax levied by another Arizona municipality upon the transaction in

question and paid either to such Arizona municipality directly or to the vendor or

2 an excise tax levied by a political subdivision of a state other than Arizona upon the

transaction in question and paid either to such jurisdiction directly or to the vendor or

3 an excise tax levied by a Native American Government organized under the laws of the

federal government upon the transaction in question and paid either to suchjurisdiction
directly or to the vendor

Federal Government means the United States Govemment its departments and agencies but

not including national banks or federally chartered or insured banks savings and loan

insritutions or credit unions

Food means any items intended for human consumption as defined by rules and regulations
adopted by the Department of Revenue State of Arizona pursuant to ARS Section425106

Under no circumstances shall food include alcoholic beverages or tobacco or food items

purchased for use in conversion to any form of alcohol by distillation fermentation brewing or

other process UNDER NO CIRCUMSTANCES SHALL FOOD INCLUDE A1 EDIBLE

PRODUCI BEVERAGE OI2IlGREDIENTIiPUSED MPCED OR IN ANY vAY

COMBINED WITH MEDICAL MARIiUANA OR AN ACTIVE INGRGDIENT OF MEDICAL

MARLTUANA

Hotel means any public or privatc hotel inn hostclry tourist home house motel rooming
house apartment house trailer or other lodging place within the City offering lodging wherein

the owner thereof for compensation furnishes lodging to any transient except foster homes rest

homes sheltered care homes nursing homes or primary health care facilities

Jet Puel meansjet fuel as defined in ARS Section 425351



Job Printine means the activity of copying or reproducing an ariicle by any means process or

method Job printing includes engraving of printing plates embossing copying
micrographics and photo reproduction

Lessee includes the equivalent person in a rental or licensing agreement for all purposes of this

Chapter

Lessor includes the equivalent person in a rental or licensing agreement for all purposes of this

Chapter

Licensin for Use means any agreement between the user licensee and the owner or the

owners agent licensor for the use of the licensors property whereby the licensor receives

consideration where such agreement does not qualify asasale or lease or Yental agreement

LodpinpLodinp Space means any room or apartment in a hotel or any other provider of

rooms trailer spaces or other residential dwelling spaces or the fiunishings or services and

accommodations accompanying the use and possession of said dwelling space including storage
or parking space for the properiy of said tenant

Manufactured Buildings means a manufactured home mobile home or factory built building
as defined inARS Section 412142

Manufacturer means a person engaged or continuing in the business of fabricating producing
or manufacturing products wares or articles for use from other forms of tangible personal
property imparting to such new forms qualities properties and combinations

n4EDICAT T4ARIJUANA MEANS A4AR71UANA USED FORAMEDICAL USE AS

THOSE TERI4S ARE DEFINED IN ARS SEGTON362801

Mining and Metallurical Supplies means all tangible personal property acquired by persons

engaged in activities defined in Section91432 for such use This definition shall not include

1 janitorial equipment and supplies

2 office equipment office furniture and office supplies

3 motor vchicles licensed for use upon the highways of the State

Modifier means a person who reworks changes or adds to products wares or artides of

manufacture

Nonprofit EntitY means any entity organized and operated exclusively for charitable purposes

or operated by the Federal Government the State or any political subdivision of the State



Occupancv of Real Property means any oceupancy or use or any righl to occupy or use real

properiy including any improvements rights or inferests in such properiy

OutofCitv Sale means the sale of tangible personal property and job printing if all of the

following occur

1 transference oftitle and possession occur without the City and

2 the stock from which such personal property was taken was not within the corporate
limits of the City and

3 the order is received at a permanent business location of the seller located outside the

City which location is used for the substantial and regular conduct of such business sales

activity In no event shall the place of business of the buyer be determinative of the situs of

the reccipt of the order

For the purpose oP this definition iY does not matter that all other indicia of business occur within

the Cit including but not limited to accounting invoicing payments centralized purchasing
and supply to outofCity storehouses and outofCity retail branch outlets from a primary
storehouse within the City

OutofState Sale means the sale of tangible personal property and job printing if all of the

following occur

1 The order is placed from without the State of Arizona and

2 the property is delivered to the buyer at a location outside the State and

3 the property is purchased for use outside the State

OwnerBuilder means an owner or lessor of real propeRy who by himself or by or through
others constructs or has constructed or reconstructs or has reconstructed any improvement to real

property

Person means an individual firm partnership joint venfure association eorporation estate

trust receiver syndicate broker the Federal Government this State or any political subdivision

or agency of this State For the purposes of this Chaptec a person shall be considered a distinct

and separate person from any general or limiteci partnership or joint venture or other association

with which such person is affiliated A subsidiary corporation shall be considered a separate

person from its parent corporation for purposes of taxation of transactions with its pazent

corporation

Prosthetic means any of tlie following tangible personal property if such items are prescribed or

recommended by a licensed podiatrist chiropractor dentisl physician or surgeon naturopath



optometrist osteopathic physician or surgeon psychologist hearing aid dispenser physician
assistant nurse practitioner or veterinarian

1 any manmade device for support or replacement of a part of the body or to increase

acuity of one of the senses Such items include prescription eyeglasses contact lenses

hearing aids artificial limbs or teeth neck back arm leg or similar braces

2 insulin insulin syringes and glucose test strips sold with or without a prescription

3 hospital beds crutches wheelchairs similar home health aids or corrective shoes

4 drugs or medicine including oxygen

5 equipment used to generate monitor or provide health support systems such as

respiratory equipment oxygen concentrator dialysis machine

6 durable medical equipment vhich has a Federal Health Care Financing Administration

common procedure code is designated reimbursable by Medicare can withstand repeated
use is primarily and customarily used to serve a medical purpose is generally not useful to a

person in the absence of illness or injury and is appropriate for use in the home

UNDER NO CIRCUM4TAiCESSI3ALL PROS7HETICICLliDE n4EDICAL

MARIJUANA REGARDLSS OP HETHER IL IS SOLD OR DISPENSED PURSUANT

TO A PRESCRPTlOn RECOD4MENDATION OR WRITTNCER171ICATION BY

ANl AUTHORIZED PERSON

Qualifving Community Healtl Center

1 means an entity that is recognized as nonprofit under Secrion 501c3 of the United

States Internal Revenue Code that is a communitybased primary care clinic that has a

communitybased board of directors and that is either

a the sole provider of primary care in the communiry

b a nonhospital affiliated clinic that is located in a federally designated medically
underserved area in this State

2 includes clinics that are being constructed as qualifying community health centers

QualifyinQ Health Care Organization means an entiry that is recognized as nonprofit under

Section 501c of the United States nternal Revenue Code and that uses saves or invests at least

eighty percent 80 of all monies that it receives from all souroes each year only for health and

medical related educational and charitable services as documented by annual f nancial audits

prepared by an independent certified public accountant perPormed according to generally
accepted accounting standards and filed annually with the Arizona Department of Revenue



Monies that are used saved or invested to lease purchase or construct a facility for health and

medical related education and charitable services are included in the eighry percent 80

requirement

Oualifying Hospital means any of ihe following

1 a licensed hospital which is organized and operated exclusively Por charitable purposes

no part of the net earnings of which inures to the benefit of any private shareholder or

individual

2 a licensed nursing care institution or a licensed residential care institution or a residential

care facility operated in conjunction with a licensed nursing care institution or a licensed

kidney dialysis center which provides medical services nursing services or health related

services and is not used or held for profit

3 a hospital nursing care institution or residential care institution which is operated by the

federal government this State or a political subdivision of this State

4 a facility that is under construction and that on completion will be a facility ander

subdivision 1 2 ar 3 ofthis paragraph

Receipt ofNotice bv the Taxpayer means the earlier of actual reeeipt or the first attempted
delivery by certified United States mail to the taxpayers address oP record with the Tax

Collector

Remediation means those actions that are reasonable necessary costeffeetive and technically
feasible in the event of the release or threat of release of hazardous substances into the

environment such that the waters of the State are or may be affected such actions as may be

necessary to monitor assess and evaluate sucli release or threat of release actions of remediation
removal or disposal of hazardous substances or taking such other actions as may be necessary to

prevent minimize or mitigate damage to the public health or welfaze or to the waters of the State

which may otherwise result from a release or threaY of release of a hazazdous substance that will

or may affect the waters of the Stale Remediation activities include the use of biostimulation

with indigenous microbes and bioauginentation using microbes that are nonpathogenic
nonopportunistic and that are naturally occurring Remediation aetivities may include community
information and participation eosts and providing an alternative drinking water supply

Rental Equi means tangible personal property sold rented leased or licensed to

customers to the cxtent that the item is actually used by the customer for rental lease ar license

to others provided tlat

1 the vendee is regularly engaged in the business ofrenting leasing or licensing such

properiy for a consideraion and



2 the item so claimed as rental equipment is not used by the person claiming the

exemption for any purpose other than rental lease or license for compensation to an extent

greater than fifteen percent 15 of its actual use

Rental Supvly means an expendable or nonexpendable repair or replacement part sold to

become part of rental equipment provided that

1 the documentation relating to eaclt purchased item so claimed specifically itemizes to the

vendor the actual item of rental equipment to which the purchased item is intended to be

attached as a repair or replacement part and

2 the vendee is regularly engaged in the business of renting leasing or licensing such

properiy for a consideration and

3 the item so claimed as Yental equipment is not used by the person claiming the

exemption for any purpose other than rental lease or license for compensation to an extent

greater than fifreen percent 15 of its actual use

Repairer means a person who restores or rcnews products wares or articles of manufacture

Resides within the City means in cases other than individuals whose legal addresses are

determinative of residence the cngaging continuing or conducting of regular business activity
within the City

Restaurant means any business activity where ariicles of food drink or condiment are

customarily prepared or served to patrons for consumption on or off the premises also including
bars cocktail lounges the dining rooms of hotels and all caterers For tlie purposes of this

Chapterafast food business which includes street vendors and mobile vendors selling in

public areas or at entertainment or sports or similar events who prepares or sells food or drink

for consumption on or off the premises is consideredaYestaurant and notaretailer

Retail Sale Sale al Retail means the sale of tangible personal property except the sale of

tangible personal property to a person regularly engaged in the business of selling such propery

Retailer means any person engaged or continuing in ihe business of sales of tangible personal

property at retail

Sale means any transfer of title or possession or both exchange barter conditional or

otherwise in any manner or by any means whatsoever induding consignment transactions and

auctions of property for a consideration Sale includes any transaction whereby the possession
of such property is transferred but the seller retains the title as securiry for the payment of the

price Sale also includes the fabrication of tangible personal properry for consumcrs who in

whole or in part furnish either directly or indirectly the materials used in such fabrication work



Solar Dayliehting means a device that is specifically designed to capture and redirect the

visible portion of the solar beam while controlling the infrared portion for use in illuminating
interior building spaces in lieu of artificial lighting

Solar Energv Device means a system or series of inechanisms designed primarily to provide
heating to provide cooling to produce electrical power to produce mechanical power to provide
solar daylighting or to provide an5 combination of the foregoing by means of collecting and

transferring solar generaled energy into such uses either by active or passive means induding
wind generator systems that produce electricity Solar energy systems may also have the

capability of storing solar energy for future use Passive systems shall clearly be designed as a

solar energy device such as a trombe wall and not merely as a part of a normal structure such as

a window

Speculative Builder means either

1 an ownerbuilder who sells or contracts to sell at any time improved real property as
provided in Section91416 consisting oL

custom model or inventory homes regardless of the stage of completion of such

homes or

Bimproved residential or commercial lots without a structure or

2 an ownerbuilder who sells or contracts to sell improved real properiy other than

improved real property specified in subsection 1 above

prior to completion or

jbefore the expiration of twenryfour 24 months aficr the improvements of the real

property sold are substantially complete

Substantially Complete means the construction contractiug or reconstruction contracting

I has passed final inspection or its equivalent or

2 certificate of occupancy or its equivalent has been issued or

3 is ready for immediate occupancy or use

Supplier means any person who rents leases licenses or makes sales of tangible personal
propercy within the Ciry cither directly to the consumer or customer or to wholesalers jobbers
fabricators manufacturers modifiers assemblers repairers or those engaged in the business of

providing services which involve the use sale rental lease or license of tangible personal
propeRy



Tax Collector means the ciry derk or his designee or agent for all purposes under this Chapter

Taxpayer means any person liable for any tax under this Chapter

1elecommunication Service means any service or activity connected with the transmission or

relay of sound visual image data information images or matcrial over a communications

channel or any combination of communications channels

Transient means any person who either at the persons own expense or at the expense of

another obtains lodging space or the use of lodging space on a daily or weekly basis or on any

other basis for less than thirty 30 consecutive days

Utilitv Service means the producing providing or furnishing oPelectriciry electric lights
cunent power gas natural or artificial or water to consumers or ratepayers

Section 2 Section91415 of the Tax Code of the Cit of Coolidge is amended to read

Sec91415 Construction contracting construction contractors

a The tax rate shall be at an amount equal to four percent 4 of the gross income from

the business upon every construction contractor engaging or continuing in the business

activity of construction contracting within the City
1 However gross income from construction contracting shall not include

charges related to groundwater measuring devices required by ARS Section 45

604

2 Reserved
3 gross income from construction contracting shall not include gross income

from the sale ofmanufaetured buidings taxable under Section91427

4 For taxable periods beginning from and afrer July 1 2008 the portion of gross

proceeds of sales or gross income attributable to the actual direct costs of

providing architectural or engineering services that are incorporated in a contract

is not subject to tax under this Section For the purposes of this subsection direct

costs means the poRion of the actual costs that are directly expended in providing
architectural or engineering services

b Deductions and exemptions
1 Gross income derived from acting asasubcontractor shall be exempt from

the tax imposed by this Section

2 All construction contracting gross income subject to the tax and not deductible

herein shall be allowed a deduction of thirtyfive percent 35
3 The gross proceeds of sales or gcoss income attxibutable to the purchase of

machinery equipment or other tangible personal properry that is exempY from or

deductible from privilege or use tax under

A Section91465 subsections g and p
B Section91660 subsections g and p



shall be exetnpt or deductible respectively from the tax imposed by this

Section

4 The gross proceeds of sales or gross income that is derived from a contract

entered into for the installation assembly repair or maintenance of income

producing capital equipment as defined in Section91I 10 that is deducted from

the retail classification pursuant to Section91465g that does not become a

pernianent attachment to a building highway road railroad excavation or

manufactured building or other structure project development or improvement
shall be exempt from the tax imposed by this Section If the ownership of the

realty is separafe from the ownership of the incomeproducing capital equipment
the determination as to permanent attachment shall be made as if the ownership
was the same The deduction provided in this paragraph does not include gross

proceeds of sales or gross income from that portion of any contracting activity
which consists of the development of or modification to real property in order to

facilitate the installafion assembly repair maintenance or removal of the income

producing capital equipment For purposes of this paragraph permanent
attachment means at least one oP the following

A to be incorporated into real property

B to become so affixed to real property that it becomes part of the real

property

C to be so attached to real propery that removal would cause substantial

damage to the real property from which it is removed

5 The gross proceeds of sales or gross income received from a contract for the

construction of an environmentally controlled facility for the raising ofpoultry for

the production of eggs and the sorting or cooling and packaging of eggs shall be

exempt from the tax imposed under this Section

6 The gross proceeds of sales or gross income that is derived from the

installation assembly repair or maintenance of cleanrooms that are deducted

from the tax base of the retail classification pursuant to Section91465
subsection g shall be exempt from the tas imposed under this Section

7 The gross proceeds of sales or gross income that is derived from a contraet

entered ino with a person vho is engaged in the commercial production of

livestock livestock products or agricultural horticultural viticultural or

floricultural crops or products in this State for the construction alteration repair
improvement movement wrecking or demolition or addition to or subtraction

from any building highway road excavation manufactured building or other

structure project development or improvement used directly and primarily to

prevent monitor control or reduce air water or land pollution shall be exempt
from the tax imposed under this Section

8 The gross proceeds of sales or gross income received from a post construction

contract to perform postconstruction treatment of real property for termite and

general pest control including wood destroying organisms shall be exempt from

tax imposed under this section

9 Through December 31 2009 the gross proceeds of sales or gross income

received from a contract for constructing any lake facility development in a



commercial enhancement reuse district that is designated pursuant to ARS 9

49908 if lhe contractor maintains the following records in a fonn satisfactory to

tbe Arizona Department of Revenue and to the City
A The certificate of qualification of the lake facility development issued

by the City pursuant to ARS 949908 subsection D

B All state and local transaclion privilege tax retums for the period of

time during which the contractor received gross proceeds of sales or gross

income from a contract to construct a lake facility development in a

designated commercial enhancement reuse district showing the amount

exempted from state and local taxation

C Any other information considered to be necessary

10 Any amount attributable to development fees that are incurred in relation to

the construction development or improvement of real property and paid by the

taxpayer as defined in the model city tax code or by a contractor providing
services to the taxpayer For the purposes of this paragraph

A the attributable amount shall not eaceed the value of Yhe development
fees actuall imposed
B the attributable amout is equal to the total amount of development
fees paid by the taxpayer or by a contractor providing services to the

taxpayer and the total development fees credited in exchange for the

construction of contribution to or dedication of real property for providing
public infrastrueture public safety or other public services necessary to the

development The real property must be the subject of the development
fees

C development fees means fees imposed to offset capital costs of

providing public infrastructure public safety or other public services to a

development and authorized pursuant to ARS Section946305ARS

Section 111102 or ARS Title 48 regardless of the jurisdiction to which

the fees are paid
11 For taxable periods beginning from and after July 1 2008 and ending before

January 192017 the gross proceeds of sales or gross income derived from a

contract to provide and install a solar energy device The contractor shall register
with the department of revenue as a solar energy contractor By registering the

contractor acknowledges that it will make its books and records relating to sales

of solar energy devices available to the department of revenue and the city as

applicable for examination

c Subcontractor means a construction contractor performing work for either

1 a construction contractor who has provided the subcontractor with a written

declaration that he is liable for the tax for the project and has provided the

subcontractor his City Privilege License number

2 an ownerbuilder who has provided the subcontractor with a written

declaration that

A the ownerbuilder is improving the property for sale and

B thc ownerbuilder is liable for the tax for such construction contracting
activity and



C the ownerbuilder has provided the contractar his City Privilege
License number

3 a person selling new manufactured buildings who has provided the

subcontractor with a written declazation that he is liable for the tax for the site

preparation and setup and provided the subcontractor his City Privilege License

number

Subcontractor also includes a construction contractor performing work for anofher subcontractor

as defined above

Section 3 Section91416 of the Tax Code of the City of Coolidge is amended to read

Sec91416 Construcrion contractiog speculative builders

a The tax shall be equal to four percent 4 of the gross income from the business

activity upon every person engaging or continuing in business as a speculative builder

within the Cit
1 The gross income of a speculative builder considered taxable shall include the

total selling price from the sale of improved real propeny at the time of closing of

escro or transYer of title

2 Improved Real Properh means an real properry

A upon which a structure has been constructed or

B here improvements have been made to land containing no structure

such as paving or landscaping or

C hich has been reconstructed as provided by Regulation or

D where ater power and streets have been constructed to the property
line

3 Sale of Improved Rea Propertv includes any form of transaction whether

characterized as a lease or otherwise which in substance is a transfer of title of or

equitable ownership in improved real property and includes any lease of the

property for a tenn of thirty 30 years or more with all options for renewal being
included as a part of the term In the case of multiple unit projects sale refers to

the sale of the entire project ar to the sale of any individual parcel or unit

4 Partially Improved Residential Real Property as used in this Section means

any improved real property as defined in subsection a2 above being
developed for sale to individual homeowners where the conslruction of the

residence upon such property is not substantially complete at the time of the sale

b Exclusions

1 In cases involving reconstruction contracting the speculative builder may

exclude from grossicome the prior value allowed for reconstruction contracting
in determining his taxable gross incoine as provided by Regulation
2 Neither the cost nor the fair market value of the land which constitutes part of

the improved real property sold may be excluded or deducted from gross income

subject to the tax imposed by this Section

3 Reserved



4 A specuative builder may exclude gross income from the sale of partially
improved residential real property as defined ina4 above to another

speculative builder only if all of the following conditions are satisfied

A The speculative builder purchasing the partially improved residential

real properiy has a valid Ciry privilege license for construction contracting
as a speculative builder and

B AY the time of the transaction the purchaser provides the seller with a

properly completed written declaration that the purchaser assumes liability
for and will pay all privilege taaes which would otherwise be due the Ciry
at the time of sale of the partially improved residential real property and

C Thc seller also

i maintains proper records of such transactions in a manner

similar to the requirements provided in this chapter relating to sales

for resale and

ii retains a copy of the itten declaration provided by the buyer
for the transaction and

iii is propedy licensed with the City as a speculative builder and

provides the City with the written declaration attached fo the City
privilege tax retum where he claims the exclusion

5 Por taxable periods beginning from and after July 1 2008 the portion of gross

proceeds of sales or gross income attributable to the actual direct costs of

providing architectural or engineering services that are incorporated in a contrac

is not subject to tax under this section For the purposes oPthis subsection direct

costs mcans the portion of the actual costs fhat are directly expended in providing
architeclural or engineering services

c Tax liabiliry for speculative builders occurs at close of escrow ar transfer of title
whichever occurs earlier and is subject to the following provisions relating to

exemptions deductions and tax credits

1 Exemptions

A The gross proceeds of sales or gross income attributable to the

purchase of machinery equipment or other tangible personal property that

is exempt from or deductible from privilege or use tax under

i Section91465 subsections g and p
ii Section91660 subsections g and p
shall be exempt or deductible respectively Prom the tax imposed

by this Section

B The gross proceeds of sales or gross income received from a contract

for the construction of an environmentally controlled facility for the

raising of poultry for the production of eggs and the sorting or cooling and

paekaging of eggs shall be exempt from the tac imposed under this

Section

C The gross proceeds of sales or gross income that is derived from the

installation assembly repair or maintenance of cleanrooms that are

deducted from lhe tax base of the retail classification pursuant to Section

91465 subsection g shall be exempt from the tax imposed under this



section

D The gross proceeds of sales or gross income that is derived from a

contracl entered into with a person who is engaged in the commercial

production of livestock livestock products or agricultural horticultural
viticultural or floricultural crops or products in this state for the

construction alteration repair improvement movement wrecking or

demolition or addition to or subtraction from any building highway road
excavation manuPactured building or other structure project development
or improvement used directly and primarily to prevent monitor control or

reduce air water or land pollution shall be exempt from the tax imposed
under this Section

E any amount attributable to development fees that are incurred in

relation to the construction development ar improvement of real property
and paid by the taxpayer as defined in the model city tax code or by a

contractor providing services to the taxpayer shall be exempt from the tax

imposed under this section For the purposes of this paragraph
i the aYCributable amount shall not exceed the value of the

development fees actually imposed
ii the attributable amount is equal to the total amount of

development fees paid by thetpayer or by a contractor providing
services to the taxpayer and the total development fees credited in

exchange for the construction of contribution to or dedication of

real property for providing public infrastructure public safety or

other public services necessary to Yhe development The real

property must be the subject of the development fees

iii development fees means fees imposed to offset capital costs

of providing public infrastructure public safety or other public
services to a development aid authorized pursuant to ARS

Section946305ARS Section 111102 orARS Title 48

regardless of the jurisdiction to which the fees are paid
2 Deductions

A All amounts subject to the tax shall be allowed a deduction in the

amount of thirtyfive percent 35
B The gross proceeds of sales or gross income that is derived from a

contract entered into for the installation assembly repair or maintenance

of incomeproducing capital equipment as defined in Section 91I 10
that is deducted from the retail classification pursuant to Section 91

465g that does not becoma a pernlanent attachment to a building
highway road railroad excavation or manufactured building or other

structure project developnlent or improvement shall be exempt from the

tax imposed by this Section If the ownership of the realty is separate from

the ownership of the incomeproducing capital equipment the

determination as to permanent attachment shall be made as if the

ownership was the same The deduction provided in this paragraph does

not include gross proceeds of sales or gross income from that portion of



any contracting activity whic6 consists of the development of or

modification to real properry in order to facilitate the installation

assembly repair maintenance or removal of the incomeproducing capital

equipment For purposes of this paragraph permanent attachmenY means

at least one of the following
i to be incorporated into real property

ii to become so affixed to real property that it becomes part of the

real properry

iii to be so attached to real properry that removal would cause

substantial damage to the real property from which it is removed

C For taxable periods beginning from and after July 1 2008 and ending
before January 19112017 the gross proceeds of sales or gross income

derived from a contract to provide and install a solar energy device The

contractor shall register with the deparlment of revenue as a solar energy

contractor By registering the contractor acknowledges that it will make

its books and records relating to sales of solar energy devices available to

the department of revenue and the ciry as applicable for examination

3 Tax credits

The following tax credits are available to ownerbuilders or speculative builders

not to exceed the tax liability against which such credits apply provided such

credits are documented to the satisfaction of the tax collector

A A tax credit equal to the amount of city privilege or use tax or the

equivalent ezcise tax paid directly to a taxing jurisdiction or as a

separately itemized chazge paid direetly to the vendor with respect to the

tangible personal property incorporated into the said structure or

improvement to real property underiaken by the ownerbuilder or

speculative builder

B A tax credit equal to the amount of privilege taxes paid to this City or

charged separately to the speculative builder by a construction contractor

on the gross income derived by said person from the construction of any

improvement to the real property

C No credits provided herein may be claimed until such time that the

gross income against which said credits apply is reported

Section 4 Section91417 of the Tax Code of the City of Coolidge is amended to read

Sec91417 Construction contractiog ownerbuilders who are not speculative builders

a At the expiration of twenryfour 24 months after improvement to the property is

substantially complete the tax liability for an ownerbuilder who is not a speculative
builder shall be at an amount equal to four percent 4 of

1 the gross income from the activity of construction contracting upon the real

property in question which was realized by those construction contractors to

wliom the ownerbuilder provided written declaration that they were not

responsible for the taxes as prescribed iu subsection91415c2 and



2 the purchase of tangible personal property for incorporation into any

improvement to real property computed on the sales price
b For taxable periods beginning from and after July l 2008 the poriion of gross

proceeds of sales or gross income attributable to the actual direct costs of providing
architectural or engineering services that are incorporated in a contract is not subject to

tax under this section For the purposcs of this subsection direct costs means the

portion of the aetual costs that are directly expended in providing architectural or

engineering services

c The tax liability oftlis Section is subject to the following provisions relating to

exemptions deductions and tax credits

1 Exemptions
A The gross proceeds of sales or gross income attributable to the

purchase of machinery equipment or other tangible personal property that

is exempt from or deductible from privilege or use tax under

i Section91465 subsections g and p
ii Section91660 subsections g and p
shall be exempt or deductible respectively from the tax imposed
bv this Section

B The gross proceeds of sales or gross income received from a contract

for the construction of an environmentally controlled facility for Che

raising of poultry for the production of eggs and the sorting or cooling and

packaging of eggs shall be eaempt from the tax imposed under this

Section

C The gross proceeds of sales or gross income that is derived from the

installation assembly repair or maintenance of cleanrooms that are

deducted from the tax base of the retail classification pursuant to Section

91465 subsection g shall be exempt from the tax imposed under this

Section

D The gross proceeds of sales or gross income that is derived from a

contract entered into with a person who is engaged in the commercial

production of livestock livestock products or agricultural horticultural
viticultural or floricultural crops or products in this state for the

construction alteration repair improvement movement wrecking or

demolition or addition to or subtraction from any building highway road
excavation manufactured building or other structure project development
or improvemenl used directly and primarily to prevent monitor control or

reduce air water or land pollution shall be exempt from the tax imposed
under this Section

E Any amount attributable to development fees that are incurred in

relation to lhe construction development or improvement of real property

and paid by the laxpayer as defined in the model city tax code or by a

contractor providing services to the taxpayer shall be exempt from the tax

imposed under this section Por the purposes of this paragraph
i the attributable amount shall not exceed the value of the

development fecs actually imposed



ii the attributable amount is equal to the total amount of

development fecs paid by the taxpayer or by a contractor providing
services to thc taxpayer and the total development fees credited in

exchange for the construction of contribution to or dedication of

real property for providing public infrastructure public safety or

other public services necessary to the development The real

property must be the subject of the development fees

iii development fees means fees imposed to offset capital costs

of providing public infrastructure public safety or other public
services to a developinent and authorized pursuant to ARS

Section946305ARS Section 111 02 or f1RS Tifle 48

regardless of the jurisdiction to which the fees are paid
2 Deductions

A All amounts subject to the tax slall be allowed a deduction in the

amount of thirtyfive percent 35
B The gross proceeds of sales or gross income that is derived from a

contract entered into for the installation assembly repair or maintenance

of incomeproducing capital equipment as defined in Section91ll 0
that is deducted from the retail classification pursuant to Section 91

465g that does not becomc a permanent attachtnent to a building
highway road raitroad excavation or manufactured building or other

structure project development or improvement shall be exempt from the

tax imposed by this Section If the ownership of the realry is separate from

the ownership of the incomeproducing capital equipment the

determination as to permanent attachment shall be made as if the

ownership was the same The deduction provided in this paragraph does

not include gross proceeds of salcs or gross income from that portion of

any contracting activiry which consists of the development of or

modification to real property in order to facilitate the installation

assembly repair maintenance or removal of the incomeproducing capital

equipment For purposes of this paragraph permanent attachment means

at least one of the following
i to be incorporated into real properry

ii to become so affixed to real property that it becomes part of the

real properiy

iii to be so attached to real property that removal would cause

substantial damage to the real property from which it is removed

C For taxable periods beginning from and afrer July 1 2008 and ending
before January 19112017 the gross proceeds of sales or gross income

derived from a contract to provide and install a solar energy device The

contractor shall register witli the department of revenue as a solar energy

contraclor By registering tle contractor acknowledges that it will make

its books and records relating to sales of solar energy dcvices available to

the department of revenue and the city as applicable for examination

3 Tax credits



The following tax credits are available to ownerbuilders and speculative builders
not to exceed the tax liability against which such credits apply provided such

credits are documented to the satisfaction of the tax collector

A A tax credit equal to the amount of ciry privilege or use tax or the

equivalent excise tax paid directly to a taxing jurisdiction or as a

separately itemized charge paid directly to the vendor with respect to the

tangible personal property incorporated into the said structure or

improvement to real properry undertaken by the ownerbuilder or

speculative builder

B A tax credit equal to the amount of privilege taxes paid to this Ciry or

charged separately to the speculative builder by a construction contractor

on the gross income derived by said person from the construction of any

improvement to the real property

C No credits provided herein may be claimed until such time that the

gross income against which said credits apply is mported
d The limitation period for the assessment of taxes imposed by this Section is measured

based upon when such liability is reportable that is in the reporting period thal

encompasses tbe twentyfifth 25th month after said unit or project was substantially

complete Interest and penalties as provided in Section91540 will be based on

repoRable date

e Reserved

Section 5 Section91445 of the Tax Code of the City of Coolidge is amended to read

Sec91445 Rental Icasing and Iicensing for use of real property

a The tax rate shall be aC an amount equal to three percent 3 of the gross income

from the business activity upon every person engaging or continuing in the business of

leasing or renting real property located within the City for a consideration to the tenant in

actual possession or the licensing for use of real property to the final licensee located

within the City Por a consideration including any improvements rights or interest in such

property provided further that

I Payments made by the lessee to or on behalf of the lessor for property taxes

repairs or improvements are considered to be part of the taxable gross income

2 Charges for such items as telecoinmunications utilities pet fees or

maintenance are considered to be part of the tarable gross income

3 However if the lessor engages in telecommunication activity as evidenced by
installing individual metering equipment and by billing each tenant based upon

actual usage such activity is taxable under Section91470

b If individual utility meters have been installed for each tenant and the lessor separately
charges each single tenant for the exact billing from the utility company such charges are

exempt

c Charges by a qualifying hospital qualifying community health center or a qualifying
bealth care organization to patients of such facilities for usc of rooms or other real

property during the course of their treatment by such facilities are exempt

d Charges for joint pole usage by a person engaged in the business of providing or



furnishing utility or telecommunication services to another person engaged in the

business of providing or fumishing utilit or telecommunication services are exempt from

the tax imposed by this Section

c Reserved
A person who has less than three 3 apartments houses trailer spaces or other

lodging spaces rented leased or licensed or available for rent lease or license within the

State and no units of commercial propert for rent lease or license within the State is

not deemed to be in the rental business and is therePore exempt from the taY imposed by
this Section on such income However a person who has one 1 or more units of

conunercial properry is subject to the tax imposed by this Section on rental lease and

license income from all such lodging spaces and commercial units of real estate even

though said person may have fewer than three 3 lodging spaces

g Reserved
h Reserved
i Reserved
j Exempt from the tax imposed by this Section is gross income derived from the

activities taxable under Section91444 of this code

k Reserved
1 Reserved
m Reserved
n Notwithstanding the provisions of Section91200b the fair market value of one 1

apartment in an apariment complex provided rent free to an employee of the apartment

complex is not subject to the tax imposed by this Section For an apartment complex with

more than fifty 50 units an additional apartment provided rent free to an employee for

every additional fifiy 50 units is not subject to the tax imposed by this Section

o Ineome derived from incarcerating or detaining prisoners who are under the

jurisdiction of the United States this State or any other state or a political subdivision of

this State or of any other state in a privately operated prison jail or detention facility is

exempt from the tax imposed by this Section

p Charges by any hospital any licensed nursing care institution or any kidney dialysis

facility to patients of such facilities for the use of rooms or other real properry during the

course of their treatment by such facilities are exempt

q Charges to patients receiving personal caze or directed care by any licensed

assisted living facility licensed assisted living center or licensed assisted living home as

defined and licensed pursuant to Chapter 4 Title 36 Arizona Revised Statutes and Title 9

of the Arizona Administrative Code are exempt

r Income received from the rental of an lowincome uniC as established under Section

42 oPthe Internal Revenue Code including the lowincome housing credit provided by
IRC Section 42 to the extent that the collection of tax on rental income causes the gross
rent defined by RC Section 42 to exceed the income limitation for the lowincome unit

is exempt This exemption also applies to income received from the rental of individual

rental units subject to statutory or regulatory lowincome uniY rcnt restrictions similar to

IRC Section 42 to the extent that the collection of tax from the tenant causes the rental

receipts to exceed a rent restriction for the lowincome unit This subsection also applies
to rent received by a person other than the owner or lessor of the lowincome unit



including a broker This subsection does not apply unless a taxpayer maintains the

documentation to support the qualification of a unit as a lowincome unit the gross rent

limitation for the unit and the rent received from that unit

S TIIE GROSS PROCEEDS OF SATrS OR GROSS INCOMC DERIVED FROM A

COMMERCIAL LEASE 1N UHICH A RECIPROCAL INSURER OR A

CORPORATION LEASGS REAL PROPERTY TO AN AFFILIATED CORPORATION

POR THE PURPOSGS OF TIS PARAGRAPH

l CORPORATION b4EANS A CORPOItATION THAT

MEETS ONE OP THE FOLLOVINGCONDTIONS

A1 THE CORPORATION OWIS OR CONTROLS AT LEAS1

EIGHTY PER CrNT OP THE LESSOR

Rl TH CORPORATION S AT LEAST EiGHTY PER CENL OWNED

OR CONCROLLED BY TIIE LESSOR

THE CORPORATION 1S AT LEAST EIGHTY PFR CENTONED

OR CONTROLLED 13Y A CORPORA7lON THAT ALSO OWIS OR

CONTROLS AT LrAST EIGHTY PER CENT OF THELSSOR

D THE CORPORAflOi IS AT LEAST EIGHTY PER CENTONED

OR CONTROLLID BY A CORPORATION TIIAT IS AT LLAST

EIGHTY PR CENT OVJNED OR CONTROLLED BY A

IZECIPROCAL 1NSURER

2 FOR ThIE PURfOSS OF SUBSECTION 1 OVdNERSHIP AND

CONTROL ARL DETERMINED BY REFERENCE TO TH VOTING

SHARES OP A CORIOLAT107V

RECIPROCALIISURER HAS THL SA4E MEANIlGAS

PRESCRIBLD 1N ARS SECTION 20762

Section 6 Section91595 of the Tax Code of the City of Coolidge is amended to read

Sec91595 Collection of taxes when there is successiou in andor cessation of business

a ln addition to any remedy provided elsewhere in this City Code thaC may apply the

Tax Collector may apply the provisions of subsections b through d below concerning
the collection of taxes when there is succession in andor cessation of business

b The taxes imposed by this Chapter are a lien on the property of any person subject to

this Chapter who sells his business or stock of goods or quits his business if the person

fails to make a final return and payment of the tax within fifteen 15 days afrer selling or

quitting his business

c Any person who purchases or who acquires by foreclosure by sale under trust deed

or warranty deed in lieu of foreclosure or by any other method improved real property or

a portion of improved real property for which the Privilege Tax imposed by this Chapter
has not been paid shall be responsible for payment of such tax as a speculative builder or

owner builder as provided in Sections9416 and91417

1 ANY PERSON HO IS A CREDITOR OR AN AFFILIAT OF

CRllITOR WHO ACQUI2LS IMPROVED RLAL PROPERTY DIRGC1LY



ORIITDTRLCTLY FROM TH CRLDITORSDEBCOR I3Y ANY MEANS

SET FORTH IN TH1S SUBSrCT10N SHALL PAY TIIE TAY BASEll ON

THE AMOUNI RECIIVED BY THE CRIDTOR OR ITS APIILAT N A

SUBSLOUENT SALE OF SUCHIAPROVED RlAL PROPERTY TO A

PARTl UNRLLATED TO THC CREDI7OR RFGARDLESS OF HEN

SUCH SUBSEQUENT SALE1AKES PLACE SUCH TAX SI3ALL BE D1E

IN THE MONTH FOLLOING TFIE MONIH 11 WHICH TIE SALE OP THE

IA4PROVED REAL PROPLRTY BYIHG CRDITOR ORI1S AFPILIATG

OCCURS NOTRITHSTANDING CHE POREGOING IF TNT REAL

PROPERTY MLETS TIIE DEFINITION OF PARTIATLY IMPROVED

RESIDGNTIAL REAL PROPERIY 1NSCTION9116A4 AND ALL OF

THE REQUIRGMENTS OF SECIION9I416B4 ARG MET BY THE

PARTIES TO TIIE SUBSEQUENT SALE TRANSACTION TIIEN THF TAX

SHALL NOT APPLY TO THE SUBSEQUENT SALE

2 1N THE EVENT A CRDITOR OR ITS AFFILIATE USES THE

ACOUIRED IMPROVID REAL PROPGRTY POR ANY BUSTtESS

PURPOSE OTHLRTIIAN OPERATl7G THE PROPERTY IN THE MAIrNR

II HICH T WAS OPERATED ORlAS INTENDED TO BE OPERATBD

BFORE THE ACQUISITION OR IN ANY OTHER DQAN7ERUIRELATED

TO SELLIIGTIE PROPER7Y TI iE TAX SHALL BE DUE THE GROSS

IICOME UPON WHTCH THE TAC SHALL BE DETERMINID PURSUANT

TO SECTIONS91416 AND91417 SHALL BE TH FAIR MARKLT

VALliE OF THE IMPROVED REAL PROPGRTY AS OF THE DATG OF

ACQUISITION TIIE TAX SHALL 13L DUE IN THE MONTH FOLLOWING

T1IL MONTH INIIICH SUCH PIRST BUSINrSS US OCCURS WHrN

f1PPLICABLE THE CREDIT BID SHALL BE DEEMED TO BE TH FAIR

MARKET VALUG OF THE PROPLKTY AS OF THE llATE OF

ACQUISITION

3 ONCG THE SUBSEOUENT SALE BY THE CREDITOR OR 1TS

AFPILIATE HAS OCCURRED AND THF CRED11OR OR TTS AFFILIATE

HAS PAID THE TAX DUG FROM IT PURSUANT TO THIS SUBSCCTION

NEITHER THE CREDITOR NOR ITS 9FPILIATE NOR ANY PUTURE

OWNER SHALL B LIABLE FOR ANY OU7STAIDING TAX PENALTIES

OR INTEREST7HAT MAY CONTINUE TO BE DUE FROM TH DEBTOR

BASED ON THE TRANSFER FROM THE DEBTOR TO THE CREDITOR OR

ITS AFFILIATE

4 iF THF TAX LIABILITY in9POSED BY EITIIER SECTION91416 OR

SECTION91417 ON THE TRANSFGR OF THE IMPROVD REAL

PROPERTY TO THE CREDITOR OR iTS AFFILIATG OR ANY PARI

THEREOF S PAID TO THG TAX COLLECTOR BY THE llE6TOR

SUBSEQUGNT TO PAYANTOF THE TAX BY THC CREDITOI2 OR ITS

A1FLIATE THL AMOiNT SO PAID MAY CONSTITUTE A CREDIT AS

EOUIfABLY DETERMNED BY THE IAX COLLECTOR IN GOOD FAITH

AGAINSZ THE TAX IMPOSED ON THE CREDITOR OR ITS AFFILIATE BY

EICHLR PARAGRAPH 1 OR PARAGRAPH 2 OP THIS SUBSEG710N



NOTWITHSTANDING ANYTHTNG IN TH1S CHAPTER TO THE

CONTRARYIF A CRGDITOR OR ITS AFFILIATE IS SUI3JECT TO TAX AS

DESCRTBGD IN PARAGRt1PH 1 OR PARAGRAPH 2 OF THIS SUBSFCl70N

AND SUCII CREDITOR OR AFFILIATE 1IAS NOT PREVIOUSLY BEEN

REOU1K TO BE LICENSGD SUCH Cl2EDITOR OR AFFILIATE SHALL

BECOMI LICENSED NO LATER1HAN THE DATE ON WH1CH THE TAX

IS DUE

d A persons successors or assignees shall withhold from the purchase money an

amount sufficient to cover the taxes required to be paid and interest or penalties due and

payable until the former owner produces a receipt from the Tax Collector showing that

all Ciry tax has been paid or a certificate stating that no amount is due as then shown by
the records of the Tax Collector The Tax Collector shall respond to a request from the

seller for a certificate within fifteen 15 days by either providing the certificate or a

written notice stating why the certificate cannot be issued

1 if a subsequent audit shows a deficiency arising bePore the sale of the

business the deficiency is an obligation of the seller and does not constitute a

liability against a buyer who has received a certificate from the Tax Collector

2 If the purchaser of a business or stock of goods fails to obtain a certificate as

providcd by this Section he is personally liable for payment of the amount of

taxes required to be paid by the former owner on account of the business so

purchased with interest and penalties accrued by the former owner or assignees

Section 6 Section91660 of the Tax Code of the City of Coolidge is amended to read

Sec91660 Use tax exemptions
The storage or use in this City of the following tangible personal property is exempt from the Use

Tax imposed by this Article

a tangible personal property brought into the Ciry by an individual who was not a

resident oP the City at the time the property was acquired for his own use if the first

actual use of such property was outside the City unless such property is used in

conducting a business in this City
b tangible personal property the value of which does not exceed the amount of one

thousand dollars1000 per item acquired by an individual outside the limits ofthe

City for his personal use and enjoyment
c charges for delivery installation or other customer services as prescribed by
Regulation
d charges for repair services as prescribed by Regulation
e separately itemized charges for warranty maintenance and service contracts

fl prosthetics
g incomeproducing capital equipment
h rental equipment and renta supplies

i mining and metallurgical supplies
j motor vehicle fuel and use fuel which are used upon the highways of this State and

upon which a tax has been imposed under the provisions of Article I or II Chapter 16
1itle 28 Arizona Reviscd Statutes



k tangible personal property purchased by a construction contractor but not an owner

builder when such person holds a valid Privilege License for engaging or continuing in

the business of construction contracting and where the property acquired is incorporated
into any structure or improvement to real property in fulfillment of a construction

contract

l sales of motor vehicles to nonresidents of this State for use outside this State if the

vendor ships or delivers the motor vellicle to a destination outside this State

m tangible personal property which directly enters into and becomes an ingredient or

component part of a product sold in fhe regular course of the business ofjob prioting

manufacturing or publication of newspapers magazines or other periodicals Tangible

personal property which is consumed or used up in a manufacmring job printing
publishing or production proeess is not an ingredient nor component parl of a product

n rental leasing or licensing for use of film tape or slides by a theater or other person

taxed under Section91410 or by a radio station television station or subscription
television system

o food served to patrons for a consideration by any person engaged in a business

properly licensed and taxed under Section91455 but not food consumed by owners

agents or employees of such business

p tangible personal property acquired by a qualifying hospital qualifying community
health center or a qualifying health care organization except when the property is in fact

used in activities resulting in gross income from unrelated business income as tbat term is

defined in 26USC Section 512

q food purchased witl food stamps provided through the food stamp program

established by the Food Stamp Act of 1977 PL 95ll 3 91 Stat 9587USC Section

2011 et seq or purchased with food instruments issued under Section 17 of the Child

Nutrition Act PL95627 92 Stat 3603 and PL 99669 Section 4302 42 United

States Code Section 1786

rReserved

1 Reserved
2 Reserved
3 Reserved
4 Reserved

s groundwater measuring devices required by ARS Section 45604

t Reserved
u aircraft acquired Ior use outside the State as prescribed by Regulation
v sales oPfood products by producers as provided for by ARS Sections35613562

and 3563

w Reserved
x Reserved
y Reserved
z tangible personal property used or stored by this City
aa tangible persoal properry used in remediation contracting as defined in Section 91

100 and Regulation911005

bb matcrials that are purchased by or for publicly funded libraries including school

district ibraries charter school libraries communiCy college libraries state university



libraries or federal state counry or municipal libraries for use by the public as follows

1 printed or photographic materials

2 electronic ordiital media materials

cc food beverages condimenls and accessories used for serving food and beverages by
a commercial airline as defined inARS 425061A49 that serves the food and

beverages to its passengers without additional charge for consumption in flight For the

purposes of this subsection accessories means paper plates plastic eating utensils

napkins paper cups drinking straws paper sacks or other disposable containers or other

items which facilitate the consumption of the food

dd wireless telecommunication equipment that is held for sale or transfer to a customer

as an inducement to enter into ar continue a contract for telecommunication services that

are taxable under Section91470

ee Reserved
f altemative fuel as defined inARS 1215 by a used oil fuel bumer who has

received a Department of Environmental Quality permit to burn used oil or used oil fuel

underARS 49426 or 49480

gg food beverages condiments and accessories purchased by or for a public
educational entity pursuant to any of the provisions of Title 15 Arizona Revised

Statutes to the extent such items are to be prepared or served to individuals for

consumption on the premises of a public educational entity during school hours For the

purposes of this subsection accessories means paper plates plastic eating utensils

napkins paper cups drinking straws paper sacks or other disposable containers or other

items which facilitate the consumption of the food

hh personal hygiene items purchased by a person engaged in the business of and subject
to tax under Section91444 of this code if the tangible personal property is furnished

without additional charge to and intended to be consumed by the person during his

occupancy

ii the diversion of gas from a pipeline by a person engaged in the business of operating a

natural or artificial gas pipeline for the sole purpose of fueling compressor equipment to

pressurize the pipeline is not a sale of the gas to the operator of the pipeline

jj food beverages condimenls and accessories purchased by ar for a nonprofit
charitable organization that has qualified as an exempt organization under 26 US0

Section 501c3 and regularly serves meals to the needy and indigent on a continuing
basis at no cost For the purposes of this subsection accessories means paper plates

plastic eating utensils napkins paper cups drinking straws paper sacks or other

disposable containers or other items which facilitate the consumption of the food

kk sales of motor vehieles that use alternafive fuel if such vehicle was manufactured as

a diesel fuel vehicle and converted to operate on alternative fuel and sales of equipment
that is installed in a conventional diesel fuel motor vehicle to convert the vehicle to

operate on an alternative fuel as defined in ARS 1215

I I TIIE STORAGE USE OR CONSUD2PT10N OF TANGIBLEPRSONAL

PROPRTY IN THG CITY OR TOWN BY A SCHOOL DISTRICC OR CHARTER

SCHOOL



RESOLUTION No I126

A 12ESOLUTION OF THE C1TY COOLIDGE ARIZONA SUPPORTING

ANOTHER POSSIBLE ALIGNMENT FOR THE PLANNED NORTH

SOUTH FREEWAY AND DISCOURAGING THE USE OF EMINENT

DOMAIN BY AUTHORIZING llENSITY TRANSFERS FOR AFFECTED

PROPERTY OWNERS DEDICATING LAND FOR THE NECESSARY

RIGHTSOFWAY

WHEREAS the Arizona Department of Transportation ADOT and the Federal

Highway Administration FHWA have already staried a formal corridor study to evaluate

potential routes for a proposed transportation facility connecting Interstate 10 to US Highway 60

through Pinal County NorthSouth Freeway and

WHEREAS ADOT and FHWA have conducted extensive public outreach including a

public mecting in Coolidge to both provide information to and receive feedback from the City
and its residents conceming the I3orthSouth Freeway and

WHEREAS the study comdor that has been identified for the alignment of the North

South Freeway runs through part of the City of Coolidge and its planning area and

WHEREAS the proposed NorthSouth Freeway will provide significant opportunities
for enhancement of the Citys economy and

WHEREAS ADOT and FHWA are still considering a number of proposed alignments
but have not yet approved a single alignment for the NorthSouth Freeway nor have they

completed a final Environmental Impact Statement and

WHEREAS the City of Coolidge wishes to respect the desires of the residents and

property owners who will be most directly affected by the location of this facility and

WHEREAS the NorthSouth Freeway will affect traffic pattems in and around the Ciry
and the City wants to have input into the alignment in the hope that ADOT and FHWA indentify
an alignment that best serves the needs of our residents and property owners and

WHEREAS the City Council finds that the proposed alignment advances the public
health safety and welfare in a number of ways including but not limited to 1 enhancing the

communitys infrastructure and transportation 2 providing opportunities for commercial and

residentia development and 3 promoting the Citys development goals and

WHEREAS it is preferable and more cost effective if private property owners

voluntarily transfer property for the required RightsofWay rather than being compelled to do so

through eminent domain and

WHEREAS the City has previously adopted Resolution 0818 which supports density
transfers in cases where owners voluntarily dedicate property for required RightsofWay for

such transportation improvements and



WHEREAS the City has previously adopted Rcsolution No 1112 which supports
another possible alignment

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF

COOLIDGE ARIZONA A MAJOKITY OF ITS MEMBERS CONCURRING THAT

Section 1 The City supports alignments generally consistent with the ones shown in

Resolution No l112 and Resolution No ll26

Section 2 The City encourages private properiy owners to voluntarily transfer land

to AD01 for the NorthSouth Freeway thereby minimizing the need to apply eminent domain

processes

Section 3 The City authorizes the City Manager to negotiate appropriate density
transfers consistent with the language and intent of Resolution 0818 with property owners who

voluntarily make such land transfers

Section 4 This Resolution shall become effective thirty 30 days following its

passage

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Mayor and City Council of the City of Coolidge
Arizona this 27 day of June 2011

Thomas R Shope Mayor

ATTEST APPROVED AS TO FORM

Norma Ortiz City Clerk Denis Fitzgibbons City Attorney



City of Mesa Pinal County Farms

G x au

awsyY t s s
Y

L css

kh5 s8 EI a p
R

ri
r 3

lf3 tY
r k IY si

e f 1

e r x a

7 aC r

i 3f prtr r
Fs y riak Ttl

287 g

8
Y r ic

kXrtr
c v i T

ro S r2 g t 7
z saR

CtlACQunG1

Tr yi5
L 1 i k

c
1

0 0 0 0 u g

t
x

e z

xsw
tK

r l J S

asu
s

3 n
e i

s

E
cEZ S

r

i s iYka
ticc 9 Vtnt 1 3 je

erf
3

t i

s

ts k rt k
ss t S

m t s i s

d i s Y 2

67

rY gy F d T i
e i 7 1 ac

r et s
i Y r

y
r

d

I F qs
t

T

z87

i
b

r

287 t

F
A

uf Iv n r

44rixEZwF a P

pt
SR 4r r i

x z
w fiI

A ss f 4V i
c y r

y z 3c yn t s i 5 ri F
w f

a
r

r Y a Q sr r

4
u

K 4

Rsyzsis10z dGr r i

r

y iy6YSk r

5

Td
T

3i a M 101ii tr
a YYrii1 t

zP
x RR s armrb

G

rxsaT cat a5o L rT ilriri
CM t T4 2 3 r

r i t j1
y T

ae R e x irc
iEyri4 x r y i

r rrc Y t

FTe si ss c

d

s x
E zt s

a 4 Se 4 Pt h Q rFi i yd
3n ix

e
d qki

i

2
s

i s G r
rsi i

E z t

ex z
87

y n m NW PretertetlRl9nment
j

a g y t 9 ti
i x Oa Sl

y rt d InlercM1an9es

ti rt x
Z g

C y of Mesa Ownetl Properry
i

i 1 g w

t t s r t 1 3 PoposedAnneselon
F yGa

5 a 5 F c p CaaltlgePlanningAreaBountlary
M

eooliaHe e ry lm ts

y
ay

I NATHAN lNC i
E rvi gneaeoaay

i
r

a

1s a f
k aoameomMnoaNoa



AGENDA ITEM L D
DATE 621 201 I

CITY OF COOLIDGE

CITY COUNCIL ACTION FORM

SUBJECT Extension of Development STAFF PRESENTER C Alton 3ruce

Agreement for Coolidge Crossroads

RECOMMENDATION

Staff recommends that Council reapprove the Amendment and Extension to the Development
Agreement for Coolidge Gossroads

DISCUSSION

On June 13 2011 the Council adopted the referenced Amendment and Extension to the

Developmenf Agreement fot Coolidge Crossroads That agreement was between the City of

Coolidge and Specialty Trust Ina Subsequent to the meeting Beus Gilbert the attorneys who

approached the Ciry of this issue became aware and informed us that the title to the property and

consequently the appropriate party to the Amendment was a company called SAC Il a wholly
owned subsidiary of Specialty Trust This Amendment and Extension is being brought back

before the correct this oversight

The only difference between the attached agreement and the one adopted on June 13 is that it

clarifies that the owner of the property and the parry to the Agreement is this subsidiary of

Specialty Trust rather than the parent company

FISCAL IMPACT

None anticipated in the near future

Attachments

Resolution No 1 127 with Revised Amendment to PADA for Coolidge Crossroads

REVIEWED BY PREPARED BY

r et CQ13
Robertl ey ity Ma

ager
C Alton Bruce Growt Mgmt Director

i
r

Lisa Ea ella Finance Director

CVDocumenls and SellinssnortnaoALocal 5ettingsTemporaq lntemet FflesVOLKD2Aenda Transmitml Coolidge Crossroads

extension adoptreviscd une 27doc Pae Of

62I201 I



RESOLUTION No 1127

A RESOLUTION OF THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE

CITY OF COOLIDGE ARIZONA AfPROVING AND ADOPTING

THE AMENDMENT TO PREANNEXATION AND DEVELOPMENT

AGREEMENT BETWEEN TFIE CITY OF COOLIDGF AND SAC II A

NEVADA CORPORATION A WHOLLYOWNED SUBSIDIARY OF

SPECIALTY TRUST INC A MARYLAND CORPORATION
SUCCESSORININTEREST TO SUGGS HOMES INC AN

ARIZONA CORPORATION IN COMPLIANCE WITH ARS 9
50005

WHEREAS pursuant to ARS950005 the City of Coolidge and Suggs Homes

Inc an Ariaona corporation entered into that certain PreAnnexation and Development
Agreement recorded on November 6 2000 at Fee No 2000046329 in the Official Records

of Pinal County Recorder the Original AgreemenY

WHEREAS the Amendment to the Original Agreement approved by Resolution No

1121 on June 13 2011 did not include SAC I a Nevada corporation as the owner or

developer

WHEREAS the City of Coolidge believcs that it is in the best interest of the City to

amend the Original Agreement and enter into this corrected Amendment to PreAnnexation

and Developmcnt Agreement

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and City Council of the

Ciry of Coolidge Arizona as follows

Section 1 The City of Coolidge by the requisite vote of its City Council hereby
approves and adopts and authorizes and instructs its Mayor on behalf of the City of Coolidge
to enter into the Amendment to PreAnnexation and Development Agreement with SAC 11 a

Nevada corporation a whollyowned subsidiary of Specialty Trust Inc a Maryland

corporation successorin interest to Suggs Homes Inc an Arizona corporation in the form

attached to and made a part of this Resolution

Seetion 2 Pursuant to ARS950005G the provisions of this Resolution are

not enacted as an emergency measure and shall not be effective for thiRy 30 days

PASSED AND AllOPTED by the Mayor and City Council of the City of Coolidge
Arizona this 27 day of June 201 I

Mayor

ATTEST APPROVED AS TO FORM

City Clerk City Attorney



WHEN RECORDED RETURN TO

City Clerk

City of Coolidge
130 W Central Avenue Coolidge Arizona 85128

AMENDMENT TOPREANNEXATION AND DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT

This Amendment dated this day of June 20ll AmendmenY to the Pre

Annexation and Development Agreeinent dated October 26 2000 by and between fhe CITY OF

COOLIDGE an Arizona municipal corporation the City and SAC II a Nevada corporation
Developer a whollyowned subsidiary of SPECIALTY TRUST INC a Mazyland

corporation and successorininterest to SUGGS HOMES INC an Arizona corporation

Suggs Homes

RECITAL5

A O or about Oclober 26 2000 the Ciry entered into a PreAnnexation and

Development Agreement Agreemenf with Suggs Homes covering approximately 214 acres

more or ess more specifically described in Exhibit A attached hereto and made a part hereof

the Property of which approximately 674 acres were located within the City City

Property and approximately 1495 acres were located in the County of Pinal County

Property

B Among its terms the Agreement called Por Yhe annexation of the County Property
and on November 13 2000 the City Council of the City approved Ordinance No 0019

annexing the County Property inlo the City

C On November 27 2000 pursuant to Ordinance No 0020 the City reaffirmed the

rezoning of the Property to Planned Area Development

D Subsequently Developer acquired the Property and requested that the Ciry
Council extend the terms of the Agreement which the City Council agreed to do on January 10

2011 subject to the negotiation of this Amendment by the Citys staff

Document Number ll 8320 Version 41
HGDJII18320v4Amendmeni ooAnmsutionendDOrolopmcn AgrccmenDOC



AGREEMENT

NOWTHREPOR the City and Developer agree to amend the Agreement as follows

1 Capitalized Tern1s All capitalized terms not otherwise defined herein shall have

the same meaning as in the Agreement

2 Application of the Agreement As annexation of the County Property has

occurred the Agreement as amended by this Amendment and the PAD are operative as to the

entire Property

3 Term Notwithstanding anyfhing to the contrary contained in the Agreement the

parties acknowledge that the term of the Agreement shall be extended until January 31 2021

Thus the phrase within ten 10 years of annexation of the County Property into the corporate
limits of the City in Sectionlb is hereby deleted and the phrase by January 31 2021

inserted and the phrase until the date ten 10 years from the date of this Agreement in Section

13a is hereby deleted and the phrase until January 31 2021 is inserted and the phrase ten

10 years from the date of this Agreement in Section 14 is hereby deleted and the phrase until

January 31 2021 is hereby inserted

4 Fire Station Payments The following provisions are added as Section 213 to the

Agreement

213 Fire Station Payments

a Che Property requires fire service to be provided by a fire

station the Serving Fire Station City and Developer agree that the

initial Developers fee for fire service from the Serving Fire Stafion for the

Property shall be Twenty Five Thousand Six Hundred Eighty and no100

Dollars 2568000 payable for the first year as follows Twelve

Thousand Eight Hundred Forty and no100 Dollars 1284000 on

receipt of the grading permit for the Property and Twelve Thousand Eight
Hundred Forly and no100 Dollars 1284000payable on the six month

anniversary date of the issuance of the first grading permit for the

Property

b Beginning on the one 1 year anniversary date of the

issuance of the first residential building permit for the Property the Ciry
and Developer agree the Developers payment for service from the Serving
Fire Station shall be calculated and paid on the basis of TwoIIundred

Forty and no100 Dollars 24000 per gross acre of the Property the
Fire Service PaymenY The Fire Service Payment for the Property shall

be paid aunually in two 2 equal installments on the anniversary date of

the issuance of the first residential building permit for the Property and six

6 months thereafter The Propertys Fire Service Payment may be

allocated to residential development projects on the Property Project
on a per gross acre basis and thereafter the residential homebuilder for the



Project shall be liable to pay on the same basis and at the same times as

set forth above the ProjecCs pro rata share of the Fire Service Payment A

Projectsobligation to pay the Fire Service Payment shall be reduced as set

forth hereafter

i Upon the issuance by the City of certificates of

occupancy for 35 of the Total Lot Count as defined hereafter for the

Property the amount of each semiaimual installment payment of the Fire

Service Payment for that Property shall be reduced by 30 and

ii Upon the issuance by the City of certificates of

occupancy for 50 of the Total Lot Count for the Property the amount of

each semiannual installment payment of the Fire Service Payment for that

Property shall be reduced by 45 and

iii Upon the issuance by the City of certificates of

occupancy for 80 of the Total Lot Count for the Property the amount of

each semiannual installment payment of the Fire Service Payment for that

Property shall be reduced by 7 and

iv Upon the issuance by the City of certificates of

occupancy for 90 of the Total Lot Count for the Property the Developer
or the owner of the Property as applicable shall be released from its

obligation to pay any Fire Service Payment set forth in this Amendment

v Total Lot CounY shall mean vith respect to the

Property the total number of residential lots established for the Property
as set forth in any approved amendment to the PAD Plan or approved plat
provided bowever such total may be reduced to the number of lots shown

on an approved plat if such number is less than the number of lots shown

in the previously approved PAD Plan

vi In no event sball Developers Fire Service Payment
in any one year exceed 55000

vii Failure by the Developer of the Property to

promptly pay the amount owed pursuant to this Section 213 will

constitute a breach of this Amendment and the Ciry may collect such

amounts owing by utilizing the remedies set forth in Section 33 of the

Agreement and further may withhold the issuance of building permits for

improvements on the Property until such amount is paid



5 Developer Representative The parties acknowledge that the Developer

Representative shall be that person whom the Developer designates to the City by written notice

in accordance with Section 41 of the Agreement

6 Developer as Successor to Sus Homes Ine The City recognizes and

acknowledges that Developer and its successors and assigns have succeeded to the rights and

obligations of Suggs Homes Inc as the Developer under the Agreement

7 Notices All Notices to Developer are to go to SAC II a Nevada corporation
6160 Plumas Street Reno Nevada 89054 Attention President with a copy to Beus Gilbert

PLLC 4800 North Scottsdale Road Suite 6000 Scottsdale Arizona 85251 Attention Paul E

Gilbert Esq

8 General Provisions

a Conflicts In the event the provisions of this Amendment conflict with the

Agreement the provisions of this Amendment shall govem and shall take precedence over the

terns of the Agreement

b Waiver No delay in exercising any right or remedy shall constitute a

waiver thereof and no waiver by the City ar the Developer of the breach of any covenant of this

Amendment shall be construed as a waiver of any preceding or succeeding breach of the same or

any other covenant or condition of this Amendment

c Counterparts This Amendment may be executed in two or more

counterparts each of which shall be deemed an original but all of which together shall constitute

one and the same instrument The signature pages from one or more counterparts may be

removed from such counterparts and such signature pages all attached to a single instrument so

that the signatures of all parties may be physically attached to a single document

d Headins The descriptive headings of the paragraphs of this Amendment

are inserted for convenience only and shall not control or affect the meaning or construction of

any of the provisions hereof

e Exhibits and Recitals Any exhibit attached hereto and the recitals set

forth herein shall be deemed to have been incorporated herein by this reference with the same

force and effect as if fully set forth in the body hereof

Further Acts Each of the parties hereto shall promptly and expeditiously
execute and deliver all such documents and perform all such acYs as reasonably necessary from

time to time to carry out the matters contemplated by this Amendment

g Future Effect

i Time of Essence and Successors Time is of the essence of this

Amendment All of the provisions hereof shall inure to the benefit of and be binding upon the

successors and assigns of the parties hereto pursuant to ARS900005D except as provided
below provided however the Developers rights and obligations may only be assigned to a



person or entity that has acquired the Propey or a portion thereof and only by a written

instrument recorded in the Official Records of Pinal County Arizona whereby Developer
expressly assigns such rights and obligations If Developer desires to make an assignment to a

person who is not an affiliate of Developer then such assignment shall be subject to the approval
of the City such approval to not be unreasonably withheld or delayed Upon Assignment
Developersassigns shall be responsible for its direct and prorata share of all sums expended
pursuant hereto and City hereby releases Developer from all obligations contained herein

monetary or otherwise

ii Termination Upon Sale to Publie This Amendment shall not

impose any obligations upon and shall terminate without the execution or recordation of any

further document or instrument as to any lot tihich has been finally subdivided and sold with a

completed bome thereon for whieh a certificate of occupancy or equivalent has been issued and

thereupon such lot shall be released from and no longer be subject to or burdened by the

provisions of this Amendmeut

h Entire Agreement This Amendment constitutes the entire agreement

between the parties hereto pertaining to the subject matter hereo All prior and

contemporaneous agreements representations and understandings of the parties oral or written
are hereby superseded and merged herein

i Authoritv Each of the parties represents and warrants to the other that the

individualsexecuting this Amendment on behalf of the respective parties are authorized and

empoered to bind the party on whose behalf each such individual is signing

j Severabilitv If any provision of this AmendmenY is dedared void or

unenforceable such provision shall be severed from this Amendment which shall othcrwise

remain in full force and effect If any applicable law or court of competent jurisdiction prohibits
the City or the Developer from undertaking any contractual commitment to perform any act

hereunder this Amendment shall remain in full force and effecY but if the provision requiring
such action is deemed material by either party they shall be entitled to terminate this

Amendment This provision shall be in addition to any other remedies provided herein and shall

not be construed in any way to restrict either partys right to any other remedy provided for

herein

k Govemin Law Venue This Amendment is entered into in Arizona and

shall be construed and interpreted under the laws of Arizona In particular this Amendment is

subject to the provisions ofARS 38511 Any action at law or in equity brought by either

party for the purpose of enforcing a right ar rights provided for in this Amendment shall be tried

in a court of competent judsdiction in Pinal County Arizona The parties hereby waive any

provisions of law providing for a change of venue in such proceeding to any other county

1 Recordation This Amendment shall be recorded in its entirety in the

Official Records of Pinal County Arizona not later than ten 0 days after this Amendment is

executed by the City and the Developer



m No Developer Representations Nothing contained herein or in the PAD

Plan shall be deemed to obligate the City or the Developer to complete any part or all of the

development of the Property in accordance with the PAD Plan or any other plan and the PAU

Plan sball not be deemed a representation or warranty by the Developer of any kind whatsoever

n Agreement Remains in Full Force and Effect Except as amended by this

Amendment the terms of the Agreement shall remain in full force and effect

SIGNATURES ON FOLLOWING PAGE



IN WITNESS WHEREOF lhe paRies have executed this Amendment to be effective on

the date and at the time a resolution approving this Amendment is approved by the City Council

of the City of Coolidge

CITY

CITY OF COOLIDGE an Arizona municipal corporation

By
Name

Date

Attest

Citv Clerk

APPROVED AS TO FORM AND AUTHORITY

The foregoing Amendment has been reviewed by the

undersigned attomey who has determined that it is in

proper form and within the power and authority granted
under the aws of the State of Arizona to the City of

Coolidge

Attomey for City of Coolidge

DEVELOPER

SAC II a Nevada corporation

By
Name

Date



State of Arizona

ss

County of

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this day of

2011 by the

of the City of Coolidge an Arizona municipal corporation
on behalf of the City

Notarv Public

My Commission Expires

State of Arizona

ss

County of

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this day of

2011 by the

of SAC II a Nevada corporation on behalf of the

corporation

Notary Public

My Commission Expires



872790001

June 16 2011

VIA CERTIFIED MAiL

RETURN RECEIPT REQUESTED

Denis Fitzgibbons Esq
Fitzgibbons Law Office PLC
1115 East Cottonwood Lane Suite 150

Casa Grande AZ 85122

Re Amendment to PreAnnexation and Development Agreement

Dear Mr Fitzgibbons

On June 13 2010 the City of Coolidge approved entering into an 4inendment

Amendment to thePreAnnexation and Developmenf Agreement Agreement between t6e

City of Coolidge and Specialt Trust Inc successor in interest to Suggs Homes Inc

Subsequent to the Citys approval it was determined that the current owner of the property that

is subject to the Agreement as amended is not Specialty Trust Inc but rather its whollyowned
subsidiary SAC II a Nevada corporation I am enclosing copies of the most recent deeds

showing the owncrship of the property in the name of SAC II

SAC II became the owner of the property as the result of foreclosures under deeds of trust

wherein Specialty Trust Inc was the beneficiary Specialty Trust Inc itself never held title to

the property

I am also enclosing a revised Amendment to the PreAnnexation and Development
Agreement executed by SAC II forrepresentation to the City Council at its next meeting on

June 27 2011 in order to clarify the true ownership of the property and the correct parties to the

Amendment

Please do not hesitate to contact me with an questions or comments you may have

Thank you

Very truly yours

BEUS GILBERT PLLC

Steven W Bicnstock

Enclosures

BGD12AJ65rlITDenisFi4ibboDOC



WHEN RECORDED RETURN TO

City Clerk

City of Coolidge
130 W Central Avenue Coolidge Arizona 85128

AMENDMENT TOPREANNEXATION AND DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT

This Amendment dated this day of June 20ll Amendment to the Pre

Annexation andIevelopment Agreement dated October 26 2000 by and between the CITY OF

COOLIDGE an Arizona municipal corporation the Citv1 and SAC II a Nevada

cornorati Deveioner1 a whollv subsidiarv of SPECIALTY TRUST INC a

Maryland corporationcT and successorininterest to SUGGS HOMES INC
an Arizona corporation Suggs Homes eT ca

RECITALS

A On or about October 26 200Q the City entered into a PreAnnexation and

Development Agreement Agreement with Suggs Homes covering approximately 214

acres more or less more specifically described in Exhibit A attached hereto and made a part
hereof the PropeRy of which approximately 674 acres were located within the City
City Property and approximately 1495 acres were located in the County of Pinal

County Property

B Among its terms the Agreement called for the annexation of the County Property
and on November 13 2000 the City Council of the City approved Ordinance No 0019

annexing the County Property into the City

C On November 27 2000 pursuant to Ordinance No 0020 the City reaffirmed the

rezoning of the Property to Planned Area Development

D Subsequently EDeveloner acquired the Property and requested that

the City Council extend the terms of the Agreement which the City Council agreed to do on

January 10 2011 subject to the negotiation of this Amendment by the Cirys staff

Document Number ll 8320 Version 4
BGDHI18330v3AmendmembPcAonuetionandDevelopmwAgreemenLdoc



AGREEMENT

NOWTIIEREFORE the City and Developer agree to amend the Agreement as follows

1 Canitalized Terms All capitalized terms not otherwise defined herein shall have te

same meaning as in the Agreement

2 Application of the Agreement As annexation of the County Property has occurred
the Agreement as amended by this Amendment and the PAD are operative as to the entire

Property

3 Term Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Agreement the

parties acknowledge that the term of the Agreement shall be extended until January 31 2021

Thus the phrase within ten 10 years of annexation of the County Property into the corporate
limits of the City in Section 11b is hereby deleted and the phrase by January 31 2021

inserted and the phrase until the date ten 10 years from the date of this Agreement in

Section 13a is hereby deleted and the phrase until January 31 2021 is inserted and the

phrase ten 10 years From the date of this Agreement in Section 14 is hereby deleted and

the phrase until January 31 2021 is hereby inserted

4 Fire Station Payments The following provisions are added as Section 213 to the

Agreement

213 Fire Station Payments

a The Property requires fire service to be provided by a fire

station the Serving Fire Station City and Developer agree that the

initial Developers fee for fire service from the Serving Fire Station for the

Property shall be Twenty Five Thousand Six Hundred Eighty and no100

Dollazs 2568000 payable for the first year as follows Twelve

Thousand Eight FIundred Forty and no100 Dollars 1284000 on

receipt of the grading permit for the Property and Twelve Thousand Eight
Hundred Forty and no100 Dollars 1284000 payable on the six month

anniversary date of the issuance of the first grading permit for the

Property

b Beginning on the one 1 year aniversazy date of the

issuance of the first residential building permit for the Property the City
and Developer agree the Developers payment for service from the Serving
Fire Station shall be calculated and paid on the basis of Two Hundred

Forty and no100 Dollars 24000 per gross acre of the Property the
Fire Service Payment The Fire Service Payment for the Property
shall be paid annually in two 2 equal installments on the anniversary date

of the issuance of the first residential building permit for the Property and

six 6 months thereaftec The Propertys Fire Service Payment may be

allocated to residential development projects on the Property ProjecC
on a per gross acre basis and thereafrer the residential homebuilder for the

se



Project shall be liable to pay on the same basis and at the same times as

set forth above the Projects pro rata share of the Fire Service Payment A

Projects obligation to pay the Fire Service Payment shall be reduced as set

forth hereafter

i Upon the issuance by the City of certificates of

occupancy for 35 of the Total Lot Count as defined hereafter for the

Property the amount of each semiannual installment payment of the Fire

Service Payment for that Property shall be reduced by 30 and

ii Upon the issuance by the City of certificates of

occupancy for 50 of the Total Lot Count for the Property the amount of

each semiannual instaliment payment of the Fire Service Payment for that

Property shall be reduced by 45 and

iii Upon the issuance by the City of certificates of

occupancy for 80 of the Total Lot Count for the Property the amount of

each semiannual installment payment of the Fire Service Payment for that

Property shall be reduced by 75 and

iv Upon the issuance by the City of certificates of

occupancy for 90 of the Total Lot Count for the Property the Developer
ar the owner of the Property as applicable shall be released from its

obligation to pay any Fire Service Payment set forth in this Amendment

v Total Lot Count shall mean with respect to the

Property the total number of residential lots established for the Property
as set forth in any approved amendment to the PAD Plan or approved plat
provided however such total may be reduced to the number of lots shown

on an approved plat if such number is less than the number of lots shown

in the previously approved PAD Plan

vi n no event shall Developers Fire Service Payment
in any one year exceed 55000

vii Failure by the Developer of the Property to

promptly pay the amount owed pursuant to this Section 213 will

constitute a breach oF this Amendment and the City may collect such

amounts owing by utilizing the remedies set forth in Section 33 of the

Agreement and fuRher may withhold the issuance of building permits for

improvements on the Pxoperiy until such amount is paid

3
neanNmea



5 Developer Reresentative The parties acknowledge that the Developer
Representative shall be that person whom the Developer designates to the City by written

notice in accordance with Section 41 of the Agreement

6 Develoner as Successor to Sugs Homes nc The City recognizes
and acknowledges that CT Develoner and its successors and assigns have

succeeded to the rights and obligations of Suggs Homes Inc as the Developer under the

Agreement

7 Notices All Notices to Developer are to go to
eT SAC II a Nevada

corooration 6160 Plumas Street Reno Nevada 89059 Attention President with a copy to Beus

Gilbert PLLC 4800 North Scottsdale Road Suite 6000 Scottsdale Arizona 85251 Attention

Paul E Gilbert Esq

8 General Provisions

a Conflicts In the event the provisions of this Amendment conflict with the

Agreement the provisions of this Amendment shall govern and shall take precedence over the

terrns of the Agreement

b Waiver No delay in exercising any right or remedy shall constitute a waiver

thereof and no waiver by the City or the Developer of the breach of any covenant of this

Amendment shail be construed as a waiver of any preceding or succeeding breach of the same or

any other covenant or condition of this Amendment

c Counterpars This Amendment may be executed in two or more counterparts
each of which shall be deemed an original but all of which together shall constitute one and the

same instrument The signature pages from one or more counterparts may be removed from such

counterparts and such signature pages all attached to a single instrument so that the signatures of

all parties may be physicaily attached to a single document

d Headins The descriptive headings of the paragraphs of this Amendment are

inserted for convenience only and shall not control or affect the meaning or construction of any

of the provisions hereof

e Exhibits and Recitals Any exhibit attached hereto and the recitals set forth

herein shall be deemed to have been incorporated herein by this reference wilh the same Porce

and effect as if fully set forth in the body hereof

Further Acts Each of the parties hereto shall promptly and expeditiously
execute and deliver all such documents and perform all such acts as reasonably necessary from

time to time to carry out the matters contemplated by this Amendment

g Future Effect

i Time of Essence and Successors Time is of the essence of this

Amendment All of the provisions hereof shall inure to the benefit of and be binding upon the

successors and assigns of the parties hereto pursuant to ARS900005D except as provided

4



below provided however the Developers rights and obligations may only be assigned to a

person or entity that has acquired the Property or a portion thereof and only by a written

instrument recorded in the Official Records of Pinal County Arizona whereby Developer
expressly assigns such rights and obligations If Developer desires to make an assignment to a

person who is not an affiliate of Developer then such assignment shall be subject to the approval
of the City such approval to not be unreasonably withheld or delayed Upon Assignment
Developersassigns shall be responsible for its direct and prorata share of all sums expended
pursuant hereto and City hereby releases Developer from all obligations contained herein
monetary or otherwise

ii Termination Uqon Sale to Publia This Amendment shali not

impose any obligations upon and shall terminate without the execution or recordation of any

further document or instrument as to any lot which has been finaily subdivided and sold with a

completed home thereon for which a certificate of occupancy or equivalent has been issued and

thereupon such lot shall be released from and no longer be subject to or burdened by the

provisions of this Amendment

h Entire Agreement This Amendment constitutes the entire agreement between

the parties hereto pertaining to the subject matter hereof All prior and contemporaneous

agreements representations and understandings of the parties oral or written are hereby
superseded and merged herein

i Authority Each of the parties represents and warrants to the other that the

individualsexecuting this Amendment on behalf of the respective parties are authorized and

empowered to bind the party on whose behalf each such individual is signing

j Severabilitv If any provision of this Amendment is declared void or

unenforceable such provision shall be severed Prom this Amendment which shall otherwise

remain in full force and effect If any applicable law or court of competent jurisdiction prohibits
the City or the Developer from undertaking any contractual commitment to perform any act

hereunder this Amendment shall remain in full force and effect but if the provision requiring
such action is deemed material by either party they shall be entitled to terminate this

Amendment This provision shall be in addition to any other remedies provided herein and shail

not be construed in any way to restrict either partys right to any other remedy provided for

herein

k Governing Law Venue This Amendment is entered into in Arizona and shall

be construed and interpreted under the laws of Arizona In particular this Amendment is subject
to the provisions ofARS 38511 Any action at law or in equity brought by either pary for

the purpose oPenforcing a right or rights provided for in this Amendment shall be tried in a court

of competent jurisdiction in Pinal County Arizona The paRies hereby waive any provisions of

law providing for a change of venue in such proceeding to any other county

1 Recordation Chis Amendment shall be recorded in its entirety in the Official

Records of Pinal County Arizona not later than ten 10 days after this Amendment is executed

by the City and the Developer

eeeaaa3zanaxroon



mNo Developer Representations Nothing contained herein or in the PAD Plan

shall be deemed to obligate the City or the Developer to complete any part or all of the

development of the Properiy in accordance with the PAD Plan or any other plan and the PAD

Plan shall not be deemed a representation or warranty by the Developer of any kind whatsoever

nAreement Remains in Full Force and Effect Except as amended by this

Amendment the terms of the Agreement shall remain in full force and effect

SIGNATURES ON FOLLOWING PAGE

g
9xAmeMeiexanBeveo6reelgremenidoe



IN WITNESS WHEREOF the parties have executed this Amendment to be effective on

the date and at the time a resolution approving this Amendment is approved by the City Council

of the City of Coolidge

CITY

CITY OF COOLIDGE an Arizona municipal corporation

By
Name

Date

Attest

City Clerk

APPROVED AS TO FORM AND AUTHORITY

The foregoing Amendment has been reviewed by the

undersigned attomey who has determined that it is in

proper form and within the power and authority granted
under the laws of the State of Arizona to the City of

Coolidge

Attorney for City of Coolidge

DEVELOPER

AEtSA II a Nevada
corporation

By
Name

Date

eoaaFecee



State of Arizona

ss

County of

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this day of

2011 by the

of the City of Coolidge an Arizona municipal corporation
on behalf of the City

Notary Public

My Commission Expires

State of Arizona

ss

County of

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this day of

2011 by the

ofoor rvr rnrr SAC II aA41a1
corporation on behalf of the corporation

Notary Public

My Commission Expires

8
w



Document comparison by Workshare Professional on Thursday June 16 201141944

PM

Input

Document 1 ID PowerpocsBGD1183203

Description
BGD118320v3AmendmenttoPre

nnexation and DevelopmentAgreement
Document 2 ID PowerpocsBGD1183204

Description
BGD118320v4AmendmenttoPre
nnexationandDevelopmentAg reement

Rendering set standard

Legend

nsertion

eleEie

4evefett

Moved to

Style change
Format change
vFE3veddeIeHAR

Inserted cell

Deleted cell

Moved cell

SpIiUMerged cell

Padding cell

Statistics

Count

Insertions 48

Deletions 49

Moved from 0

Moved to 0

Style change 0

Format changed 0



Total changes 97



AGENDA ITEM I
DATE 62 I 2011

CITY OF COOLDGE

C1TY COUNCIL ACTION FORM

SUBJECT Request from DJ POINT LLC STAFF PRESENTER C Alton Bruce

COOLIDGE PROPERTY INVESTMENTS
LLC LATEOTT LLC and FREDS PLACE
LLC to enter into a PreAnnexatio

Development Agreement for the Attaway
Ranch Proect

RECOMMENDATION

Staff recommends approval of this item

DISCUSSION

The Circle R Annexation represents a portion of a much larger pair of planned
communities known as Attaway Ranch North and South These properties are the subject
of Planned Area Development Conceptual Plan which was presented to Couneil in

October of 2009 and which is up for adoption later in this meeting This Preannexation

Development Agreement addresses the design of those properties and follows the format

of other primarily residential Development Agreements that the City has signed in the

past

FiSCAL IMPACT

If this project succeeds there is the potential for additional property and sales tax revenue

for the City as tiell as permit fees impact fees and contributions to the Fire Operating
fund

Attachments

Resolution No 1128 with Attaway Ranch PreAnnexation and Development Agreement

REVIEWED BY PREPARED BY

etrf C y
Robert tley City anager C Alton Bruce Growth Mgmt Director

LisaE nellaFinanceDirector

CAUocuments and ScttingenortnaoALocal ScufnsTemporarv Inlemet FilesVOLKD2Aeenda Transmitlul Attaway Ranch PADAdocNage Of
621 301 I



RESOLUTION No 1128

A RESOLUTION OF THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF

COOLIDGE PINAL COUNTY ARIZONA APPROVING AND ADOPTING THE

PREANNEXATION AND DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE

CITY OF COOLIDGE AND DJ POINT LLC AN ARIZONA LIMITED

LIABILITY COMPANY COOLIDGE PROPERTY INVESTMENTS LLC AN

ARIZONA LIMITED LIABILITY CONIPANP LATEOTT LLC AN ARIZONA

LIMITED LIABLLITY COMPANY AND FREDS PLACE LLC AN ARIZONA

LIMITED LIABILiTY COMPANY IN COMPLIANCE WITH ARS9SOOAS
FOR A DEVELOPMENT HIVOWN AS ATTAWAY RANCH

WAEREAS pursuant to ARS950005 DJ POINT LLC an Arizona limited liability

company COOLIDGE PROPERTY INVESTMENTS LLC an Arizona limited liability company

LATEOTT LLC an Arizona limited liability company and FREDS PLACE LLC an Arizona

limited liabilirv company are collecively referred to herein as the Owraer requested that the City of

Coolidge enter into a PreAnnexation and Development Agreement in the form which is attached to this

Resolution and by this reference made a part hereof for a development known as Attaway Ranch and

WHEREAS the City of Coolidge believes that it is in the best interest of the City to enter into

this PreAnnexation and Development Agreement in order to facilitate the proper municipal zoning
designation and development of the property subject to the PreAnnexation and Development Agreement

by providing for among other things i conditions tenns restrictions and requirements for the

construction and installation of public servicesinfrastrucmre improvements ii the permitted uses for the

Property iii the density of such uses and iv other matters related directly or indirectly to the

development of the Property

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and City Council of the City of

Coolidge Pinal Counry Arizona as follows

Section 1 The City of Coolidge by the requisite vote of its City Council hereby approves

and adopts and authorizes and instructs its Mayor on behalf of the City of Coolidge to enter into the

Attaway Ranch PreAnnexation and Development Agreement with the Owner for the development knovn

as Attaway Ranch in the form attached hereto as Ehibit A and made a part of this Resolution

Section 2 Pursuant to ARS950005G the provisions of this Resolution are not

enacted as an emergency measure and shall not be effective for thirty 30 days

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Mayor and Ciry Council of the Ciry of Coolidge Arizona
this 27 day of June 201 1

Mayor

ATTEST APPROVED AS TO FORM

City Clerk City Attomey



EXHIBIT A

ATTAWAY RANCH PREANNEATION AND DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT

see following pages

2



When recorded return to

City Clcrk

City of Coolidc
130 Wcs1 Ccntrai nvcnuc

Coolidge Arizona 85228

PREANNFXATION AND UEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT

DJ POINT COOLIDGE PROPERTY LATEOTT AND FREDS PLACE

THIS PREANNEXATION AND DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENI AgreenaenP is

entered into by and between the C1TY OF COOLIDGE a Arizona municipal corporation the
Ciry and DJ POINT LLC an Arizona limited liabiliry company COOLIDGE

PROPERTY INVESTMENTS LLC an Arizona limited liability company LATEOTT

LLC an Arizona limited liability company and FREDS PLACE LLC an Arizona limited

liabiliry company collectively as ONrer The Ciry and the Owner are sometimes referred to

herein individually asaPm and collectively as ihe Parties

RECITALS

A Owner owns that certain real properties located in Pinal County Arizona a

portion of Section 18 Township 5 South Range 9 East of the Gila and Salt River Base and

Meridian and a portio of Section 13 ToNmship 5 South Range 8 East of the Gila and Salt

River Base and Meridian consisting of i approximately 543 acres generally located at the

norehwest and northcast corners of Vah Ki Inn Road and Attaway Road and legally described

and depicted on Exhibit A and Exhibit A1 attached hereto and incorporated herein by this

reference the Vah Ki Inn Properry and a portion of Section 25 Township 5 South Range 8

East of the Gila and Salt River Base and Meridian consisting of ii approximately 160 acres

generally located at the northeast corner of Nafziger Road and Martin Road and legally described

and depicted on Exhibit B and Exhibit B1 attached hereto and incorporated herein by this

reference the NafigerPioperly The Vah Ki lnn Property and the Nafziger Property are

collectively referred to herein as the Properry

B In accordance with this Agreement Owner plans to develop the Vah Ki Inn

Property as a mixed use master planned communiry with single family dwelling units multi

family dwelling units and commercial zones in appropriate locations



C In accordance with this Agreement Owner plans to develop the Nafziger Property
as a mixed use master planned community with single family dwelling units multifamily
dwelling units and commercial zones in appropriate locations

D Owner intends to apply to the Ciey for the following i a rezoning of the Vah Ki

Inn Property to a zoning classification with a maximum overall residential density of no more

than 80 dwelling units per acre with multifamily and commercial uses in appropriate Iocations
with Planned Area Developmcnt P4D zoning ihe Pah Ki nn Rezoning and ii a

reroning of the Nafziger Properry to a zoning dassiication vith a masimum overall residential

density of no morc disn 80dvelling units per acrc with multilamily and commercial uses with

PAD zoning thc Ncijiger 2eznninb fhc Vah Ki Inn Rcroning and the Nafzigcr Rczoning
are collectively referrcd to hercin as the Xeoring

E n the event the City approves the Rezoning to allow for ai maximum

residential density of 80 dwelling units per acre with multifamily and commercial uses in

appropriate locations for the Vah Ki Inn Property and ii maximum residential density of 80

dwelling units per acre with multifamily and commercial uses for the Nafziger Property the

Parties acknowledge that the zoning for the Property will be consistent with lhe Cirys General

Plan designation for the Property

F Owner and the City desire that Parcel No 2 and Parcel No 3 of the Vah Ki Inn

Property as legally described and dcpicted on Exhibit A and Exhibit A1 be annexed into the

corporate limits of the City and be developed as an integral part of the City The annexation of

Parcel No 2 and Parcel No 3 of the Vah Ki lnn Property the developmenf of the Property
pursuant to this Agreement and the Planned Area Development zoning the PAD Zoning is

acknowledged by the Parties hereto to be consistent with the Citys General Plan and will

operate to the benefit of the Ciry the Owner and the general public The annexation of Parcel

No 2 and Parcel No 3 of the Vah Ki nn ProperCy would allow the City to provide for high
qualiry development in the area and ensure orderly controlled and qualiry growth in the Ciry

C Owner and Che City are entering into this Agreement pursuant to the provisions of

Arizona Reviscd Statutes ARS 950005 in order to facilitate the annexation of the

Property and the proper municipal zoning designation and development of ihe Property by
providing for among other things i conditions terms restrictioos and requirements for the

annexation of Parcel No 2 and Parcel No 3 of the Vah Ki Inn Property by the City
ii conditions terms restrictions and requirements for the construction and installation of public
servicesinfrastructure improvements iii the permitted uses for thc Properry iv the density of

such uses and v other matters related directly or indirectly to the development of the PropeRy

H A blank annexation petition was filed on January 9 2011 with Ninal County and

a public hearing was held on February 14 207 7 in connection with the annexation of Parcel No

2 and Parcel No 3 of the Vah Ki Inn Property into the City

I City and Owner acknowledge that the devclopment of the Property pursuant to

this Agreement and the PAD Zoning will have planning and economic impacts to the City by
i encouraging investment in and commitment to comprehensive planning which will result in

2



efficient utilization of municipal and other public resources ii requiring developmet of the

PropeRy to be consistent with the Citys General Plan and the PAD Zoning iii providing for

the planning design engineering construction acquisition andor insfallation of public
infrastructure in order to support anticipated development of the Property iv increasing tax and

other revenues to the City based on improvements to be constructed on the Property v creating
employment through development of the Propery consistent with this Agreement vi creating
improved housing and other uses for citizens of the City and vii increasing the demand for

City serviccs during and after the devclopmcnt of the Property The City and Owncr

acknowlcdge that the development of thc Properly pursuant to this ngrecment vill result in

benefis to Owner by providinb certainly i order to avoid the waste of resources including
assurances to Owner that it will have the abiliq o evcloE thc Property in accurdanee wih ihis

Agreemcnt and the PAD Loning

J Among other thins development of the Property in accordance with this

Agreement and the PAD Zoning will result in the planning design engineering construction

acquisition installation andor provision of public scrviccsinfrastructure improvements that will

support development of the Property

K The public servicesinfrastructure improvements to be provided by Owner while

necessary to serve development within thc Property also are needed in certain instances to

facilitate and support the ultimate development of a larger land area that includes the PropeRy
Given the regional significance of sucl public servicesinfrastructure improvements and

development of the Property the Ciry is willing to facilitate the utilization of payback
agreements as provided in this Agreement

L NoCwithstanding any public financing utilized for public infrastructure as set forth

herein the City and the Owncr each acknowledge that the Owner is required to construct the

public servicesinfrastructure improvements necessary for the development of the Property

NOW THEREFORE in consideration of the foregoing premises and the mutual

promises and agreements set forth herein the PaKies hercto state confirm and agree as follows

AGREEMENT

1 Incoruoration of Recitals

The foregoing Recitals are hereby incorporated into this Agreement by reference as

though fully restated

2 Annexation

The PaRies acknowledge that a blank annexation petition meeting the requirements of

ARS 947 has been on file in the oce of the County Recorder and the City has duly
noticed and conducted the hearing as required by law Concurrently with the execution and

delivery of this Agreement by the City and Owner Owner will deliver to the City an appropriate

3



Petition for Annexation duly executcd by all necessary property owners after the thirty day
waiting period that satisfies the applicable statutory requirements the Annexaion Pelition

Upon receipt of the Annexation Petition the City shall comply with the provisions ofARS

9471 e1 seq and if determined to be in the best interest of the City adopt a final ordinance

annexig the Annexation Property into the corporate limits of the City the Annexalion

Ordinance The Annexation Ordinance shall contain a provision reyuiring upon Owners

written request made prior to the effective date the immediate rescission andtermination of the

Annesation Ordinance by thc City iE a any person or entity othcr than a Party to lhis

AgreemenL files i a valid pctition appearing A to bc in proper form and B lo hae thc

requisite number of velid signatures to cause a reercndum challenging this Agreement hc

Annexation Ordinance or thc PAD Zoning ii litigation in a court of proper jurisdiction or

iii petition pursuant to ARS 9471C ehallenging Uie validity or approval of the

Annexation Ordinance or b the City does not at the same Ciry meeting in which the

Annexation Ordinance is adopted approve the PAD Zoning The City makes no representations
as to the enforceabiliry of the rescission and termination of the Annexation Ordinance pursuant
to clause a and b above but agrees to use its best cfforts to accomplish the intent of this

Section 2 even if a special meeting of the City Council must be called for the purpose of

repeaiing the Annexation Ordinance and the PAD Zoning The City shall schedule a Council

Meeting for this purpose at the latest date reasonably possible prior to the Annexation Ordinance

becoming final and effective and shall use its best efforts to perform in accordance with this

Seetion 2 The Ciry and Owner hereby acknowledge and agree that this Agreement shall

automatically tenninate and be of no force or effect if the Citys annexation of Parcel No 2 and

Parcel No 3 of the Vah Ki Inn Property does not become effective and final pursuant to ARS

9471D on or before July 13 2011

3 PAD Zonine

a Rezoning Upon annexation the Parties hereto agree to follow the prescribed
procedures under State statutes and City ordinances to rezone the Property to the PAD Zoning
The Reaoning of the Propery to PAD Zoning shall establish vested rights only with respect to

the land uses and densities as described in the PAD Plan and those matters set forth on

Exhibit C hereto collectively such land uses density and matters on Exhibit C shall be

referred to as the Vested Rights The PAD Zoning shall be subject to and development of the

ProperYy shaff be bound by all of the Cirys Rues as defined in Section 6 of this Agreement of

the City as set fotth and permitted by Section 6 of this Agreement The City and Owner agree
the only rights vested by this Agreement and the rezoning to PAD Zoning are the Vested Rights
all other rights standards and requirements pertaining to the development of the Property are not

vested by this Agreement and are subject to the changes caused by any changes to the Rules or

enactment of Rules permitted pursuant to Section 6 of this Agreement the PAD Zoning as

applicable shall control as to any issues not addressed by the Rules

The Owner on behalf of itself and all other parties having an interest in the Property
intend to encumber the Property with the following agreements and waivers The Owner agrees
and consents to all the conditions imposed by this Agreement and the PAD Zoning and by
signing this Agreement waive any and all claims suits damages compensation and causes of

action for diminution in value of the Property that the Owner of the Property may have now or in

4



the future under the provisions of ARS Sections 121134 through and including 121136

resulting from this Agreement the PAD Zoning or from any 9and use law as such term is

defined in the aforementioned statute sections permitted by this Agreement to be enacted

adopted or applied by the City now or hereafter Ihe Owner acknowledges and agrees the terms

and conditions set foRh in this Agreement and the PAD Zoning cause an increase in the fair

market value of the Property and such increase exceeds any possible reduction in the fair market

value of the Property caused by any future land use laws rules ordinances resolutions or actions

permiUed by this Agreement and adopted or applied by thc City to the Property This Agreement
shall control as to any inconsistcncy behveen thc PAD7oning and this Agreement

b Development

i The Owner shall have a right to develop the PropeRy consistent with the

Vested Rights and the PAD Zoning subject to the Rules and any changes to the Rules as

permitted by Section 6 of this Agreement but in no event shall the Rules be changed that will

materially and adversely limit or change the development of the Propedy consistent with the

Vested Rights described in this Agreement

ii The City acknowledges that Owner plans to develop the Property in

phases Owner may develop within the phases concurrently or out of order from the numbering
set forth in the PAD Zoning approval as long as Owner constructs or causes to be constructed

and installed any and all portions of the Infrastructure Plan as defined hereafter that relate to

the segments of the Property being developed by Ovner provided however that the City
Engineer may require that the Owner construct portions of the Infrastructure Plan not directly
related to the request being constructed by the Owner if in the City Engineers reasonable

discretion he determines that the construction sequence requested by the Owner will be

dctrimental to the City or the public

iii Ihe City agrees that the density cap of80 dwelling units DU per gross

acre is a projectwide cap The Parties therefore acknowledge that any given phase or subphase
within the Property may develop with a higher densiry than the densiry cap of 80 dwelling units

per gross acre as long as A ehe overall residential density of the Propery is not greater than 80

DU per gross acre and B no phase or subphase shall contain a densiry greater than 240 DU per

gross acre

iv The Parties acknowledge that a rapid transit system corridor is being
planned within close proximity to the Properry The Parties also acknowledge that intense and

efficient use of land such as mixed land uses and higher residential densities are desired to

improve aceess to transportation and housing choices increase ridership of the rapid transit

system promote alternate modes of transportation and correspondingly reduce negative impacts
of automobile travel on the environment In the event that final design of the rapid transit system
identifies the corresponding transportation route within onemile of the Property thcn any given
phase or subphase within the Properry may develop with a higher density than the densiry cap of

S0 dwelling units per gross acre as long as no phase or subphase sha11 contain a densiry greater
than 240 DU per gross acre In the event that final design of the rapid transit system identifies

the corresponding transportation route within 2000 linear feet of the Property then any given

5



phase or subphase within the Property may develop at a density of greater than 240 DU per

gross acre

v The Parties agree that any given phase within the Properry may develop
with less than 15 open space if approved by the Citys Planning and Zoning Director

provided that the overall Property Open Space is not less than I S For purposes of this

Agreement the term Open Spuce shall mean any area of land or water permanently dedicated

or designated for use for active or passive rccrcation areas Iandscape buffcrs flood control
storm water retcntion or resource managemenl or land areas dedicated lor school purposes that

are intended for opcn space recreation or sports activities

vi Owner may redistributc lots open space school sites and streets up

through approval of the relevant final plat for the particular phase or subphase of the Propedy as

may be approved by the Citys Planning and Zoning Director as long as such changes are in

conformity with the Vested Rights and the Rules

c ZoninP Chantes For the duration of this Agreement the City shall not initiate

any changes or modifications to the PAD Zoning as applicable to the Property except at the

request of the Owner of the portion of the Property for which such change is sought Any such

request for change shall be processed in the manner then set forth in the Citys zoning ordinance

for amendments Any changes or modifications initiated by the City to the PAD Zoning
designation as applicable to any part of the Property in which the Owner has an interest in fee or

beneficial title initiated by the Cit shall become effective only upon Owners consent Nothing
set forth in this paragraph shall be deemed to require City approval of future changes to the PAD

Zoning designation as applicable to the Properey after the effective date of this Agreement

4 Development Standards

a Commercial Standards Commeroial development on the Vah Ki Inn Property
shall comply with the standards contained in the PAD Zoning and those matters set forth on

Exhibit C

b Residential DesiEn Guidelines Resideotial development on the Property shall

comply with the standards contained in the PAD Zoning and those matters set foRh on Exhibit

C

5 Additional Propertp

Upon the request of the Owner and the submission of a planned area development plan
for the additional propeRy hereafter referenced the Ciry hereby agrees to consider and if in the

best interest of the City as determined by the City and in accordance with rypically applicable
notice and public hearing requirements to incorporate into this Agreement the whole or any

portion of additional properry adjacent to or proximate to the Property the Additional

Property if and when Owner acquires such Additional Property The City and the Owner agree
that if Owner elects to request from City the incorporation of such Additional PropeKy or

poRions thereof and if the City consents a thereafter such Additional Property shall be

6



included in the Property and shall be subject to and shall benefit from all provisions of this

Agreement applicable thereto and any reference herein to the Property shall include such

Additional Property provided however the planned area development plan approved by the City
far such Additional Property shall be the planned area development plan for such Additional

PropeRy b the City and Owner shall cooperate in order for the Additional Property to receive

the necessary land use approvals including any necessary amendment to the PAD Zoning
required to approve the planned area development plan for the Additional Property and c the

plans and land usc designations approved for any Additional PropeKy shall thercafter apply to

thc applicable Additional Property

6 Regulatiun of Develonrnent

a The Apalicable Rules With respect to the development of the Property as

contemplated by this Agreement the code ordinances rules regulations permit requirements
exactions fees development fees as defined in ARS Section 946305 other requirements
andor official policies of the City collectively the Rules which apply to the development of

the Property shall mean those Rules in existence from time to time The City reserves

exercising its sole and absolute discretion the right to amend existing or to adopt new Rules and

such Rules as amended or adopted shall be applicable to and bindin on the Property

Notwithstanding the foregoing any change in the Rules in existence on the date of this

Agreement or any Rules enacted after the date of this Agreement shall not be enforced against
any development of the Property if such enforcement would materially and adversely limit or

change the development of the Properry consistent with the Vested Rights described in this

Agreement

b The Pcrmissible Additions to the Rules Impactin Vested Riehts

Notwithstanding the provisions of Section 6a above the Ciry may change cnact and

enforce Rules against the Properry and development thereof which have an adverse impact on the

Vested Rights upon the occurrence of any one of the following provisions

i Rules which the ONner may agree in writing apply to the development of

the Property In the event that a federal grant subsidy or other financial award or form of

financial assistance would become available to the Ciry whether directly from a federal agency

or departmet or indirectly from a federal agency or depaRmetthrough the State of Arizona or

Pinal County and if such award or form of assistance is only available iPthe Ciry were to adopt
certain land use ordinances rules regulations and permit requirements the City may request that

the Owner approve such adoption which approval shall not be unreasonably withheld

ii Rules oC the City enacted as necessary to comply with mandatory
requirements imposed on the City by the state ar federal governments including court decisions
and other similar superior external authorities beyond the control of the Ciry provided that in the

event any such mandatory requirement prevents or precludes compliance with this Agreement if

permitted by law such affected provisions of this Agreement shall be modified as may be

necessary to achieve the minimum permissible compliance with such mandatory requirement

7



iii Rules of the Ciry reasonably necessary to alleviate threats to public health

and safety provided such Rules shall be applied uniformly and not arbitrarily to all areas that are

subject to the similar threat

iv Puture updates of and amendmets to existing building construction

plwnbing mechanical electrical drainage dangerous building and similar construction and

safery related codes such as the Uniform Building Code which updates and amendments are

gencratcd b a nationally rccognized constructionsafety organization or by the county state or

fcderal eovernmcnls or by the Central Arirona Association of Governmenls providcd such code

updatcs and amcndments shall bc applicd uniformly and not arbitrarily or

v Amendments to such construction and safety codes generated by the City
for the purposes of conforming such codes to the conditions generally existing in the City
provided that such code amendments shall be applicd uniformly and not arbitrarily

7 AntiMoratorium

The Parties hereby acknowledge and agree that the PAD Zoning contemplates and

provides for the development of the Property over a period of twenty 20 years and that for the

term of this Agreement as defined in Section 34 below no moratorium shall be imposed except
as permitted by ARS 946306 as of the date of Chis Agreement and attached hereto as

Exhibit D The City agrees to the extent permitted by law that if subsequent law changes or

repeals the standards or language ofARS Section946306 as set forth in Exhibit D hereto
such standards set forth in Exhibit D shall continue to apply to the Property

8 Vested RiQhts

The City agrees that for the term of this Agreement Owner shall have a vested right to

develop the Property in accordance with this Agreement and the Vested Rights set foRh in this

Agreement Further subject to the Rules and any permitted changes to the Rules as permitted by
Section 6 of this Agreement Owner may develop the Property in accordance with the PAD

Zoning 7he determinations of the Ciry memorialized in this Agreement together with the

assurances provided to Owner in this Agreement are provided pursuant to and as contemplated
byARS 950005

9 Infrastructure

a Infrastructure Plan The City hereby approves the infrastructure plan which

includes drainage sewer and traffic circulation plans for the major infrastructure the
Infrastructure Plan Except as otherwise provided in this Agreement and subject to the Rules
the Infrastructure Plan shall authorize ONmer so long as Owner proceeds with the development
of the Property to implement and phase the infrastructure improements to the Property in

conformance with the Infrastructure Plan the Infrastructm Improvements In the event it

becomes necessary for Owner to install certain road improvements not directly adjacent to the

Property to complete the Infrastructure Plari and such improvements benefit other Property the

City agrees that these actual improvement costs are eligible for a credit from applicable impact

8



or development Pees but only to the extent such improvement costs were induded in the basis

for the applicable impact or development fee The PaRies hereto acknowledge and agree that to

the extent Owner develops the Propery it shall have the right and obligation at any time after

the effective date to construct or cause to be constructed and installed all portions of the

Infrastructure Plan related to the developing segments of the Property

b Infrastructure Plan Amendment The City and the Owner acknowedge that

amcndinents to the Infrastructure Plan may be necessaq from timc to time Unless otherwisc

required by law minor changes shall oily require the approval of the Citys Public Rorks

Director City and Owner shall cooperate in good faith to agree upon to process any

amendments to the InlrasUucture Plan The Otiner and the City agree that any such amcndments

shall be incorporatcd by this referencc into this Agreement with the same Corce and cffect as if

set forth herein and shall not require corresponding amendment to this Agreement

c Construction

i ihe Parties hereto acknowlcdge and agree that to the extent the Owner

develops he Property the Owner shall have the right and the obligation at any time after the

execution of this Agreement to construct or cause to be constructed and installed in accordance

vith the Rules and all other applicable rules regulations construction standards and

governmental review processes all portions of the Infrastructure Improvements that relate to the

phase or portion oC thc Property to be developed by Owner at any given time Owner shall cause

the Infrastructure Improvements to be constructed and installed in a good and workmanlike

manner and in compliance with the Rules and all other applicable requirements standards codes
rules or regulations of the City Construction of the Infrastructure Improvements in phases shall

be based on subsequently submittcd technical studies as required and approved by the City
Engineer

ii Owner its agents and employees shall have the additional right upon

receipt from the Ciry of an appropriate encroachment permit to enter and remain upon and cross

over any City easements or rightsoCway to the extent reasonably necessary to facilitate such

construction or to perform necessary maintenance or repairs of such public nfrastructure

Improvements Owners use of such easements and rightsofway pursuant to an encroachment

permiL shall not impede or adversely affect the Citys use and enjoyment Yhereof

iii Owner shall restore such City easements and rightsofway used pursuant
to the encroachment permiT to their condition prior to Owners entry upon completion of such

construction repairs or maintenance Owner ifs agents and employees also shall have the

right upon receipt from the City of an appropriate encroachment permit to enter and remain

upon and cross over any Ciry easements or rightsofway to the extent reasonably necessary to

install and maintain landscaping material within the portion of the Ciry rightofway not used for

vehicular travel

d Infrastructure Assurance The Parties hereto acknowledge and agree that the

City prior o recording the final plat for each subdivision shall require the Owner andor its

designees grantees or buyers under contract to provide appropriate assurances in such form and

9



amount as required by the Rules to assure that the installation of Infrastructure mprovements
within that subdivision or other Infrastructure Improvements directly related to such building
permit or pennits will be completedhfinstruciure Assurance tn such case the Owner may

elect with the approval of the City which approval shall not be unreasonably withheld any one

or combination of the following methods of Infrastructure Assurance All assurances provided
by the Owner shall comply with the applicable provisions of the Citys subdivision ordinance

relating to such assurances The options in forms reasonably acceptable to the Ciry each an

lcceplableIssmnnce are as follows

i Oner andor its assignees designees grantces and purchasers under

contract arc requircd to lile with the City a performancc bond or

ii Owner andor its assignees designees grantees and purohasers under

contract are required to deliver to the City an irrevocable and unconditional letter of credit

which if necessary will be acknowledged by the City in accordance with lhe appropriate
lenders requirements or

iii A letter oF financial assurance from Owner s lender or the lender of

Owners assignees designees grantees and purohasers under contract or

iv Third party tmst agreemenr or

v Dual Beneficiary Letter of Crcdit or

vi Cash or certificd check or

vii Such other assurance mechanism as may be approved by the City

Once the Owner required Infrastructure Assurances have been complied with the Owner

or as applicable the Owners assignees designees grantees and purchasers under contract
shall have the right with the approval of the City which approval shall not be unreasonably
withheld to replace such initial method of Infrastructure Assurance either in whole or in part
with any of the other form of Acceptable Assurance as seL forth above lf a discrete and self

sustaining portion of the Infrastructure Improvements for whicll an appropriate assurance has

been delivered is dedicated to and approved by the City the City agrees to release within twenty

ZO business days from such approval by the City the portion of the assurance that relates to the

nfrastructure Improvement so completed The City agrees that within twenty 20 business days
from the last to occur of dedication or City approval of the particular completed Infrastructure

Improvements for vhich the City has required and the Owner has provided Infrastructure

Assurance the City shall release such Infrastructure Assurance in whole or in part as may be

appropriatc under the circumstances in the manner provided in the Rules

e Acceptance Upon completion including punch list items of the installation and

construction of the public Infrastructure Improvements or a portion thereof relating to a

completed phase Owner shall convey at no cost to the City the completed public Infrastructure

Improvements to the City lien and debt free The phrase at no cost to thc City in the preceding

to



sentence shall not prevent Owner from receiving credits or reimbursements as may be available

to Owner pursuant to the Rules or Sections 12 and 13 of this Agreement Owner shall give the

City written notice Notice ro Confirm promptly following completion of public Infrastructure

Improvements or any portion thereof so long as any portion of completcd public Infrastructure

Improvements is a discrete portion relating to a completed phase and its suitability for its

purpose can be adequately determined Within thirty 30 business days afrer its receipt of the

Notice the City shall inspect the lnfrastructure identified therein as to whether it has been

constructed in accordance vith the Cityapproved plans and speciications Upon completion of

thc inspection the Ciry shall dclicr rittcn notice to Owner within 30 business days of the

inspcction eithcr 1 approving construction and agrceing to accept comeyance of such public
Infrastruclure Improemnts Fincil AcceRmce or 2 identifying throueh a punch list any

other items tl3at are not in accordance with the Cityapproved plans and specifications and that

are to be corrected by Ownec Acceptance of any Infrastructure Improvement is expressly
conditioned upon a warranry for such Infrastructure mprovement as provided in subsection g
below Except as provided in subsecion g below or according to the terms of any applicable
Service Agrecment after acccptance of any Infrastructure Improvements the City ihereafrer

shall maintain repair and operate such Infrastructure Improvements at their own cost Owner at

no cost to City shall dedicate convey or obtain as applicable all rightsofway rights of entry
easements andor other use rights wherever located as necessary for the construction
installation operation and maintenance of the lnfrastructure Improvements as required by the

City

Warranty Owner or its Assignee shall give to the City a oneyear warranty for

all nfrastructure mprovements wlich warranty shall begin on the date that the City accepts the

Infrastructure Improvements as provided in this section or on such other date as set forth in the

Service Agreement Any material deficiencies in material or workmanship identified by City
sYaff during the oneyear warranry period shall be brought to the attention of the Owner or its

Assienee who provided the warranty who shall promptly remedy or cause to be remedied such

deficiencies to the reasonable satisfaction of the Citys staff Continuing material deficiencies in

a particular portion of the Infrastructure Improvements shall be sufficient grounds for the City to

require i an extension of the warranty for an additional oneyear period or ii the proper repair
of or iii the removal and reinstallation of that portion of the Infrastructure Improvements that is

subjectto such continuing deficiencies Regardless of whether the oneyear warranty period has

expired the Owner agrees to repair any damage to the Infrastructure Improvements caused by
Owners or homebuildersconstruction activities on the Property Nothing contained herein

shall prevent the Ciry or Owner from seeking recoursc against any other third party for damage
to the Infrastructure Improvements caused by such third party

g Necessarv Easements It shall be a condition precedent to the obligation of

Owner to construct the public Infrastructure Improvements herein specified or otherwise

required to service the Property that Owner shall have obtained any and all easements rights of

entry andor ot6er use rights on or about all real property other than the Property upon through
or under which will be installed all or any portion of said public Infrastructure mprovements as

useful or necessary for Owner to enter and to properly perform all activities incident to Owners

construction obligations hereunder collectively the EasemeMS Owner shall use reasonable

efPorts to obtain the Easements provided however that if despite the exercise of such

11



reasonable effoiKS Owner is unable to obtain any necessary Easements upon request by Owner
the City will consider using its reasonable efforts to obtain said necessary Easemcnts through the

Citys power of condemnation and the obtaining of immediate possession all in accordance with

applicable law Such costs of obtaining the Gasemcnts including without limitation the costs

of condemnation including legal fees and court costs shall be paid by Owner and shall be

included in the costs of any and all public Infrastructurc Improvements for which Owner is

entitled to a Devclopment Impact Fee credit as hereinafter specified

h Privatc Streets Thc Owner will havc the right to rctain ownership to all intcrior

local strcets and other righsotHay locatcd within lhe Property Prfiale IZighisofWrry lhc

Nrivate RightsofWay shall be conveycd io one oriiorc homeotiner associations created by the

Owncr for this and othcr purposes fhe Owncr shall have the right to install manned andor

unmanned access control structures within the medians of the Private KightsofWay at any

portions of the Property The Owner shall grant to the City an easement for police fire

ambulance garbage collection wastewater storm drain line installation and repair and other

public purposes on under above and through the Private RightsofWay and shall permit
access to the City through any access control structures for such public purposes Owner its

successors and assigns shall at their sole cost and expense maintain the Private RightsofWay
to Ciry standards as detcrmined by the City Public Works Director

i Water

i The Property is within the water scrvice area certificated to Arizona Water

Company AWC a private water company Owner shall contract with AWC for the terms ad

provisions of water service to the Property

ii During all times that a portion of the Property is served by AWC the

Owner shall have no obligation to pay any City water system Development Impact Fee or any
water resource fee for that portion of the Property

j Traffic Signals Owner shall be responsible for paying its pro rata share for the

installation of traffic signals installed by the Ciry at those intersections adjacent to and abutting
the Property as required by the traffic study submitted with preliminary plats and approved by
the City Engineer the TrafficSudy or as otherwise required by the Public Works Director

Prior to issuance of the first certificate of occupancy for the Property the Owner shall deposit
with the City an Acceptable Assurance in the amount determined by the City Public Works

Director to be the Owners prorata share of the estimated cost of all traffic signals serving the

Property Owner acknowledges and understands that the estimated prorata share may be less

than the Owners actual prorata share at the time of construction The City shall install each

traffic signal when the traffic calculations have met the warrants delineated in the Traft7c Study
for each traffic signal or as reasonably determined by the Ciry Public Works Director Owners

payment fior each traffic signal shall be within thirty 30 days of notification by the City that a

contract has been awarded by the City for such construction Owner agrees to provide any

necessary easements or rightsofway necessary for the installation and operation of the traffic

signals

12



k Fiber Easement Owner may reserve prior to dedication to the City i any

public street on the Property an easement for the installation operation and maintenance of any

public or private fiber optics or telccommunications facilities Fiber EasemenP Owner and

City shall enter into an agreement that establishes the procedures for coordinating the location of

facilities in the Fiber Easement and nearby public easements and the procedures and standards

for maintenance and report of facilities located in the Fiber Easement Any construction or

maintenance activities conducted within the Fiber Easement shall be subject to obtaining any

necessary encroaehment permil from thc City Ownerarces that although theIiber Fascment

will be established prior to dcdication oFthc public rightofva each Party shall be required to

restore to substantially original condition any facilitics damaged by thc other inccrcisin their

respectivc rights to usc in Owners case the FiberIasemenL and in the Citys case the public
rightsofway The City agrees that it will not take any action thal mayfiustrateOvners ability
to utilize the Fiber Easement for the installation operation and maintenance of any public or

private fiber optics or telecommunications facilities located in the Fiber Easement and agrees

that such facilities may connect to facilitics eXternal to the Property Owner shall have the

exclusive right to select providers of fiber optics and telecommunications services for the

Property provided however all selected providers shall be required to obtain from the City a

franchise or license agreement with respect to its activities in the City To the extent that the

City pursuant to statute and applicable law adopts any franchise fees sales taxes or other rates

taxes assessments or charges Crry Fees which the City imposes on an operator or franchisee

providing fiber opties and telecommunications services on a Citywide basis including the

Property this subparagraph shall not operate to prohibit the City from coliecting such City Fees

from such franchisee or operator relating to such operations and services on the Property
provided however that nothing contained herein shall constitute contractual authoriry for

imposition of such City Fees

1 Roadwav Improvements Owner shall dedicate and construct a 65foot half

street rightofway for the portion of Vah Ki Inn Road adjacent to the Vah Ki Inn Property
Owner shall dedicate and construct a 65foot halfstreet rightofway for the portion of Nafziger
Road adjacent to the Nafziger Property Owner shall also dedicate and construct a 65foot half

street rightofway for the portion of Martin Road adjacent to the Nafziger Property The Ciry
covenants to abadon and Owner agrees to aecept and maintain pursuant to the provisions of

ARS 287215 free and clear of licns and encumbrances any roadway easemcnts or rightsof
way within or adjacent to the Property which are not located in the ultimate locations of the

rightsofway and not included in the Infrastructure Improvements described in Yhe Infrastructure

Plan The abandonment shall become final and effective no iater than the date Owner records a

plat for the Property

10 Communitv Facilities District Financin

a Communitv Facilities District The City in accordance with its Community
Facilities Guidelines adopted on December 13 2004 as amended from time to time will

consider any requests by Owner to form a community facilities district CFD comprised of

the Property and such other property within the City that in the aggregate totals more than 600

acres in order to aid in financing the cost of the Infrastructure Improvements Nothing

13



contained hereiu shall be construed to compcl the Ciry to form a CFD or for the CFD if formed
to finance any Infrastructure Improvements

b CFDAreement Immediately upon formation and as a condition of formation

of a CFD the City Owner and any owner of the Property and CFD shall enter into a CFD

Development Agreement in substantially tie form of the most recent forms utilized by the City
with respect to other CFDs in the City Any CFD shall cause to be levied a CFD operation and

maintenance tax on Property within the districl and Omer shall provide additional funds for

CPll operation as provided tar in the CPD Dcvclopmcnt Agreemcnt The Citv agrces to

cooperate and pursue intergovernmental agrecments with other public bodics s applicable to

secure the ownership operation and maintenancc of completed public infrastruclure acquired or

constructed with CFD funds tha are typically not owned operated and maintained by the City
Owner may request that the Ciry and any commuuity facilities district establish a means of

collecting reimbursements from Owner or other real property owner for the CPDs andor

Owners costs of financing designing and installing public facilities that are of the size Icngth or

capacity greater than that necded to serve or mitigate the impacts of development of the Property
and which will serve other property in lhe Ciry

1 l Cih Services

a Sewer Water Trash Collection Nolice and Fire Upon annexation Cit shall

provide all City services to the Property including but not limited to sewer trash collection
police and fire proteclion and all other services rypically provided by the Ciry to its residents to

the same extent and upon the same terms and conditions as those services are being provided to

other similarly situated property throughout the City Owner intends to obtain potable water

services for the Property from the private water provider serving lhe Property The Ciry agrees
to assess and collect user fees or rates for each municipal service provided by the City consistent

with the fees or rates established by the City and applied for other similarlysituated properry and

projects residential property and projects greater than five acres in areas of the City receiving
similar municipal services Failure by the Owner to promptly pay any amount owed including
but not limited to the obligations set forth in this Section I will constitute a breach of this

Agreement and the City may collect such amounts owing by utilizing the remedies set forth in

Section 20 of this Agreement and further may withhold the issuace of building permits for

improvements on the Property until such amount is paid

b Fire Service Pavment

i The Property requires fire service to be provided by a fire station tle
Serving Fire Station Ciry and Owner agree the Owners payment for fire service from the

Serving Fire Station the Fire Sevice PaymenP shall be 24000 per Developing Acreage
within a developing phase The Fire Service Paymcnt represents the Owners prorata share of

the actual annual operating cost of the Serving Fire Station initially estimated at 600000 per
fiscal year for a single shift increasing thereafter as shifts are added but in no event to exceed

18 Million annually excepted as permitted in Section 11civ below For purposes of this

Agreement the term Developing Acreage shall mean the gross acreage within a developing
phase of the Property The Developing Acreage within any phase of the Property and its

ta



corresponding portion of the Fire Service Paymeit may be allocated to residenlial development
projects within such phase ProjecP on a per gross acre basis and thereafier the residential

homebuilder for the Project shall be liable to pay on the same basis and at the same times as set

forth herein the Projects pro rata share of the Fire Service Payment Owners or if allocated to

a residential builder the residential builders obligation to pay the Fire Service Payment shall be

paid and further reduced as follows

A The first paymcnt oC the Firc Service Paymcnt shall be made by
Owner or residential builder as applicable upon the issuance of the firs grading permil for lhe

Property or Project proratedIrom July I to account Cor Ihe partial year as may bc reduced s

set foth below and thcrcater lhe Pire Scrvicc Payment shall bc payable to the City on May 1 of

cach year

B Upon the issuance by the City of cedificates of occupancy for 35

the total number of residential lots established for the PropeRy or Project as applicable as set

forth in the PAD Zoning provided however such total may be reduced to the number of lots

shoNm on an approved plat if such number is less than the number of lots shown in the PAD

Zoning the Total Lot CounP the amount of each annual installment payment of the Fire

Service Payment set forth above shall be reduced by 30

C Upon thc issuance by the City of cercificates of occupancy for 50

of the Total Lot Count for the Properry or Project as applicable the amount of each annual

installment payment of the Fire ervice Payment set forth above shall be reduced by 45

D UPon the issuance by the City of certificates of occupancy for 80

of the Total Lot Count for the Properry or Project as applicable the amount of each annual

installment payment of the Fire Service Payment set fbrth above shall be reduced by 75

E Upon the issuance by the City of certificates oC occupancy for 90

of the Total Lot Count for the Properry or Project as applicable the Owner shall be released

from their obliation to pay any Fire Service Payment set forth in this Agreement

ii The City agrees to use its best reasonable effoRS to obligate other served

properry to pay the Fire Service Payment oC the Serving Fire Station on a substantially similar

basis as the Owner s obligation to pay as set forth in this Section The obligation to be imposed
on other served property to pay a proportionate share of the Fire Service Payment of the Serving
Fire Station shall require the first annual payment to the City not later than the final approval by
the Ciry of the first final plat Por such other served property

iii The Parties agree that it is not the intent of the City to collect revenue

from the Owner greater than that necessary to pay for that Owners share of the Fire Service

Payment Therefore the Owner at its sole discretion and cost may at any time prior to the

issuance by Che Ciry of certificates of occupancy for 90 of the Total Lot Count for the Property
commission a study to analyze the assessment and collection of user fees or rates for Fire

Operations provided by the City to determinc if those user fees or rates collected are sufficient to

cover the costs for the Fire Operations to serve the Property The Ciry shall timely review the

t5



study and if it is determined by tlie Ciry that the study has provcn the sufficiency of user fees or

rates to pay for Fire Operations the ONner shall be released from their obligation to pay for Fire

Operations as set forth in this Agreemen

iv The maximum amomt of actual amival operating costs of the Serving Fire

Station of18 million shall be increased annually each April 1 st commencing April l 2012
based on inereases in the Consumer Price lndex as follows

On April I of each ear the annual operatina costs for the succeeding car shall increase

by the same percentage incrcase in thc US CPI All Itcros US City Average nll Urban

Consumcrs the base ycar rcfcrence period is 1982 1984 100 as published by hc Bureau of

Labor Statistics of the US Department of Laboc In the event of discontinuance of the ClP as

currently reported a comparable index of price changes shall be substituted

v Failure of the Owner to promptly pay the amount owed pursuant to this

Section ll shall constitute a breach of this Agreement and the City may collect such amounts

owing by utilizing the remedies set forth in this Agreement and further may withhold the

issuance of building permits for improvemcnts on the Property until such amount is paid

12 Development Fees and Credits

a Develooment Fees Subject to the provisios of this Agreement Owner agrees to

pay all current and future enacted development or impact fees provided such development or

impact fee is generally and uniformly applicable to the Ciry and is consistent with the provisions
ofARS 946305 Nohnithstanding any contrary provision of this Agreement if Owner

provides dedicates or pays for any public sites or public infrastructure including through the use

of community facilities district financing the value or costs of which are included as a

component of a development fee or impact fee pursuant to ARS 946305 Owner shall

receive a credit equal to the value or cost of such public site or infrastructure the Development
Fee CrediP to be applied in lieu of existing or future development or impact fees imposed by
the Ciry which relate to or otherwise apply to the Property In no event may the Development
Fee Credits in each category of development fees exceed the actual development fees paid or to

be paid by or in connection with development on the Property

b Credits Wherever this Agreement provides that Owner shall be entitled to a

Development Fee Credit against any development fee or impact fee imposed by the City the

Development Fee Credit shall be credited to Owner in increments equal to one hundred percent

100 of the particular development fee or impact fee otherwise applicable to each building
permit issued with respect to a home or building or structure to be constructed on the Properly
up to the maximum total credit provided for in this Agreement

I 3 Ovcrsizine

a Credits Notwilhstanding any contrary provision of this Agreement if Owner

provides or pays for any dedicated public sites or public infrastructure a Payback

16



Improvemef that will directly benefit property or developments other than Lhe Property and

the developments thereon the Benefiled NonPropertyLaadDevelopnefvfie oversizcd

or designed to provide public infrastructure to an area larger than but encompassing the

PropeRy then Owner shall receive a credit to be applied in lieu of existing or future impact or

development fees imosed by the City which were meant to cover the category of public
infrastructure or sites paid for or provided by Owner For example but not by way of

limitation if Owner installs and dedicates sewer lines andor facilities that will benefit I3enefited

NonProperq LandDevclopment Ovncr shall be entiticd to a Developmcnt Fee Credit against
existing and any fuwre sewcr collection linc portion of the sewer devclopmcnt fee but not

wastewatcr treatmcnt portion of the Devclopinent Pccs payable with respect lo the Properiy

b Payback AQreements To the eatent that Owner exhausts its Development Fee

Credits with respect to any oversizing the remaining oversizing cost shall be eligible to be

repaid to Owncr through payback agreements with the owner of the Benefited NonProperty
LandDevelopments a Payback AgeemenC Any Payback Agreement entered into in

accordance with this section shall provide for payments to begin within thirty 30 days of the

issuance of a grading permit or recordation of a final plat on the Benefited NonProperty Land

Payback Agreements shall not be required after the expiration of ten 0 years from the date of

acceptance of the Payback Improvement unless the Payback Improvement is comprised of

oversized regional sanitary sewer infrastructure in which case the payback period shall extend to

twenty 20 years Any Nayback Agreement for a Payback Improvement shall be required by the

Ciry if permitted by law and may be reasonably imposed as a condition of annexation zoning
or plat approval for any Benefited NonProperty LandDevelopments

c Allocation of Costs The Benefited NonProperty LandDevelopments shall

reimburse the OHmer on a pervfront foot basis for roadway Payback Improvements and on a per

acre basis for sanitary sewer Payback Improvements The Parties sha11 agree on the

reimbursement basis for Benefited NonProperty LandDevelopments for types of Payback
Improvements other than roadwas and sewers during the review of the preliminary plat phase
but in any case the basis for reimbursement of cach Benefited NonProperty
LandDevelopmentsproportional share of the incremental oversizing cost of the Payback
mprovement to which it connects shall be the relative area or demand of the beneficial properry
to the entire assessable area or demand served by the Payback Improvement to which it connects

1he Payback Fees shall be collected from the Benefited NonProperty LandDevelopment and be

approximately equal to its proportionate fair share of the aforementioned oversizing costs

through participation in a proportionate benefit reimbursement mechanism To the extent that

the City does not have an ordinance allowing for such a Payback Agreement the City agrees that

it will establish such an ordinance to allow the Payback Agreement to function as described

below For a period of ten 10 years twenty 20 years in the case of regional sanitary sewer

improvements from the acceptance of each Payback mprovement by the City the Owner shall

receive reimbursement up to a maximum of the original proportionate share of the oversizing
cost of the Payback Improvement relating to the Benefited NonProperty LandDevelopments

d Survival o Term Nonvithstanding anything contained in this paragraph to the

contrary this provision and the obligation of the City require the Benefitted NonProperty

17



LandDevelopments to pay Payback Fees shall survive the term of this Agreement in the event

this Agreement terminates prior to the expiration dates set foRh in Sections 13b and e above

14 Plans Submittal

Owner shall submit all plats and plans to City Staff concurrent with Owner s submittal of

said plans to the County if applicable unless otherwise directed by the City Owner shall

incorporate City comments into plans provided to the County if applicablc in order to ensure

that Ciy mastcr plan and design standards are met lor thc Citys residcntial design and

developmen standards including but nol limited to such items as on sitc parking sebacks
access to dcllings onsite infraslructinc City streets sever lines and storm drainagc
Development of the property cannot occur unil the City has concurred that ihat plans comply
with the above standards

15 Agriculture Use

Owner shall have the right to use or grant rights to use the undeeloped part of the

Property for agriculture purposes including livestock grazing but not dairy or feed lot

operations until such tiine as development begins on at least fifteen 15 percent of that part of

the Property provided such uses do not constitute a nuisance to the developed areas of the

Properry However Owner shall use fences setbacks and other physica buffers to adequately
separate the agricultural uses from other uses and Owner shall utilize agricultral practices to

control dust odors and water runoff and other resulting conditions from the agricultural uses to

ensure that such agricultural uses comply with the Rules that apply to such agricultural uses

16 Citys Failure to Perform

Except as otherwise permitted pursuant to Section 3 and Section 6 above if the City does

not allow the subject Property to be developed in accordance with this Agreement or any

approved preliminary plats consistent with the PAD Zoning and this Agreement then the Owner

shall be entitled to petition an arbiCrator in accordance with Section 20 of this Agreement to

specifically enforce the provisions of this Agreement

17 Communitv Identification Sins and Homeowner Association

a Owner may construct and maintain community identificalion signs in accordance

with the Citys sign code rules and regulations Owner may not lease any community
identification signs to third parties or use the signs for any purpose other than community
identification

b Prior to the submittal of the first application for a residcntial building permit to

the City and pursuant to a decaration of Covenants Conditions and Restrictions CCRs by
the Owner the Owner shall form a master Homeowners Association HOA that govems the

single family residential portion of the Properry The CCRs shall incorporate the requirements
of this Agreement and further provide that eithcr the HOA a subassociation or the Owner until
such time as Owner as Declurunt relinquishes control of the HOA to the property owner as

provided in the CCRs shall maintain the trails drainage facilities landscaping alongrihtsof

ix



way and private open spaces and private common areas within the Property

18 City Decisions and Inspections

a Decisions The Parties agree that if at any time an impasse has been reached with

the Ciry Staff on any issue affecting the Property the Ower shall have the right to appeal to the

Ciry Representative for purposes of this Agreement the City Representative shall be the City
Planning and Zoning Director for a decisiou pursuant to this paragraph If thc issue on whicft an

impasse has been reached is an issue where a inal decision can bc rcached by the City Staff the

Citv Represcntative shall givc the Owier a tinal decision within tifleen 15 business days afler

the request for a decision is made If the issue on which an impasse has becn rcached is one

whcre a final dccision requires action by he City Council the City Representative shall use

hisher best reasonable effoRs to schedule thc matter for a Ciry Council hearing within four 4
weeks after the request for an expedited decision is made provided however that if the issue is

appropriate for review by the City Manager the matter shall be submitted to the City Manager
firsC and then to the City Council Adverse decisions of the City Staff pursuant to the

development reviev and approval process as set forth in the applicable City ordinances and state

law may be submitted by the Owner to the City Council ar to the City Manager first if

appropriate for its consideration review and decision

b Reviews and Inspections In the event the City does not have a sufficient

number of personnel to administer the development review process or the land development and

construction inspection services in a reasonably prompt manner Owner upon the approval of the

City may elect to pay the costs incurred or to be incurred by the City for such private
independent consultants and advisors which ma be retained by the City as necessary to assist

the City in the review andor inspection process provided however that such consultants shall

take insCructions from be controlled by and be responsible to the City and not Owner

City does and will from time to time at the election of City use the assistance of private
independent attorneys accountants architects engineers inspectors and other outside

professionals and consultants to assist Ciry in the process of administering the development of

ProperCy within the boundaries of City including the Properry If the City retains additional

outside professionals and consultants in connection with the Propery Owner shall reimburse

City for all reasonable fees and cosu of the professionals and consultants Although City shall

have the right to retain and control the professionals and consultants City prior to such

selection shall consider Owners recommendation in connection with the selection of the

additional professionals and consultants

19 Defaults

Failure or unreasonable delay by either Parfy to perform or otherwise act in accordance

with any term or provision of this Agreement for a period of fifteen 15 days after written notice

thereof from the other party CuePeriocP shall constitute a default under this Agreement
provided however that if the failure or delay is such that more than fifteen 15 days would

reasonably be required Co perform such action or comply with any lerm or provision hereof then

such party shall have such additional time as may be necessary to perform or comply so long as

19



such party commences performance or compliance within said fifteen 15 day period and

diligently proceeds to complete such performance or fulfill such obligation Said notice shall

specify the nature of the alleged default and the manner in which said default may be

satisfactorily cured if possible In the event such default is not cured within the Cure Period the

nondefaulting party shall have all rights and remedies that are set forth in Section 20 of this

Agreemcnt In addition to the dispute resolution process and remedies set forth in Section 20 of

this Agreement and Exhibit E hereto and notwithstanding anything in this Agreement to the

contrary Cip shall have the right lo vilhhold hc issuance of building pennits for improvements
on Hie Property affeced bv such dcfault rcgardlcss of Propertp oNmcrship until hc Dcfault is

curcd by Ovner Nothing conkined in this section shall prevent Ciry from using any remedics

or imposing any fincs available lo it undcr thc Rulcs for u violation or brcach by Owner of any

Rules

20 Dispute Resolution Remedies

Wilh respect to all disputes claims or allegations of default under this Agreement the

parties shall be limited Yo the remedies and dispute resolution process set forth in Exhibit E and

in this Section Any dispute controversy claim or cause of action arising out of or relating to

this Agreement shall be governed by Arizona law Ihe Owner and the City agree that any award

rendered by the arbitrator as defined in Exhibit E pursuant to the provisions of Exhibit E shall

be binding on both parties and if either parry does not abide by the award rendered by the

arbitrator the provisions of Exhibit E shall appl

21 Waiver

No delay in exercising any right or remedy shall constitute a waiver thereof and no

waiver by the Ciry or the Owner of the breach of any covenant of this Agreement shali be

construed as a waiver of any preceding or succeeding breach of the same or any other covenant

or condition of this Agreement

22 Time is Essence and Successors

Time is of the cssence of this Agreement All of the provisions hereof shall inure to the

benefit of and be binding upon the successors and assigns of the Parties hereof including without

limitation to third parey builders provided however the Owners rights and obligations
hereunder may only be assigned to a person or entity that has acquired die Property or a portion
thereof and only by a written instrument recorded in the Official Records of Pinal County
Arizona expressly assigning such rights and obligations

Notwithstanding the foregoing the City agrees that the ongoing ownership operation and

maintenance obligations provided by this Agreement may be assigned to one or more

homeowners associations to be established by the Owner The Owner agrces to provide the City
with written notice of any assignment of the Owner s rights or obligations within fifteen

15 days after such assignment In the event of a complete assignment by Owner of all rights
and obligations of Owner hereimder Owners liability hereunder shall terminate effective upon
tle assumption by Owners assignee As a condition precedent to the release of the Owner as

zo



contemplated by this Section 22 the City shall determine exercising its reasonable discretion
that the homeowners association is capable of performing and paying for the obligations
assigned to it Nothing in this Agreement shall operate to restrict the Owners ability to assign
any of its rights and obligations under this Agreement to those entities that acquire any portion of

the Property

23 No Owner Representations

Nothing containcd herein or in thc PAD7oning shall be deemcd to obliatc the City or

the Ovner to coinpletc an part or all of thc dcvelopmeni of the Property in accordancc with the

PAD Plan or any other plan nd the PAD 7oning shall not be deemed a represcntation or

warranty by the Owner of any kind whatsoever

24 Good Standin2 Authoritv

Each of the Parties and their assigns represents and will represent and warrants to the

other that as applicable i it is duly formed and validly exisfing under the laws of Arizona
with respect to the Owner or a municipal corporation within the State of Arizona with respect to

the City ii that Owner is an Arizona corporation or limited liabiliry company duly qualified to

do business in tle Sfate of Arizona and is in good standing under applicable state laws and

iii that the individualsexecuting this Agreement or who will execute this Agreement on

behalC of their respectivc parties are authorized and empowercd to bind the Party on whose

behalf each such individual is signing

25 EntireAreement

This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement bctween the parties hereto peRaining to

the subject matter hereo All prior and contemporaneous agreements representations and

understanding of the parties oral or written are hereby superseded and merged herein

26 Amendment

No change or addition is to be made to this Agreement except by a written amendment

executed by the Owner and the Ciry Within ten 10 days after any amendment to this

Agreement has been executed such amendment shall be recorded in the official records of Pinal

County Arizona

27 Severabiliri

If any provision of this Agreement is declared void or unenforceable such provision shall

be severed from this Agreement which shall otherwise remain in full force and effect If any

applicable law or court of competent jurisdiction prohibits or excuses the Ciry from undertaking
any contractual commitment to perform any act hereunder this Agreement shall remain in full

force and effect but the provision requiring such action shall be deemed to permit the City to

take such action at its discrction if such a construction is permitted by law tf however the Ciry
fails to take the actions described herein the Owner shall be entitled to tenninate this Agreement

2t



and initiatedeannexation procedures

28 GoverninQ Law

This Agreement is entered into in Arizona and shall be construed and interpreted under

the laws of Arizona The provision ofARS 3851 I are incorporated herein and made a parl
hereof

29 Lonin Amendmcot

a Maior Amendments Unless othcrwise rcquired bv t1c Rules the folloinb
changes shall bc considercd major amendments to Uic PAD Lonin and shall require City
Council approvaL i if the PAD Zoning includes provision for commercial uses and the change
involves an increase or deerease in the total number of acres devoted to commercial uses if the

acreagc devoted to commercial uses changes more than five 5 acres within the Vah Ki Inn

Properly iiary change to a higher residential classification if such change results in an

increase of more than one classification iii any increase in the total number of residential units

to be developed on the Properry as set forth in the PAD Zoning or iv the reallocation of

residential dwelling units within planning phases from one planning phase to another in a manner

that results in any of the following as measured against tle original land use density set forth in

the PAD Zoning 1an increase in the number of residential dwelling units for any one

particular planning phase of greater than ten 10 of the total number allocated to such

planning unit in the PAD Zoning or 2 a reduction in the number of residential dwelling units

for any one particular planning phase by an amount greater than twentyfive percent 25 of the

total number allocated to such planning phase in the PAD Zoning

b Minor Amendments Unless required specifically by the Rules minor

modifications and amendments to the PAD Zoning shall not necessitate approval by the Ciry
Council but shall be approved by the Ciry Planning Director and recorded in theocial records

of the Pinal County Recorder Unless otherwise required by the Rules the following changes
shal be considered minor modifieations and amendments to the PAD 7oning i any increase or

decrease in the total number of acres devoted to commercial uses if the acreage devoted to

commercial uses does not rise or fall below five 5 acres within the Vah Ki Inn Property
ii any change to a higher residential classification if such change does not result in an increase

of more than one 1 classification iii any reallocation of the number residential dwelling
phases within one planing phase to another planning phase so long as such reallocation does not

constitute a major amendment under the provisions of Subsection 29a iv any relocation of

street layouts and any parks and trails on the PropeRy in response to changed market conditions

and in conformance with the Citys General Plan v any minor alteration to the list of permitted
land uses of the Property set foRh in the PAD Zoning as reasonably deemed to be minor by the

Planning Director vi a material deletion or change in the Infrastructure Improvements of the

Owners obligation to construct such nfrastrucmre mprovements or vii any other

modification or change to the PAD Loning which does not constitute a major amendment under

the terms of Section 29a

22



i No change or addition is to be madc to this Agreement cxccpt by
written amendment executed by the Owner and by either the City Council approved signatory or

the City Planning Director as dictated by Section 29al and bl

ii The Cify shall record in the Official Records of Pinal County any

amendment to this Agreement within ten 0 days following execution by the Parties

iii Upon amendmcnt of this ilgmement as estblished herein
rcfcrcnccs to Agrecmcnt or Devdopmcnt Agrccmenr shall mcan lhe Agrccment as amendcd

by any subsequcnt duly processed amcndmcnt

iv The ctfective date of any duly processed amendment shall be the

date on which the last representative for the partics cxecutes the Agreement

If after the effective date of any amendments the Parties find it oecessary to refer to

this Agreement in its original unamended form they shall refer to it as the Origial
Development Agreement When the Partics mean to refer to any specific amendment to the

Agreement which amendment is unmodified by any subsequent amendments Yhe Parties shall

refer to it by the number of the amendment as well as its effective date

30 Recordation

This Agreement shal be recorded in its entirety in the official records of Pinal County
Arizona not later than ten 10 days after this Agreement is executed by the City and the Owner

31 Notices and Requests

Any notice or other communication required or permitted to be given under this

Agreement shall be in writing and shall be deemed to have been duly given if a delivered to the

parry at the address set forth below b deposited in the US Mail registered or ceRified return

receipt requested to the address set forth below c given to a recognized and reputable
overnight deivery service to the address set forth below or d delivered by facsimile

transmission to the number set forth below

The Ci City Managcr
City of Coolidge
130 West Central Avenue

Coolidge Arizona 852284406

520 7235367 Telehone
520 7237910 Fax

23



With Conv To City Attorney for Coolidge
Mr Denis Fitzgibbons
Fitzgibbons Law Offices PLC

P O Box I 1208

7l 1 E Cottonwood Suite E

Casa Grande Arizona 852301208

520 4263824 Telephone
520 4269355 Pacsimilc

The Owncrs DJ POINf LLC

C658 S St nndrevs Ct

Gilbeit AZ 85298

Attn Donna Ricke

480 6327272 Telephone
480 6327550 Facsimile

COOLIDGF PROPGRTY INVESTMENTS LLC

2152 S Vineyard St 205

Mesa Arizona 85210

Attn Gerald J Ricke

480 6327272 Celephone
480 6327550 Facsimile

LATEO17 LLC

PO Box 1236

Gilbert AZ 85299

Attn Jeff Foshee

602 7228892 Telephone
480 8922810 Facsimile

FREDSPLACE LLC

9402 S 157 Place

Gilberi AZ 85234

Attn Fred Gieszl

480 6339600 Telephone
480 9889483 Facsimile

With Coav to IPLAN CONSULTING

4387 E Capricorn Place

Chandler Arizona 85249

Attn Mario Mangiamele ACP

480 3138144 Telephone
480 8078337 Facsimile

24



or at such other address and to the attention of such other person or officer as any Party may

designate in writing by notice duly given pursuant to this Section Notices shall be deemed

received a when delivered to the Party b three business days after being placed in the US

Mail properly addressed with sufficient postage c the following business day after being
given to a recognized overnight delivery service with the person giving the notice paying all

required charges and instructing the delivery service to deliver on the following business day or

d when received by facsimile transmission during the normal business hours of the recipient if

a copy of a notice is also givcn to a Partys counsel or other rccipienL the provisions above

governing the datc on which a noticc is deemtd to havc bcen receivcd b a Party shall mcan and

refer to thc date on vhich dic Party and not is counsel or other recipicm totihich a copy of the

notice mav be scnt is dcemed to have reccived the noticc

32 Exhibits and Recitals

Any exhibit attached hereto shall be deemed to have been incorporated herein by this

reference with the same force and effect as if fully set forth in the body hereo The Recitals set

forth at the beginning of this agreement are hereby acknowledged and iucorporated herein and

the parties hereby confirm the accuracy thereof

33 Term

The term of this Agreement shall commence on the date and at the time an ordinance

approving and adopting this Agreement is approved by the Ciry Council and shall automatically
terminate on the twentieth 20th anniversary of such date However if any of the Property is

still subject to lhis Agreement twenty 20 years after the cffective date of this Agreement this

Agreement shall automatically extend without the necessity of any notice agreement or

recording by or between the Parties an additional ten 10 years for a total of thirty 30 years at

which time this Agreement shall automatically terminate as to the Property without the necessiry
of any notice agreement or recording by or between the Parties Notwithstanding the foregoing
if no material portion of the Infrastructure Plan has been constructed within eight 8 years from

the date of this Agreement at any time thereafrer this Agreement shall automatically terminate as

to the Property upon notice of such termination being given by the City to the Owner and

recording of a notice of termination by the City

34 Effective Date

This Agreement shall become effective and shall be binding upon and enforceable by all

parties hereto their successors and assigns immediately upon the approval by the City Council

of this document

35 Indemnity

To the extent permitted by law Owner shall pay defend indemnify and hold harmless

the City and its Council members officers officials agents volunteers and employees for from

and against any and all claims demands fines penalties costs expenses damaes losses

obligations judgments liabilities and suits including attorneys fees experts fees and court costs

associated which arise from or relate in any way to any act or omission by Owner or its

25



employees contractors subcontractors agents or representatives undertaken in fulfillment of

Owners obligations under this Agreement or otherwise arising fron or relating to the

performance of Owners obligations under this Agreement including with respect to the

Property The provisions of this Section however shall not apply to loss or damage or claims

therefore which are attributable solely to acts or omissions of the City its Council members

offcers officials agents employees volunteers contractors subcontractors or representatives

36 Proposition 207 VVaiver

Owner agrees undestands and acknowledgcs that Citv is entering into this Agrcement in

good faih and at the specific request of Owner and further ith the understanding that if City
acts consistently with lhe terms and conditions herein it ill not be subjec to a claim for

diminished value of the Property from Owner Owner on behalf of it and its successors and

assigns intends to encumber the Property with the following agreements and waivers Owner

agrees and consents to all the conditions imposed by this Agreement and by signing this

Agreement waives any and all claims suits damages compensation and causes of action Owner

may have now or in the future under he provisions ofARS 121134 through and including
121136 but specifically excluding any provisions included therein relating to eminent domain
and resulting from the development of the Vroperty consistent with this Agreement or from any

9and use lav as such term is defined in the aforcmentioned statute sections permitted by this

Agreement to be enacted adopted or applied by City now or hereafter Owner acknowledges
and agrees to the terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement and Owner acknowledges that

such terms and conditions cause the fair market value of the Propery to equal or eaceed the fair

market value of the Property in the absence of this Agreement and such 9and use laws

Remainder of Page Left Intentiooalty Blank

26



IN WITNESS WHEREOF the parties have executed this Agreement on the dates written

below

CITY

CITY OF COOLIDGE ARIZONA a municipal
corporation

L3
Thomas R Shope Mayor for Ciry of Coulidgc

Date

Attest

Norma Ortiz Clerk for the City of Coolidge

APPROVED AS TO FORM AND AUTHORITY

The foregoing Agreement has been reviewed by
the undersigned attorney who has determined that

it is in proper form and within the power and

authority granted under the laws of the State of

Arizona to the City of Coolidge

Attorney for Ciry of Coolidge

STATE OF ARIZONA

ss
County of

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this day of

201 by Thomas R Shope the Mayor of the CITY OF COOLIDGE
a Arizona municipal corporation

Nofary Pubtic

My Commission Expires

z



OWNER

DJ POINT LLC

STATE OF ARIZONA

ss
County of

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this day of

201 by as of DJ POINT LLC

Notary Public

My Commission Expires

g



OWNER

COOLIDGE PROPBRTY INVESTMENTS LLC

STAfl OF ARIZONA

ss
County of

Tle foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this day of

201 by as of Coolidge Property
Investments LLC

Notarv Public

My Commission Expires

29



owrrEU

LATEOTTLLC

S1nTG OI AR17ONA

ss
Counry of

The foregoing instrument as acknowledged before me this day of

201 by as of Lateott LLC

Notary Public

My Commission Expires

30



OWNER

FRGDS PLACE LLC

SIAIL OF nR170NA

ss
County of

The foregoing insfrument was acknowledged before me this day of

201 by as of Preds Place
LLC

Notary Public

My Commission Expires

3



EXHIBITS

Exhibit A Legal Description of Vah Ki Inn Property
Fxhibit A1 Legal Description Exhibit of Vah Ki Inn Property
Exhibit i3 Lcgal Dcscription of Nafiiaer Property
Exhibit B1 Lcgal DcscriptionLhibit of Naizigcr Property
ExhibitC Vested Riehts

Exhibit D Vlorutorium Lav

Exhibit E Dispute ResolutionRemedies

Remainder of Page Left Intentionally BlankJ

2



EXHIBIT A

TO

DJ POINT COOLIDGE PROPERTY LATEOTT AND FREDS PLACE

PRGANNFXATION AND

DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT

Legal Description of Vah Ki Inn Property

Remainder of Page Left Intentionally Blank

33



ExxIBIT a I

THAT CERTAN PAPCEL OF LAND S RECCRuEC IM1l DCCUMEPlT NJ16ER ZOOoOi7CF ZECOH65 GF

PINAL COUIY ORE PARTICULARIY DESCBED AS OLLvViS

i

THE SOOTH HALF OF SECTICiJ 13 TOWNSHIP 5 SOUTH RNGL 8 EPSf OF iHE GiLA AND SALT RIVES

f3ASE AND MERiCIAiJ PINAL COUNTY ARiZONP

EXCEPi THE WDIAN r2ANCH WELL SITE AS LOCATEC ON FEBRUAR 26 1935 LOCAED IN THE

NORTNEAST GUHRTEP OF THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER OF SAID SECTICtJ 13

F

s

s
c

s
arFe

c ebof
47250

ABEL
BLCLRR1

1
ES

SPAZON U

FkPire 32I

SUNRISEfl
7C 4dFlaIiFs

PAG 1 OF 5 zisz some vneraao sure zs

MESA ARRONA 8521G

lEL9e06bB6C0 FAOFO688609

xMYSfIllfLfCIQNM



EXHIBIT A

THAT ERTAW FPRCEL OF LAND AS RFrORDED N DOCUlAEfdT NUlAnEP 20002378 RECCRDS OP PifJAL

COUNTY MORE ARTICULARLY DESCRIED AS FQLIOWS I

FARCE NO 1

AN UNDIVIDED HALF INTREST IN AiD TO THAT PORi0id THE PlOPTRTtST QUiRTEfZ OF SCTICPI i8

TOSNNSHIP 5 SOUTH RANGE 9 EAST Of THE GILA HND SALi RVER EASE AtdD MdERIDAN PINAL CWNTY

APoZONA DESCRI8E0 AS FOLLONS

3EGiPlNiNG AT TiE CENiER C SAID SECTICN 18

TNENCE SOUTH 89 DEGREES 36 MINU cS 14 SECONDS WEST E252 FEET ALONG TNE EkSTVIEST MID

FCTION LiNE

THENCE NORTH 00 DEGREES 03 FNUTES 40 SECONDS WEST 1303 fEET PAPAILEL TO THE NORHSOUTH

ldlpSECPON LINF OP SAIJ SECTION 78

THENCE NORPi 89 DEGREES 36 MINUTcS 74 SECONCS EAST 825L FcET PARALLEL i0 TNE EASTWEST

F IDSECTION ItE

sifiENCE SGUH OC DEGRcES 03 MINUTES 40 SECONDS EAST 13053 rEET ALONG TFi hORTHSOUTH

MIDSECTICN UNE 0 THE F61NT OF BEGINNING

PARCEL NO 2

eTHE SOUTHST QUARTR Of TH IJORTHWEST QUkRTER AND THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER CF SECTION 78

TOWNSHiP 5 SOUTH RANGE 9 EAST OF iHE GIP AND SALT RIVER BASE AND 1ERIDfAN INPL COUNTY

ARIZONA

ZSFRE
D

SLci 1AI f
P f Ib

r
47290

i I AfieL

I BECERRA

1 n
s

AAqONRJSP
FkPires 3

l

SUNI2IiiiTiAifir3

P4C 2 OF 5 zsz sour mevnao sre as

PESh0IZONA 85210

TE1560b8600 FF4SOJfi985C9

WYWNII15EPI18MI11



EXHIBIT A

ARCEL ND 3

Tlic SOUi11EAST QUARTR OF OF THE NORTHVFST QUAHTER GF SEC7iN 18 uWPJSHIP 5 SOUTN RPNCE 9

EAS OF THE iA fiND SALT RIVER UcDIANIAt COUTYiRiZONti

EXCEPT TFFT PDR710N DESCRIED AS OLCYS

EGINNiPG AT iHE CNTER OF SFIC SCTICM 78

iIiENCE OUTH Eg OEGREES 36 MINUTES 74 SECOPDS WEST 5252 FEET ALONG THE EASTVST NID

StCT10N L1Nf

THENCc NCRr 00 DEGREE 03 MINUES 40 SECOfJDS VJES 13053 FEE PARALLEL TO TiE NORLSOUTH

MICSCPON LIlJE OF SD SECION 18

THENCE NORTH 9 DEGREES 36 MiNUTES 1 SECOPlDS ASi 8252 PEET PAHALLEL 70 HE EASTNST

MIUSECTON WE

THENCE SOViH 00 DcGREES 03 MINUTES 40 SECONCS ESI 13053 rEET ALOIJG THE NORISOUTH

FrIDSECTION LINE TO TiE PONT OF 9EGINNING

s

s

1

Za
Ip

S
ICATt fL

G v A

47290 1ABEL

BErERRA

006i17
eaaw

h

qR20NA U9

FkPires J2

if SUNRISE
dt

tetfLIt

PAGE 3 Of 5 us sourHvrerAno sur as

MESR RIZOdA 652P

iELJBOJ6d9600 FpX4806896PI

WkM1V3111IISClISCY11



EXHIBIT A1

TO

DJ POINT COOLIDGE PROPERTY LATEOTT AND FREDSPLACE

PREANNEXATION AND

DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT

Legal Description Exhibit of Vah Ki Inn Property

Remainder of Page Left Intentionally Blank

37



V

J
f 2 W Fa r b

l w o z i
Z rt

c o w J o
4 UTAr o r

CLi63ZQ91A05 yLL
i

a j Z

tti O i

w

I
z O

c u if JP
U w

rj
n

7 ry C ry O ti iG O ty c fi O
a I Q O

UiY c O C
r1 N J

N
C n

Ncv to Y N Q
Z

Oi Z
I Z i

on w r1Y

N NU W ZK r
i O d Q S Qd
j Z Q G In

Ma

t B

raSW

1 I
Q LLO
Q ZaJ Vj

bOIfI WpOOUI
I 3 SL6GS c J

BSNl9Z3iSLlOtS
o W
invnO

3 i

I c0 7 OUK 1 N IO

rn
I
Z

O
O

1 N
z ro

icoo w Y
r

T mU U
cn C wU

c Q w co w 3 c

x awvscn o a I
W

m
o m o

w
rn

z

i

j wa t o
d S Q I

JJ Zm
r w a rn a p

o 2

o mvi zcvs

I w v a
r a o a v v r

zwo on
a

i zr z vain

vcw oui
U tn H

u

N
I

I
C I J

YiO LL ry O i

6I N O OI
rJy I I i a a w a

a e

m G cp
i i

N
i i

M L F

i 4 dS919Z36SlGON i

6 p J W
O

U Z

O
w

V u li UtN U

o w U O w

3nc mcin a

oeess i r oaeazmwr ovr



EXHIBIT A1

SUPPORTMG DOCUM6NT LIST

1 DOC N0 2004023578 FCR 5 OC N0 9802138 PCR

Z COC N0 2C06Oi i00B CR o DOC N0 95032516 PCR

3 GOCKET 75 PAGE 577 FCR 7 QOC PO 9502515 PCR

4 BOOK 16 PPGE 89 PCR 3 C 380 PnG 335340 PCR j
5 DOC N00025207 PCR

CFEIGF

GROSS 4RE APP 209156048iG75503 54UARE FEET OR 001 ACR5 dCRE j
Ok LESS

NET AREA9627390 SGUARE FEET Cti 22101 ACRE tdOPE OR LESS tii ARA

FCLUDES PIUA IATFRPL CANA RUJ DECLAREO ROADPJAY RW

GRCSS AREA APN 202200067OE482 SQUARE FEE GR tE2183 ACRESAORE Q4

LFSS

NET AREAo890609 SOUARE FEET GH 158186 ACRES MOR OR LESS NET AREA

EkCLUDES DECLAPED ROAUNAY RW

GOSS AREA AFN 20226005353445 SQUAPE FEET OR 81139 APS MORE GR

LESS

E NET ARE43491200 SQLHRE FEET OR SOla6 ACeS MOE OP LESS NET AREA

EXCLUDES DECLARD ROPDWAY RN7

LEGEND

PCR PINAL COUtdTY RFCORDS BOUNDFRY LiN

AN ASSESSOR PARCL NUMBER SECTION LWE

RjW RIGHT Of JAY RW LIPJE

SGRVEYOR S NOTE

SECTlOd 18 OF TOWNSHIP 5 SOUT RANG 9 E4ST GSRM IS N GLO LOTD SEC10

AIONG TNE ENTiRE V1c5T LINE THE LEGFL CESCRIPTIGN OF ANY PORION ALONG TAi

LWE SHOULD BE DESCRIBED AS A GLO LOT OR A POPTON OF A GLO LCTIdGT AN

ALIQOUT PART DESCRIPTION A GUGENT EFFORT VlAS MPDE TO REVEPL HOY7 APdD WHEN

APN 202260O5 WAS FIRS DESCRIBED AS AN ALItUOT FART BUT CAiA WAS

UNAVALABLE Ai THE TIME 0 PRODUCING TNIS EXHIEIT THIS SURVEYOR RESERVcS THE

RIGHi TO MODIFY THIS EXHIEITIF PftEVIOUSLY UNAVAILABLE DATA REEALS THE ND

FOR CHANGES

ZlE0f0
L p

S
QySa c

G I fb

47290
ABEL

9ECERRA yq
fStNRISE6 t t

rgona4Y itvyi1itisiiPPGE 5 Of 5

j 2152gpUTHVINGVAPDStITi23
MESA A3IZONA 8R1G

TELaB0J638600 PPa306fl8609

W11WTI1tlISCCI1800li



EXHIBIT B

TO

DJ POINT COOLIDGE PROPERTY LATEOTT AND FREDS PLACE

PREANNEXATION AND

DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT

Legal llescription of Nafziger Property

Remainder of Page Left Intentionally Blank

ao



EXHIBIT B

THAT CER4iN PACEL OF AN fS RECORDD IN DOCUMENI NUNBER 2C5183G69
RtCiRGc ni FidAl iiUJ1Y NiGPr TICIiLARLf01CRfiED AS CiOVl

HE SOUfHWEST C1UAPTER OF SECiON 5 01DiSIIIP SOUiH RAPG 8 ASf 0

HE GILA AiD SALT RIVtR BAE AND IJERDIAN PINAL COUNTY APIZONA

EXCEPT THE FOLLOWING DESCRIBED PROPrFTY

BEGINNING AT THE NORTHUfES CCFNR OF TH SOUTHNI QUARTER OF SAID

SECTiON 25

THFNCE EASTFRY ALONG THE NORTH BOUNDAR1 LINE CF SAID SOUTHWtST

UARTER A DISTANC Gr i0800 rEET

THEtJCE SOUTHERLY AND PPPALLcL TO THE WtST BOUNGARY LINE OF SAID

SOUTHWEST OUPRIER A DISTANCE OF 24800 FET

THENCE WESTERLY AND PARALLEL TG TH NGRTN BCUNuARY LiNE 0 SAL

SOUTHbVEST QUARTER A DISTANCE OF 2400 FEET

F THENCE NORTHFRLY AND PARALLEL TO TN UJST 6CUNDARY LNE OF SAIC

SOUTHWEST GUARTER A DSTANCE OF 21800 rEET

THENCE WESTERLY APPRGIM4TELY 85000 FET TO A PQINT ON THr WEST

BOUNDARY LINE OF SAID SOUHVJEST QUARTR

THENCt NORTHERLY r1LGNG THE tiEST BOUNU4RY LIlE 0 SAID SOUTFI1hEST

UARERAPROYMATELY 3000 FEET TG TNE POIP i OF BEUINNING

c6RE0 DSL

o i arf
No P

4290

A9E
l aECtRRA

DljJsmS
4RIZOkU

FGires 3

iSUITr4 iiti4evtlL11rlS

nsz surn vwernao suire iz3

FAGE 1 OF 2 nesnnamweszm
TEL 580J6866W P 1BCJGE9

wwxsrmiseengtom



EXHIBIT B1

TO

DJ POIIVT COOLIDGE PROPERTY LATEOTT AND FREDSPLACE

PREANNEXATION AND

DEVELOPMEIVT AGREEMENT

Legal DescriptionFxhibit of Nafziger Property

Remainder of Page Left Intentionally Blank

a2



n

1
W

w W
r q

w O vJ
y

s

m Z
w

F
w z5 o vi z

o

lY W W i Z Q J w
3 v r n

4 vL J 2 t4i L C W W
1 f p U

l t 7

V m o o riii ii or
c

y
r V Z x i1 c

p x
lv 9 v

r 2

T u 2 J
w tR G a V

U o O r z s r P
r

i
i i i O rfj4 r i o

n o v vi r t o vti t 3 VA v u f
O c 2 r i w w n

cn w

C r crr a c tLGttntnt
sa

j z w Q W
YY v cu

I
iU O C

Q 4
p G C

I

J 2 I
p Gl

O H O X U J1O
1 LOJrr Ci li aK

a d aosocsoz avd

Nnva hd sna cie a3wvo

S1fdIV5 1f 2i3llVl 0 1SIJH SS3P 0 Haf1H0 d3NM0

t9S9Z3E9SOD xz

U
gb NOLL3S 3NI1 z w i

c

z NOi13S OiNI H1GOS zp i

H
U d I IJCL

Z CJ J
4 Y d

Fi O Lli W Wi V I
m7v 4 NO R C Z OQ

YU u u
vi I I NO

ijl Z v Z cI N N N v t

W J M

U
Z OI O Q EJ

UO
m l

d NI N O I
W n

LiiI r Q I
I W

UO J

a xo v I a Ir
Z O wm O lii UO Z

x Y I I
W a

I rC
Z i M I

Nc w ncJ m
v

m
O O O DC OIO O OI Lc N

3

O c rv r u Q ro c0 c O
1 o

Z
bq 1 I 1 I tv

p J IYI Yk Z 9 N N N IlA
a

I IJJJI
MN

Z Ci
J LJ

d N I fJ i Q

I r M V v
Qi J I LL Il

N C IiV
n I

49 U
2 Ia

1 Z7 i I
I

LL

S
W u O

L i J I I i
Vl I Q

Y V F p y
W IO

a C
I I

O F

I Itn t V v z F

3 Q
z

Q
z

w SL NOI1J3 83121Y10 AyMOVON N g
a cv 1S1M1lFli1C aFll 0 3NIl 153M

ot
43db13C 99 u

s
J

izzzrnoiiz00r ovoaaaizvN
N

w i i
o

a
0
r

ev o s sc s o ctcwr n r vzavv

4



EXHIBIT C

TO

DJ POINT COOLIDGE PROPERTY LATEOTT AND FREDSPLACE

PREANNEXATION AND

DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT

Vestcd Rights

Srrr DevriornHnrRrcutriosRHSuenni

Slundurd Zmiing
Densib Han e

LDR MOR MHDR HDR

Q0 40duac 47 80 duac 801 I50 801 240

duac Juac

Minimum Lot Area s ft 5200 2000 I800 unit na

Minimum Lot Width ft 48 35 na na

Minimum Lot De th ft ll0 na na na

Setbacks ft
Pront 20 15 10 10 10

Side Interior
3

5 8 0 or 5 0 or 5 0

SidcComerlivable 20 10 10 0

Rear 20 3 3 10

Max Iot Covera e 60o 80 na na

Max Bid Hei ht ft 30 36 36 na

1 LDR 20fool setback to front entry garage 15foot setback to livable

areas of dwelling units and side entry garages 10foot setback to front

porch
2 LDR Side Setbacks fireplaces popouts and roofprojections may

project up to2feet into the8foot minimum side yards only
3 MHDR HDR 10foot setback between buildings
4 LDR Patio covers may encroach up to 5feet into the required rear yard

setback for single story homes

Remainder of Page Left Intentionally Blank

44



SITE DEVELOPR1ENfREGULATIONS COMMERCIAL

Standards Zoning

Commercial C

Minimum Lot Width ft 100 10 Corner Lots

Minimum 3uilding Setbtck ft
Pront 0

Side Qnterior i

Side Street 20

Side Residentia 45

Rcar IS

Rear Residenial 45

Minimmn Parking Setback ft
Front 20

S i de I nterior 3

Side Street 1

Side Residentia
Rear 3

Rear Residential 3

Maimum Buildin Hei ht ft 35

Remainder of Page Left Intentionally Blank

45



EXHIBIT D

TO

DJ POINT COOLIDGE PROPERTY LATEOTT AND FREDSPLACE

PREANNEXATION AND

DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT

Moritorium Law ARS 946306

946306 Standardstorcnactmcnt ofmoratorium land dcvclopmcnt limitations dctinitions

A A cit or ton shall not adopt a moratorium on consuuction or Iand development unicss

it firsC

l Provides notice to the public published once in a newspaper of general circulation

in the community at least thirty days before a final public hearing to be held to consider the

adoption of the moratorium

2 Makes written findings justifying the need for the moratorium in the manner

provided for in this secfion

3 Holds a public hearing on the adoption of the moratorium and the findings that

support the moratorium

B For urban or urbanizable land a moratorium may be justificd by demonstration of a need

to prevent a shortage of essential public facilities that would otherwise occur during the effective

period of the moratorium This demonstration shall be based on reasonably available information

and shall include at least the following findings

1 A showing of the extent of need beyond the estimated capaciry of existing
essential public facilities expected to result from new land development including identification

of any essential public facilities currently operating beyond capacity and the portion of this

capacity already committed to development or in the case of water resources a showing that in

an active management area an assured water supply cannot be provided or outside an active

management area a sufficient water supply cannot be provided to the new land development

including identification of current water resources and the portion already committed to

development

2 That the moratorium is reasonably limited to those areas of the city or town where

a shortage of essential public facilities would otherwise occur and on property that has not

received development approvals based upon the sufficiency of existing essential public facilities

3 That the housing and economic development needs of the area affected have been

accommodated as much as possible in any program for allocating any remaining essential public
facility capacity

46



C A moratorium not based on a shortage of essential public facilities under subsection B of

this section may be justified only by a demonstration of compelling need for other public
facilities including police and fire facilities This demonstration shall be based on reasonably
available information and shall include at IeasC the following findings

1 For urban or urbanizable land

a That application of axisting dcvclopmcnt ordinances or regulations and

other applicable law is inadequatc to prcvcnt irrcvocablc public harm from delopmcnt in

affected geographical arcas

b That the moratorium is sufficiently limited to ensure that a needed supply
of affected housing types and the supply of commercial and industrial facilities within or in

proximity to the city or town are not unreasonably restricted by the adoption of the moratorium

c Stating the reasons that alternative methods of achieving the objectives of

the moratorium are unsatisfactory

d That the city or town has determined that the public harm that would be

caused by failure to impose a moratorium outweighs the adverse effects on other affected local

govemments including shifts in demand for housing or economic development public facilities

and services and buildable lands and the overall impact of the moratorium on population
distribution

e That the city or town proposing the moratorium has developed a work plan
and time schedule for achieving the objectives of the moratorium

2 For rural land

a That application of existing development ordinances or regulations and

other applicable law is inadequate to prevent irrevocable public harm from development in

affected geographical areas

b Stating the reasons that alternative methods of achieving the objectives of

the moratorium are unsatisfactory

c That the moratorium is sufficiently limited to ensure that lots or parcels
outside the affected geographical areas are not unreasonably restricted by the adoption of the

moratorium

d That the city or town proposing the moratorium has developed a work plan
and time schedule for achieving the objectives of the moratorium

D Any moratorium adopted pursuant to this section does nat affect any express provision in

a development agreement entered into pursuant to section950005 or as defined in section 11

1101 goveming the rate timing and sequencing of development nor does it affect rights

a7



acquired pursuant to a protected developmenL right granted according to chapter I I of this title or

title 1 L chapter 9 Any moratorium adopted pursuant to this section shall provide a procedure
pursuant to which an individual landowner may apply for a waiver of the moratoriums

applicability to its property by claiming rights obtained pursuant to a development agreement a

protected development right or any vested right or by providing the public facilities that are the

subject of the moratorium atthe landowners cost

E i1 moralorium adopted under subsection C paragraph I of this section shall no remain in

effect for more than one hundredtenty days but such a inoratorium may be extended for

additional periods of timc of up to one hundred twenty days if the ciry or rown adoptina the

moratorium holds a puhlic hcaring on the proposed extcnsion and adopts NriLten findings that

1 Verify the problem rcquiring the need for thc moratorium to be extended

2 Demonstrate that reasonable progress is being madc to alleviate the problem
resulting in the moratorium

3 Set a specific duration for the renewal of Che moratorium

F A city or town considering an extension of a moratorium shall provide notice to the

general public published once in a newspaper of general circulation in the community at least

thirry days before a final hearing is held to consider an extension of a moratorium

G Nothing in this section shall prevent a city or town from complying with any state or

federal law regulation or order issued in writing by a legally authorized govemmental entiry

H A landowner aggrieved by a municipalitysadoption of a moratorium pursuant to this

section may file at any time within thirty days aFter the moratorium has been adopted a

complaint for a trial de novo in the superior court on the facts and the law regarding the

moratorium All matters presented to the superior court pursuant to this section have preference
on the court calendar on the same basis as condemnation matters and the couR shal further have

the authority to award reasonable attorney fees incurred in the appeal and trial pursuant to this

section to the prevailing party

I In this section

1 Compelling need means a clear and imminent danger to the health and safety of

the public

2 Essential public facilities means water sewer and street improvements to the

extent that these improvements and water resources are provided by the city town or private
utilitv

3 Moratorium Qn construction or land development means engaging in a pattern
or practice of delaying or stopping issuance of permits authorizations or approvals necessary for

the subdivision and partitioning of or construction on any land t does not indude denial or

a8



delay of permits or authorizations because they are inconsistetwith applicable statutes rules

zoning or other ordinances

4 Rural land means all property in the unincorporated area of a county or in the

incorporated area of the ciry or town with a population of two thousand nine hundred or less

persons according to the most recent United States decennial census

5 Urban or urbanizable land means all propeRy in Ue incorporated arca of a city
or tom with a population of more than wo thousand ninc hundred persons according to the roost

reccnt United States decennial census

6 Vested righY means a right to dcvclop property established by the expcnditure of

substantial smns of money pursuant to a pennit or approval granted by the city town or county

Remainder of Page Left Intentionally Blank

49



EXHIBIT E

TO

DJ POINT COOLIDGE PROPERTY LATEOTT AND FREDSPLACE

PREANNEXATION AND

DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT

Dispute ResolutionRemedies

A Ihe dispute resoluLion proccss Process and remedies set forth herein shall not apply
to an action by the City to condemn or acquire by inverse condemnation all or any

porCion of the Property and in the evcnt of any such action by ihe City Owner shall have

all rights and remedies available to it at law or in equiry

B If an event of default is not cured within the Cure Period as defined at Section 19 of this

Agreement the nondefaulting party may institute the Process pursuant to Paragraph C

below

C Any conCroversy or claim subject to the Process shall be settled by an arbitration

administered by the American Arbitration Association AAA in accordance with its

Commercial Arbitration Rules Rules cxcept that the terms of this Agreement and this

Exhibit shall coitrol over conflicting rules and judgment on the award rendered by the

arbitrator may be entered in any court havingjurisdiction thereof

D The dispute shall be heard by a single arbitratar from a panel of qualified arbitrators

located within the Phoenix metropolitan area

E The place of arbitration shall be Coolidge Arizona unless the parties agree to another

location

F The parties agree that the remedies available for the award by the arbitrator shall be

limited to specific performance and declaratory relief and that under no circumstances

shall the arbitrator issue an award of monetary damages whether characterized as actual

consequential or otherwise provided however the arbitrator may award the payment of

an amount owed or enjoin the withholding of amounts due pursuant to this Agreement

G The parties have structured tlis Process with the goal of providing for the prmpt and

efficient resolution of all disputes falling within the purview of this Process The hearing
of any dispute shall be expedited and will commence as soon as practicable but no later

than fortyfive 45 days after selection of the arbitrator This deadline can be extended

only with the wnsent of both parties to the dispute or by decision of the arbitrator upon a

showing of emergency circwnstances

H The arbitrator shall determine the nature and scope of discovery if any and the manner

of presentation of relevant evidence consistent with the deadlines provided herein and

50



the parties objective lhat the disputes be resolved in a prompt and efficient manner No

discovery may be had of privileged materials or information The arbitrator upon proper

application shall issue such orders as may be necessary and permissible under law to

protect confidential proprietary or sensitive materials or information from public
disclosure or other misuse

1 In order to effectuate the parties goals the hearing once commenced will proceed from

business day to business day until concluded absent a showing of good cause

J Thc arbitrator shall within thirly 30 days from thc conclusion of thc hearing issuc the

award

K The arbitrator may determine how the costs and espenses of the arbitration shall be

allocated between the parties and may award attorneys fees to either party

L The award of the arbitrator shall be accompanied by a reasoned opinion

M The award of the arbitrator shall be final and binding Except as othenise provided in

this Agreement this Exhibit and the Commercial Arbitration Rules of the AAA the

Process slall be subject to the provisions of the Arizona Arbitration ActARS 12

1501 through and including 121518 In ehe event a paRy seeks confirmation of an

award or if there is a failure to abide by any award either party may seek any remedy at

law or equiry for failure to comply with the award but in no event shall the award be

reviewed de novo or consequential monetary damages be ordered by the court

51



z

CITY OF COOLIDGE

CITY COUNCL ACTION FORM

SUBJFCT Circle R III Annexation

STAFF PRESENTER C Alton Bruce

RECOMMENDATION Approval

DISCUSSION This annexation is at the request of the property owner Che owner

has plans to develop this land in the future in a manner consistent with the Citys General
Plan No specific plan has been developed at this time

FISCAL IMPACT

MinimaL The annexation area is vacant farm land with a total assessed value of

138406 The City would assume maintenance of approximately 900 feet of paved
roadway on Vah Ki Inn Rd

Attachments

Circle R III Annexation Ordinance

REVIEWED BY PREPARED BY

i

Robert Flat yiyiy Ma ger Tim Hansen GIS Coordinator

J
Lisa Pa ella Finance Director



ORDINANCE No 1108

AN ORDINANCE OF THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF

COOLIDGE ARIZONA EXTENDING AND INCREASING THE CORPORATE

LIMITS OF THE CITY OF COOLIDGE PINAL COUNTY STATE OF ARIZONA
PURSUANT TO THE PROVISIONS OF TITLE 9 CHAPTER 4 ARTICLE 7

ARIZONA REVISED STATUTES AND AMENDMENTS THERETO BY

ANNEXING THERETO CERTAIN TERRITORY CONTIGUOUS TO THE

EXISTING CITY LIMITS OF THE CITY OF COOLIDGE CONSISTING OF 240

ACRES MORE OR LESS AND LOCATED IN SECTIONS 18 AND 19
TOWNSHIP 6 SOUTH RANGE 9 EAST OF THE GILA AND SALT RIVER

BASE AND MERIDIAN PINAL COUNTY ARIZONA KNOWN AS THE

CIRCLE R III ANNEXATION

WHEREAS a petition in writing accompanied by a map or plot of said real property
having been filed and presented to the Mayor and Council of the City of Coolidge Arizona

signed by the owners of more than onehalf in value of the real and personal property and more

than onehalf of the persons owning real and personal property as would be subject to taxation

by the City of Coolidge Arizona in the event of annexation within the territory and land

hereinafter described as shown by the last assessment of said property which said territory is

contiguous to the City of Coolidge Arizona and not now embraced within its limits asking that

the property more particularly hereinafter described be annexed to the City of Coolidge Arizona
and to extend and increase the corporate limits of the City of Coolidge Arizona so as to

embrace the same and

WHEREAS the Mayor and Council of the City of Coolidge Arizona are desirous of

complying with said petition and extending and increasing the corporate limits of the City of

Coolidge Arizona to include said territory and

WHEREAS the said petitions sets forth a true and correct description of all the exterior

boundaries of the entire area proposed to be annexed to the City of Coolidge Arizona and had

attached thereto at all times an accurate map of the territory desired to be annexed and

WHEREAS no alterations increasing or reducing the territory sought to be annexed

have been made after the said petition had been signed by any owner of real and personal
property in such territory and

WHEREAS the provisions ofARS9471 and amendments thereto have been fully
pbserved and

WHEREAS proper and sufficient certification and proof of the foregoing facts are now

on file in the office of the City Clerk of the City of Coolidge Arizona together with a true and

correct copy of the original petition referred to herein which is on file in the office of the County
Recorder of Pinal County Arizona

NOW THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED BY THE MAYOR AND COUNCIL OF THE

CITY OF COOLIDGE ARIZONA AS FOLLOWS

SECTION 1 That the following described territory be and the same hereby is
annexed to the City of Coolidge Arizona and that the present corporate limits be and the same

hereby are extended and increased to include the following described territory contiguous to

the present City Limits to wit



Legal Description
Circle R III

Portions of land located in Sections 18 and 19 Township 5 South Range 9 East of the Gila and

Salt River Base and Meridian Pinal County more particularly described as follows

Section 18 T58 R9E

The South half of the Northwest quarter of Section 18 EXCEPT the West 33 feet

AND the Southwest quarter of Section 18 EXCEPT the West 33 feet

Section 19 T58 R9E

The North 33 feet of the West 59478 feet of the East 90836 feet of the Northwest quarter of Section

19 AND the North 50 feet of the East 31358 feet of the NoRhwest quarter of Section 19

TOTAL ANNEXED AREA 24098 Acres

SECTION 2 That a copy of this ordinance together with an accurate map of the

territory hereby annexed to the City of Coolidge Arizona certified by the Mayor of the said City
be forthwith filed and recorded in the office of the County Recorder of Pinal County Arizona

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Mayor and City Council of the City of Coolidge
Arizona on this 27th day of June 2011

Mayor

ATTEST APPROVED AS TO FORM

City Clerk City Attorney



CERTIFICATION OF MAP

l Thomas R Shope Mayor of the City of Coolidge Arizona do hereby certify that the

foregoing map is a truc and correct map oP the territory annexed under and by virtue of the

pefition of the real and personal property owners in the said territory and by Ordinance No 1 1

08 annexing the temtory described in Ordinance No 1108 and as shown on said map as a part
of the territory to be included within the corporate limits of the City of Coolidge Arizona

Mayor

ATTEST

City Clerk



21 22 23 24 1 19 20 21 22 23
y

24 L 19 20 i 21 22 3
r

i
r 7 i i

i i 1 i

i 9 i 1 i i

28 i 27 26 25 e 30
i

29 28 i 27 2 i 26
i 25 30 i 29

i 28 27 i 26

i

L 1 i
t L J i 1 r

i
r

y e
33 34 i 35 i 36 e 31 32 33 34 i 35 36 31 i 32 33 34

i
35

i o i

sreVsso
I

1
I 1

3 Z 1 gi 5 4 3 2 1 1 6 5 4 3 2

7 1 i
387 1 i 0 Q

k ri1

j 7 8 9 2 10 11 12 Q 7 1

s o ii LI SubjectAnnexation
o u o 16Q

2e

zi rc i

Y1 18 i 17 15 i 14 13 i 17 yi 15 14

ii Ki i
i fi

16 15 14 v 13 1
VAHKIINNRD

LL 6
rlL 1 l tL

iI BECITELRD i l 1
i

19 20 b 22 i
23 24 1920i 21 22 23

21 22 i23 24 1 21 COOLIOEAVE 1

r 2 r
VAL VISTARDj 1 2 O

U 1 W I ri I 1 4 i 1

I i 1 30i 29 i 28 27 260 i 25 30 u 29 28 27 i 26

8 1 27 26 25 J Y l I j U I

ri 1 L
i

II WOmORUFFRDi I1 i
i 31 32 i 33 4

35 2 i
36 31 i 32 33 34 35

n i

33 L yy 35 i BARTLExT R i
TrTe1TAL

MCCARTNEYRD 1 I I p1 1

Ti 1 1 I 1

I5 4 3 2 I 1 6

i
5 4 3 2 i 1 6 i 5 4 i 3

Z i i w i i

RAND LPH FD I I I i NDOLPH JfD W
JJ L I J

I 1 i p1
Iya

1
1 1

I 1 1 I Y 1 1
8 9 10 11 12 i 7 8 9 87 i 11 0 12 1 7 i 8 9 10

i i

1 KLEOKRD W Ci KLEKRD
l Q F y

C i C I
i

y r i i

17 W 16 15 14 13 j 18 yi 17 y 16 15144 13 18 17 i i6 15
i

O O V g I STOREYRD
awr

I I JI I 1 1 I

20 a 22 23 W 24 i 21 22 23 1 19 20 21 22

21 STEyLERO i 1 i i

c9 i
287

W r
y i i

29 k 28 i 27

i
26 25 26 25 30 29 28 27

1 EARLYRD Im
a 33 7 r1

i 1 i i

32 p i 34 35 36 31 32 35 36 31 32 i 33 34

J i 1 i
i i

f9ifiii erii i 1
i 1 i i i

5 4 i 3 2 1 6 2 i 1 6 5 i 4 3

i i 1 1 i i
i

L r J 1 1 L

8 9 10 1 12 7 i 8 9 11 12 7 8 9 10

iw Township Line
General Location Map ofAnnexation Area

Section Line

0 Parcels

Proposed Annexation
CIRCLE R III ANNEXATION

Existing City Limits

PendingAnnexations W February 2011



s

x
S

x
X

x

v

2 C t
w

XXX
287

C i

C
y

2022005A

2

g
U

202260058

202260060

KxK VAH KI INN RD

z 5
33 150

X f

V Township Line Detail Map ofAnnexation Area
Section Line

Parcels CIRCLE R III ANNEXATION
0 Proposed Annexation

Existing City Limits w February 2011
s

i



AGENDA ITGM

DATE 662011

CITY OF COOLIDGE

CITY COUNCIL ACTION FORM

SUBJECT Request from DJ POINT LLC STAFF PRESENPER C Alron I3ruce

COOLIDGE PROPERTY INVESTMENTS
LLC LATEOTT LLC and FREDS PLACE
LLC to approve a Concepual Planned Area

Derelopment Plan or Atlaway Ranch Nurih

and South

RECOMMENllAT10N

Staff recommends approval of this item

DISCUSSION

These properties are the subject of Planned Area Development Conceptual Plan which

was presented to Council and the public in October of 2009 Attached are copies of the

staFf reports submitted to Council at that public hearing

FISCAL IMPACT

lf this project succeeds there is Uie potential for additional property and sales tax revenue

lor the City as well as permit fees impact fecs and contributions to the Pire Operating
fund

Attachments

October 2009 Staff Reports for Attavay Ranch North and South

Attaway Ranch Planned Area Development Documents

REVIEWED BY PREPARED BY

G Cd3
Robert Flatle ty Man ger C Alton Bruce Grownh Mgmt Director

i

Lisa Pi la Pinance Director

CDocument5 and Sellinsnomia0LocalSetingsTemporaq Intemcl filesOLKD2Weenda Transmival Attaway Ranch ConcepWal
PADdoc Pae 1 Of I

6G011



MEMORANDUM

TO MAYOR ANll CITY COUNCIL

FROM SUE LAYBOUF2N SENIOR PLANNGR

DATE JULY 9 2009

RE ATTAWAY RANCH SOUTHILANNED AREA DEVELOPMENT

Site The site comprises approximately 15 acres and is located of north of Martin

Road and east of Nafziger Road

History No recent relevant history

ProposaL To provide a Planned Area Development comprising

436 single familylomes on 09 acres 16

328 medium density single family homes on 41 acres 6

Approximately 20 acres Open SpaceSchool site

Discussion Section 513 of the Citys7oning Code states that

As un ulternalive ro conventional zoing und developnen approaches and

processes the Plamied Area Denelopnenl PADpiocedures are sel forth lo enhance dze

Crrys groilh und derelopmen puhic heulth sufel and general wefue as Cooidge
increasnTgy urbanizes to ercouruge innovuioas i residenlral commercral and

indashial developme so Ihat greuler opportunrlies for betler housing recrealion

shopping and employment mrav exiend o uR citizeas cmd residenis ofCoolidge o reflect
changes in the technooof land derelopnenl to encourage anore crealne approach
rn Ihe utiizaion of lund iia order to uccomplish a naoreecieni aestheic nnd desirable

develnpment ihich muy be churucierized by s7ecial features of Ilie geogruphy
opograp1y sdze or shaye of a parliculur yroperly ad lo a compalihle and stable

development emironmen in hurntory ivith ihcit of llre surroudingurea

The PAD s1a71 caisist of a harmorious seleclion of uses and graupings ofburdrngs
parkiiig areas circulutio and oleasuces cuad shcdl be designed ns an nalegraled imil
rn sucl manner ns o conslittle a srafe efficient aad convenient urban aeu develomenl

The main issues here are whether thc proposed PAD complies with the7oning Code and

the General Plan It should be noted that the application was submitted prior to the



adoption of the new Loning Codc and thcreforc is being considered against the criteria

ofthe previous Loning Code

Conformance with the General Plan The site is designated as Medium Density Single
Family Residential in the General Plan The land to the south east and west of this site is

also designated as Medium Density Single amily Residential and the land to the north is

Low Density Single Family Residential The proposed density of 51 units per acre is at

the low cnd of the Medium Density range

Residential Densitv in PADs As stated above the proposed density is 51 units per

acre The proposed development standards are as follows

Single Family Residcntial

Minimum lot area 5200 square eet

Minimum lot width 48 Ceet

Front set backs 2015 1
Side set back interior 58 2 3
Side set back corner 20

Rear set back 20 4

1 20 feet to garage 15 feet to liveable areas and sidocntry garages 10 fcet to front

porch
2 2 2 foot projections fireplaces popouts roof projects on 8 foot side set back

only
3 In Medium Density single family residential 10 feet between buildings
4 20 rear set back for two story homes and 1 S for single story homes

Medium Density Single Family Residential

Minimum lot area 2 square feet

Minimum lot width 35 feet

Minimum lot depth na

Front set back 10 feet

Side set back interior 0 or 5 feet

Side set back corner 10 feet

Rear set back 3 feet

Architectural Stvle and Appearance

Examples of possible layouts and housing products are included in the submission

document



Phasing of Development

1here will be multiple phases which will be clarified at the platting stage

Ooen Space Provision

Therc will bc a minimum of 15 comprising

Landscape tracts along arterial and collectors

Landscaped entries

Centralized neighborhood parks with passive and active amenities

Open space will be HOA maintained

The PAD proposal is conceptual at this stage It was considered appropriate to seek

zoning clearance from the Planning and Zoning Commission and the Mayor and City
Council prior to a Development Agreement being signed

The proposed PAD complies with the adopted General Plan and with the City Zoning
Code

Report from Planning and Zoning Commission

Commissioner Williams made a motion to recommend approval to the Maor and City
CounciL Commissioner White scconded the motion which was passed unanimously



MEMORANDUM

TO MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL

FROM SUE LAYBOURN SENIOR PLANNER

DATE JULY 9 2009

RE ATTAWAY RANCH NORTH PLANNED AREA DEVELOPMENT

Site The site comprises approximately 545 acres and is located north of Vah Ki Inn

Road and east of Nafziger Road It is presently in imincorporated Pinal County

History No recent relevant history

ProposaL To provide a Planned nrea Development comprising

572 single family homes on 143 acres 20

1728 medium density single family homes on 216 acres 31

1740 medium high density residential on 116 acres 16

C3 Commercial 41 acres

Open space 80 acres

Discussion Section 513 of the Citys Zoning Code states that

As an ueirluive ro convenliona o2ig ad denelopnaent upproaches and

processes Ihe Plannett Area Deielopnzem PADpiocedures are set forth to enhance the

Citys groith and deielopment public heulllz safel and genera irelfure as Coolidge
incieasingly urbunizes ro encourage innovnlions in esidentiul comrnercinl und

indusirial develonnent so t11at greuter opporluzities fa better aousing recreation

shopprng and empoyment muy eserd ro all cilizens and residents nf Coolydge to reJlect
chariges in the technology of and developaent o encoanage a n7ore creatiie npproach
in the utilization ofund in oder to accomplishanoreecient aesthelic and desirable

deie7opnaenl Hhich inay be characterized b special feahnes of he geography
topography sie o shape of n pcuticular property and o a compatible and sluble

developrnenl erzirronmeni iz burmonyiilh that ofhe surrounding area

Tle PAD shall conrist ofalarnaonious selectroa ofuses and groirpirgs ofhuildivgs
parking ureas circulalion cmd open spaces and slvall he designed us a integraled unrt

in such maaner as to conslilutearqfe efficienl cnzd comenieni iaban area developnent



The main issues here are whether the proposed PAD complies with the 7oning Code and

the General Plan It should be noted that the application was submitted prior to the

adoption of the new Zoning Code and therefore is being considered against the criteria

of the previous Zoning Code

Confonnance with the General Plan The site is designated as Master Planned

Community in the General Plan This is defined as

Uenaes cneus Ihai nre approprinle fin dercopmel as a musler planed commmail
Masler parzned communily areus huve he polential ro provrde mixed lund use

opportunilres u range of laousrng clloices und dei7sities oen spuce und recreutional

opporienilies and an approprialerraspnrialinn sys7ertt corneced to school parkc relail

andenploynen areus Kesidenlial derelopneliithrn a muse plcmned canrnwzrly
area wil promote aiariety of residenlial densities lo promole a driersily of housing
choices for residenls of the connuniry Musle pinmzed comn7inities shul nlso proride
connnerciul and employmenl lcmd uses loproirdefor residents oflhe cu

The proposed PAD complies with this designation The proposal complements
surrounding General Plan designations and would act as a buffer between lower density
land to the south and master planned community and mixed use designations to the north

Residential Densirv in PAlls1he proposed density is 80 units per acre The proposed
deelopment standards are as follows

Single Family Residential

Minimum lot area 5200 square feet

Minimum lot width 48 feet

Front set backs 20IS 1
Side set back interior 58 2 3
Side set back comer 20

Rear set back 20 4

1 20 feet to garage 15 feet to liveable areas and sideentry garages 0 feet to front

porch
2 2 2 foot projections fireplaces popouts roof projects on 8 foot side set back

only
3 n Medium Density single family residential 0 feet between buildings
4 20 rear set backs forto story homes and 15 for single story homes

Medium Density Single Family Residential

Minimum lot area 2000 square feet

Minimum lot width 35 feet

Minimum lot depth na

Fronl set back 10 feet I



Side set back interior 0 or 5 feet

Side set back corner 0 Yeet

Rear set back 3 feet

Medium High Density Multifamily residential

Minimum lot area 1800unit

Front set back 10 feet

Sidc set back intcrior 05

Side set back comer 10

Rear set back 3

Architectural Stvle and Appearance

Examples of possible layouts and housing products are included in the submission

document

Phasin ofDeelopment

There will be multiple phases which will be clarified at the platting stage

Open Space Provision

There will be a minimum of 15 comprising

Landscape tracts along arterial and collectors

Landscaped entries

Centralized neighborhood parks with passive and active amenities

Larger centralized park

Open space will be HOA maintained

The PAD proposal is conceptua at this stage It was considered appropriate to seek

zoning clearance from the Planning and Zoning Commission and the Mayor aid City
Council prior to a Dcvelopment Agreement being signed

The proposed PAD complies with the adopted General Plan and with the City Zoning
Code

Rcport fromIlanning and Zoning Commission

Senior Planner Sue Laybourn said that the proposal was conceptual at this stage that the

property is due to be anneed and that there was also a development agreement in play
She said that a more detailed submission will come before the Commission and City
Council at a time closer to development She said that the proposal was for 545 acres to

include a mix of residentia densities It had been designated as Master Planned



Community in the General Plan She added that the proposal complies with both the

adopted General Plan and the old Zoning Code She reminded Commissioners that
because this was subinitted prior to the new Zoning Code coming iato use that the

proposal had to be considered against the old Code

Chaimian Bob Marsh asked if Nhen the applicant comes back with a more detailed

proposal would they have to comph with the Desin Guidelines Ms Laybourn replied
that ceriain tllings would be protected by the Development Agreement Commissioner

Fludson asked whcn thc application was submitted Ms Layboum said that it had bcen

submitted on March 28 Chairman Marsh askedihether the Public Works Director and

Pire Chief had been consulted on the proposaL Ms Laybourn stated that because the

plan was only conceptual at this stage they had not Commissioncr Hiswx asked Mr

Mario Mangiamele representing the applicant whether the proposed road crosssectios

applied to both developments Mr Mangiamele gave a brief presentation on the proposal
Yor botlt Attaway Ranch Norlh and Attaway Ranch South He said that tlie annexation

would be for 243 acres orth east of Vah Ki Inn Road and Attatiay Road Work has not

yet started on the Devleopment Agreement The property owners wish to ensure that the

City is okay Nith a broadbrush concept prior to investing in more detailed designs He

said that the two large areas of open space on Attaway Ranch North could accommodate

one or two elementary schools depeding on what the School District wants He said

that there is no school site proposed on Attaway Ranch South but that it does have the

same central community park concept He addcd that Attaay Ranch South Nould have

a lower density becausc of the need to comply with the General Plan designation He

explained the streetsections The Rural Local Street would be used where there are half

acre to 1 acre ots He said that one of the developers Cirde G tend to do that ribbon

curb no sidewalks Commissioner Hiscox asked whether this road type would only
apply to the larger lots n4r Mangiamele said that would be the case Commissioner

Hiscox asked Mr Mangiamele to explain the Local Street section Mr Mangiamele said
that they would be fifty 50 feet wide with fifteen 15 foot travel lanes ten 10 feel
sidewalk and landscape CommissionerIIiscox asked what Minor Colleclor roads were

for Mr Mangiamele explained that they feed into local streets they are wider with

wider sidewalks and wider landscape strips Chairman Marsh asked for clarification on

the Local Street Section whether it is thirty 30 feet back of curb to back of curb Mr

Mangiamele said that it was to the face oP curb although typically it is measured to the

back oF curb Chairman Marsh asked about onstreet parking provision Mr

Mangiamele said that he wasnt sure Chainnan Marsh asked how onstreet parking
would be regulated whether the HOA would be responsible Ms Tina Vanucci
representing the City Attorneys office said that the HOA would be responsible Mr

Mangiamele agreed that it ould be for the HOA to enforce Ms Vanucci added that an

IIOA can levy a fine unless the car in question belongs to a visitor If the streets within

the communiry are public streets then the Police Department ould enforce onstreet

parking laws Commissioner Hiscox asked whether the Local Street would be sufficient

to accommodate onstreet parking Mr Mangiamele said that the proposed street width

could be moditied to address the issue Commissioner Hiscox asked Ms Laybourn if she

believed that the proposed thirty 30 feet front of curb width would be wide enough to

accommodatc onstreet parking Ms Laybourn replied that in her personal opinion it



would be Chairman Marsh asked that when more detailed plans were prepared that the

applicant consider the Citys new guidelines regarding road vidths Conmissioner

Hiscox asked what the nev requirement was Chaimian Marsh advised him that itias

thirtysix 36 feet back of curb to back of curb Mr Mangiamele stated that they will

take a look at that He added that it Has a long range project which probably wont

happen for at least a year He said that Circle G were responsible for al Vista Lakes

He said that the early submission ias not intended as a way of sidestepping the new

Zoning Codc lt will be a long process and the applicant would be back many times He

then conlinued the presentalion and showcd esamplcs of housing types

Chairman Marsh asked about building heights he noticed that the proposal showed

thirtysix leet Cor the highcr density products Ms Laybourn said lhat this issuc had

come up in an carlier PAD proposal and that she would check to see how the heights
were addressed in that proposal Commissioner Williams asked about access to open

space if a school was there Mr Mangiamele said that the intention was to work out a

jointuse agrecment with the School District about shared access to open space
Chairman Marsh asked whether the open space dedicationreservation eould be addressed

in the Development agreement Mr Mangiamele said that he ail look into it

Commissioner Vlhite made a motion to recommend approval to the Mayor and City
Council Commissioner Williams seconded the motion Hfiich was passed unanimousl



AGENDA ITEM it

DATE June 27 2011

C17Y OF COOLIDGE

CITY COUNCIL ACTION FORM

SUBJECT Discussion of Recreation Fees STAFF PRESENTER Ricky LaPaglia Parks

and Recreation Director

RECOMMENDATION

The Parks and Recreation Deparment recommends raising fees for Adult Softball and for
vendors at Coolidge Days and ask that all proposed fee changes be posted on our website

for the equired minimum of 60 days

USCUSSION

Adult SoPtball fees need lo increase if we wish to ensure that the registration fees

collected will cover the cost to operate the league Also in many cases the Cify is lagging
behind in our vendor Pees for Coolidge Days

FISCAL IMPACT

It will be at no additionai cost to the cityIhe city will stand to on average 525 more for

everyAdult Softball League and up to 1900 more for our Coolidge Days Ceiebration

Attachments

Breakdown of current and proposed fees

RGVIIsWED I3Y PRGPARED BY

f

Robert Flatley City nager Ricky LaPagli Parks and Recreation

J

Director

Lisa nnella Finance Director Denis Fitzgibbons City Attorney

CDoeuments an SevingsrickylDesktopAgendafransmittal Portndoc Page I Of I
Gll62U11

f



ADULT SOFTBALL

Average Registration Money Received 5250

Expenses

Equipment and Awards 610

Umpires 2410
Lights and Field Prep 1600
Full and Part Time Staff 1 050

Total 5670

420

Current Regisrtation Fee 250

Proposed Registration Fee 275

With an average of 21 teams per season raising the registration fee 25 per team would

be the minimum we could increase fees to cover the cost of operating our Adult Softball Leagues

COOLIDGE DAYS VENDORS

Current Fees

Food Vendor 120
Arts n Crafts 4065

Proposed Fees

Food Vendors 200
ArtsnCrafts 75100

Cotton Days
Food Vendors 350
Arts n Crafts 200250

Surrounding Areas

Food Vendors 0400
Arts n Crafts 0250



ADULT SOFTBALL

Average Registration Money Received 5250

Expenses

Equipment and Awards 610

Umpires 2410
Lights and Field Prep 1600
Full and Part Time Staff 1 050

Total 5670

420

Current Regisrtation Fee 250

Proposed Registration Fee 275

With an average of 21 teams per season raising the registration fee 25 per team would

be the minimum we could increase fees to cover the cost of operating our Adult Softball Leagues

COOLIDGE DAYS VENDORS

Current Fees

Food Vendor 120
Arts n Crafts 4065

Proposed Fees

Food Vendors 200
Artsn Crafts 75100

Cotton Days
Food Vendors 350
Arts n Crafts 200250

Surrounding Areas

Food Vendors 0400
Arts n Crafts 0250



ADULT SOFTBALL

Average Registration Money Received 5250

Expenses

Equipment and Awards 610

Umpires 2410
Lights and Field Prep 1600
Full and Part Time Staff 1 050

Total 5670

420

Current Regisrtation Fee 250
Proposed Registration Fee 275

With an average of 21 teams per season raising the registration fee 25 per team would

be the minimum we could increase fees to cover the cost of operating our Adult Softball Leagues

COOLIDGE DAYS VENDORS

Current Fees

Food Vendor 120
Arts n Crafts 4065

Proposed Fees

Food Vendors 200
Artsn Crafts 75100

Cotton Days
Food Vendors 350
Arts n Crafts 200250

Surrounding Areas

Food Vendors 0400
Arts n Crafts 0250



ADULT SOFTBALL

Average Registration Money Received 5250

Expenses

Equipment and Awards 610

Umpires 2410
Lights and Field Prep 1600
Full and Part Time Staff 1 050

Total 5670

420

Current Regisrtation Fee 250

Proposed Registration Fee 275

With an average of 21 teams per season raising the registration fee 25 per team would

be the minimum we could increase fees to cover the cost of operating our Adult Softball Leagues

COOLIDGE DAYS VENDORS

Current Fees

Food Vendor 120
Arts n Crafts 4065

Proposed Fees

Food Vendors 200
Artsn Crafts 75100

Cotton Days
Food Vendors 350
Arts n Crafts 200250

Surrounding Areas

Food Vendors 0400
Arts n Crafts 0250



ADULT SOFTBALL

Average Registration Money Received 5250

Expenses

Equipment and Awards 610

Umpires 2410
Lights and Field Prep 1600
Full and Part Time Staff 1 050

Total 5670

420

Current Regisrtation Fee 250

Proposed Registration Fee 275

With an average of 21 teams per season raising the registration fee 25 per team would

be the minimum we could increase fees to cover the cost of operating our Adult Softball Leagues

COOLIDGE DAYS VENDORS

Current Fees

Food Vendor 120
Arts n Crafts 4065

Proposed Fees

Food Vendors 200
Artsn Crafts 75100

Cotton Days
Food Vendors 350
Arts n Crafts 200250

Surrounding Areas

Food Vendors 0400
Arts n Crafts 0250



ADULT SOFTBALL

Average Registration Money Received 5250

Expenses

Equipment and Awards 610

Umpires 2410
Lights and Field Prep 1600
Full and Part Time Staff 1 050

Total 5670

420

Current Regisrtation Fee 250
Proposed Registration Fee 275

With an average of 21 teams per season raising the registration fee 25 per team would

be the minimum we could increase fees to cover the cost of operating our Adult Softball Leagues

COOLIDGE DAYS VENDORS

Current Fees

Food Vendor 120
Arts n Crafts 4065

Proposed Fees

Food Vendors 200
Artsn Crafts 75100

Cotton Days
Food Vendors 350
Arts n Crafts 200250

Surrounding Areas

Food Vendors 0400
Arts n Crafts 0250



ADULT SOFTBALL

Average Registration Money Received 5250

Expenses

Equipment and Awards 610

Umpires 2410

Lights and Field Prep 1600
Full and Part Time Staff 1 050

Totai 5670

420

Current Regisrtation Fee 250

Proposed Registration Fee 275

With an average of 21 teams per season raising the registration fee 25 per team would

be the minimum we could increase fees to cover the cost of operating our Adult Softball Leagues

COOLIDGE DAYS VENDORS

Current Fees

Food Vendor 120
Arts n Crafts 4065

Proposed Fees

Food Vendors 200
Artsn Crafts 75100

Cotton Days
Food Vendors 350
Artsn Crafts 200250

Surrounding Areas

Food Vendors 0400
Arts n Crafts 0250



ADULT SOFTBALL

Average Registration Money Received 5250

Expenses

Equipment and Awards 610

Umpires 2410
Lights and Field Prep 1600
Full and Part Time Staff 1 050

Total 5670

420

Current Regisrtation Fee 250
Proposed Registration Fee 275

With an average of 21 teams per season raising the registration fee 25 per team would

be the minimum we could increase fees to cover the cost of operating our Aduit Softball Leagues

COOLIDGE DAYS VENDORS

Current Fees

Food Vendor 120
Arts n Crafts 4065

Proposed Fees

Food Vendors 200
ArtsnCrafts 75100

Cotton Days
Food Vendors 350
Arts n Crafts 200250

Surrounding Areas
Food Vendors 0400
Arts n Crafts 0250



ADULT SOFTBALL

Average Registration Money Received 5250

Expenses

Equipment and Awards 610

Umpires 2410
Lights and Field Prep 1600
Full and Part Time Staff 1 050

Total 5670

420

Current Regisrtation Fee 250
Proposed Registration Fee 275

With an average of 21 teams per season raising the registration fee 25 per team would

be the minimum we could increase fees to cover the cost of operating our Adult Sokball Leagues

COOLIDGE DAYS VENDORS

Current Fees

Food Vendor 120
Arts n Crafts 4065

Proposed Fees
Food Vendors 200
Artsn Crafts 75100

Cotton Days
Food Vendors 350
Arts n Crafts 200250

Surrounding Areas

Food Vendors 0400
Arts n Crafts 0250



ADULT SOFTBALL

Average Registration Money Received 5250

Expenses

Equipment and Awards 610

Umpires 2410
Lights and Field Prep 1600
Full and Part Time Staff 1 050

Total 5670

Current Regisrtation Fee 250

Proposed Registration Fee 275

With an average of 21 teams per season raising the registration fee 25 per team would

be the minimum we could increase fees to cover the cost of operating our Adult Softball Leagues

COOLIDGE DAYS VENDORS

Current Fees

Food Vendor 120
Arts n Crafts 4065

Proposed Fees

Food Vendors 200
Artsn Crafts 75100

Cotton Days
Food Vendors 350
Arts n Crafts 200250

Surrounding Areas

Food Vendors 0400
Arts n Crafts 0250



AGENDAITEM
DATE April 17 2011

C1TY OF COOLIDGE

CITY COUNCIL ACTION FORM

SU6JECT SAVE Cooperative Purchasing STAFF PRESENTER Susanna R Struble

Agreemen and waive bidding requirements for Director of Public Worls

Randolph Road ARDP

RECOMMENDATION

Recommend the City Council approvc waive the biddiog for Randolph Roadway ARDP

improvements and approve the signing of the Strategic Alliance For Volume

Expenditures SAVE Cooperative Purchasing Agreement All use of the SAVE will

follow the Citys procurement procedures

DISCUSSION

Per the City of Coolidgesprocedures for purchasing of materials an allowance has been made for

the utilization of bids from other governmenta agencies 1he Strategic Alliance For Volume

Ependitures SAVE Cooperative Purchasing Agreement is one mechanism utilized by over 225

agencies within the state for this procurenent

The SAVE agreement allows for the utilization of other agencies use of bids prepared for materials

and services by participating cooperativc members Bids are prepared by a lead agency that

compiles quantity estimates prepares the bid or proposal solicitation receives bid or proposals and

awards a contract for use by all participaling members The cooperative use of bids or proposals
obtained by a party to this Agreement are required to be in accordance with the terms and conditions

of the bid or proposal except as modification oPthose terms and conditions otherwise allowed by
law The SAVE agreement has been reviewed and accepted by the City attorney

Pinal County utilizes this cooperative agreement for many of its materials and services contracts so

that other members of the SAVE entities can benefit from there bidding and procurement to

improve competition quality services provide lower prices for materials and services and avoid

duplication of efforts Several of our surrounding communities utilize the County bids for road

improvement materials and services

Currently the Public Works is interested in capitalizing on the use of this agreement for

improvements to Randolph Road from SR87 to Vail Road and potentially other maintenance type

roadway efforts as it relates to seal coats and chip seal In order to utilize the County bid process for

this work the City of Coolidge would be required to sign the SAVE agreement and then determine

quantities and prices for the required work All work over2000 will be required to have Council

action prior to final agreement with the County awarded contracts

The Randolph Road Asphalt IZubber Dust Palliative ARDI project will provide a two lane chip
sealARDP surface The Public Works Department is interested in the use of both the material bids

and the County forces and equipment for grading and compaction for this project The City will be

providing work forces and equipment in conjunction with the Cotmty forces for grading and

CDocumenis vnd ScliinsnonnaoLocul SettinesTemporan Intemcl PilesOIRD2CIfYCOUNCIL ACIION FORM IV SAVE and

Randolph Rnad ARUPdoc

Paee 1 of 2

6117201 I



compaction The County can perYorm the work as they complete other projects in the areaie
Attaway Road and MaRin Road in July and August 201 1

The County has agreed to determine quantities on the project for use of the materials bids and

provide estimates for County work forces through our joint lease agreement At the writing of this

Council Action Form we are still awaiting the total quantities and costs for the work from the

County The Public Works Department is requesting that the Council approve waiving Uie bid

process for the Randolph Road ARDP project so we can further our discussion with the County for

completion of the Randolph Road ARDP project

In conjunction with that waiving of the bidding process we also ask for approval of entering into the

SAVE agreement for cooperative purchasing This joint approval by Council will allow for staff to

negotiate tle final cost for the Randolph Road project with the County and return to the Council for

final approval of the costs Any other use of the SAVC agreement will be done in accordance with

the City of Coolidge procurement procedure

FISCAL IMPACT

No costs are approved with this action Cost for Randolph Road will be assessed to the fees exacted

from developmentsaong Randolph Roadway and approved at a later date

ATTACHMENTS

SAVL Agreement and Appendix A

REVIEWED BY PREPARED BY

J

C Lo z
Rob t F latley City anag r Susanna R Struble PE Director PW

l
Lisa inella Finance Director

CDocuments and SettinesnormaoLocal SetGngsfemparan ImemetFiicsOLKD2CI7Y COUNCIL ACfION FORM IV SAVB and Randolph
Road ARDPdoc Pagc 2 Of 2
617201 I



STRATEGIC ALLIANCE FOR VOLUME EXPENDITURES SAVE
COOPERATIVE PURCHASING AGREEMENT

This Agreement is entered into this day of between school districts and governmental
jurisdictions in the State of Arizona as listed in Appendix A through their duly authorized representative to form a

cooperative purchasing agreement named STRATEGIC ALLIANCE FOR VOLUME EXPENDITURESSAVE

WHEREAS voluntary purchasing agreements belween and among public agencies in the State of Arizona have been

shown to improve competition quality services provide lower prices for materials and services and avoid duplication of

efforts and

WHEREAS the parties hereto desire the free exchange of information technology and other services that may assist in

improving the efficiency or economy of the procurement of necessary materials and services and

WHEREAS cooperative purchasing results from written agreements wherein lead agencies volunteer to purchase
specified materials and services for themselves and participating cooperative members by compiling quantity estimates
preparing the bid or proposal solicitation receiving bid or proposals and awarding a contract for use by all participating
members And wherein the lead agency is responsible for placing receipt and payment of its own orders only while

individual procuring parties separately process and pay for their own requirements and

WHEREAS the Cooperative Purchasing Agreement will serve these ends

NOW THEREFORE in consideration of the mutual promises contained in this Agreement and for the mutual benefits to

result therefrom the parties agree as follows

1 The purpose of the Agreement is a cooperative purchase agreement for the procurement of materials and or

services

2 Receipt inspection acceptance and payment for materials and services ordered under this Agreement shall be

the exclusive obligation of the ordering entity

3 The exercise of any rights or remedies by a procuring entity shall be the exclusive obligation of such procuring
entity

4 In this Agreement failure of an entity to secure pertormance under its purchase order does not necessarily
require another entity to exercise its own rights or remedies

5 The cooperative use of bids or proposals obtained by a party to this Agreement shall be in accordance with the

terms and conditions of the bid or proposal except as modification of those terms and conditions otherwise

allowed by law

6 The participation in a specific bid or proposal will be at the option of the individual entity except that procuring
entities and their requirements specifically identified within a bid or proposal shall be required to participate in the

Agreement unless the resulting contract is canceled as provided for within the terms and conditions of the specific
bid or proposal

7 That lead entity of the bid or proposal will comply with the competitive procurement and contract requirements of

the procurement rules and laws

8 The parties will make available upon reasonable request and subject to convenience necessity and in

appropriate circumstance a reasonable fee or charge any intormation technology or other service which may
assist in improving the efficiency or economy of each partys procurement or disposal of material or service

9 A procuring party will make timely payments to the vendor for materials and services received in accordance with

the terms and conditions of the procurement Payment for materials services inspections acceptance of
materials and services ordered by the procuring party shall be the exclusive obligation of such procuring party

10 The procuring party shall not use this Agreement as a method for obtaining additional concessions or reduced

prices for similar materials and services

Paee I of5



11 The procuring party shall be responsible for the ordering of materials or services under this Agreement A non

procuring party shall not be liable in any fashion for any violation by a procuring party and the procuring party shall

hold nonprocuring party harmless from any liability which may arise from action or inaction of the procuring party

12 Any procurement unit may terminate without notice this Agreement if another eligible procurement unit fails to

comply with the terms of this Agreement

13 This Agreement is exempt from the provisions ofARS 11952

14 This Agreement shall remain in effect until participation has been terminated by all but one of the parties Except
as provided in Paragraph 12 any party to this Agreement may terminate their participation in this Agreement by
giving 30 day written notice to all other parties to this Agreement

15 This Agreement shall take effect after execution by participating parties Pursuant to ARS Section 412632 and
Subsection R721191 of AAC R721001 this Agreement need not be filed with the County Recorder or the

Secretary of State to be effective except as may be required by the laws rules andor regulations of a

participating public agency

16 This Agreement may be canceled pursuant to provisions of ARS Section 38511 which provisions are

incorporated herein by this reference

17 This Cooperative Purchasing Agreement shall become effective upon approval and execution by the authorized

representative of all public agencies listed in Appendix A

18 The parties to this Agreement hereby agree that other agencies may be added to this Cooperative Purchasing
Group

IN WITNESS WHEREOF the parties hereto have executed this Agreement to be effective the date written below

JURISDICTION NAME OF AGENCY

THIS AGREEMENT IS HEREBY EXECUTED THIS DAY OF 20

Signature

Name

Title

Paee 2 of 5



Strategic Alliance for Volume Expenditures
SAVE Cooperative Purchasing Agreements

The foliowing 244 agencies have signed the Cooperative Purchasing Agreement with theSAVEassociation as

of May 27 2011

Municipalities Yuma County
City of Apache Junction

City of Avondale Higher Education

City of Bullhead City Arizona State University
City of Casa Grande Arizona Western College
City of Chandler Central Arizona College
City of Cottonwood Central Arizona Valley Institute of Technology CAVIT
City of Douglas Cochise County Community College District

City of Eloy Coconino County Community College District

Ciry of Flagstaff Din2 College
City of Glendale Maricopa Community College Distnct

City of Goodyear Mohave Community College
City of Maricopa Northern Arizona University
City of Mesa Pima Community College
City of Page Pima Prevention Partnership dba Pima Partnership
City of Peoria Academy Pima PaRnership High School

City of Prescott Phoenix Collegiate High School

City of Safford University of Arizona

City of Scottsdale Yavapai College
City of Sierra Vista

City of Somerton Political Agencies
City of Surprise Arizona Supreme Court

City of Tempe Central Arizona Project
City of Tucson Central Arizona Water Conservation District CAWCD
City of Winslow Central Yavapai Fire District

City of Yuma Drexel Heights Fire District
Town of Buckeye Maricopa Association of Governments

Town of Camp Verde Maricopa Integrated Health System
Town of Cave Creek Mountain Institute JTED

Town of Florence Mt Lemmon Fire District
Town of Fountain Hills North Country Community Health Center

Town of Gila Bend Pima County Joint Technology District 11 JTED
Town of Gilbert Pima County School Reserve Fund

Town of Marana Superior Court of Arizona Maricopa County
Town of Oro Valley Superstition Mtn Community Facilities District
Town of Paredise Valley Tucson Airport Authority
Town of Prescott Valley Valley Metro Regional Public Transit Authority
Town of Queen Creek PhoenixMesa Gateway Airport Authority
Town of Sahuarita

Town of Superior
School Districts

Counties Agua Fria Union High School District 216

Apache County Alhambra Elementary School District 68

Cochise County Altar Valley School District 51

Coconino County Amphitheater Unified School District 10

Gila County Antelope Union High School 50
Graham County Apache Junction Unifed School District 43
La Paz County Arlington Elementary School District 47

Maricopa County Avondale Elementary School District 44

Mohave County Balsz Elementary School District 31

Navajo County Beaver Creek School District 26

Pima County Benson Unifed School District 9
Pinal County Bisbee Unified School District 2
Santa Cruz County Blue Ridge Unifed School District 32

Yavapai County Bonita School District 6

Pae I of 3



Buckeye Elementary School District 33 Littleton Elementary School District it5

Buckeye Union High School District 201 Madison Elementary School District 38

Bullhead City Elementary School District 15 Maine Consolidated School District

Camp Verde Unified School District 28 MammothSan Manuel Unified School District 8

Cartwright Elementary School District 83 Marana Unified School District 6

CaaxaMidcEeSdioolcVahIGMdcBeSdnd Maricopa Regional School District 509

Casa Grande Elementary School District Maricopa Unified School District

Casa Grande Union High School District Mayer Unified School District 43

Catalina Foothills Unified School District 16 Mesa Unified School District 4

Cave Creek Unified School District 93 Mobile Elementary School District 86

Cedar Unified School District 25 Mohave Valley Elementary School District 16

Chandler Unified School District 80 Mohawk Valley School District 17

Chinle Unified School District 24 Morenci Unifed School District 8

Chino Valley Unifed School District 51 Murphy Elementary School District 21

ClarkdaleJerome School District 3 Naco Unified School District 9

Coconino County Regional Accommodation District 99 Nadaburg Elementary District 81

Colorado River Union High School District Nogales Unified School District 1

Continental Elementary School District 39 Northeast AZ Tech Institute of Voc Ed

Coolidge Unifed School District 21 Osborn Elementary School District 8

CottonwoodOak Creek School District 6 Page Unified School District 8

Crane Elementary School District 13 Paradise Valley Unifed School District 9

Deer Valley Unifed School District 97 Parker Unified School District 27

Double Adobe Elementary School District 45 Patagonia Elementary School District 6

Douglas Unified School District 27 Patagonia Union High School District 92

Dysart Unified School District 89 Payson Unifed School District 10

East Valley Institute of Technology Peach Springs Unified School District 8

Eloy Elementary School District 11 Pendergast School District 92

Elfrida Elementary School District 12 Peoria Unified School District 11

Flagstaff Unified School District 1 Phoenix Elementary School District 1

Florence Unified School District 1 Phoenix Union High School District 210

Flowing Wells Unified School District 8 Picacho Elementary School District 33

Fort Huachuca Accommodation School District Pima Unified School District 6

Fort Thomas Unified School District 7 PheSVaNtxrryElerrerdarySctiodDstrid12
Fountain Hills Unified School District 98 Pinon Unified School District 4

Fowler Elementary School District 45 Prescott Unifed School District 1

Gadsden Elementary School District 32 Quartzsite Elementary School District 4

Ganado Unified School District 20 Queen Creek Unified School District 95

Gila Bend Unified Schools Riverside Elementary School District 2

Gilbert Unifed School District 41 Gilbert Pub Schools Roosevelt Elementary School District 66

Glendale Elementary School District 40 Round Valley Unified School District 10

Glendale Union High School District Sacaton Elementary School District 18

Globe Unifed School District 1 Saddle Mountain Unified School District 90

Grand Canyon Unified School District 4 Safford Unified School District 1

Hackberry Elementary School District 3 Sahuarita Unifed School District 30

HeberOvergaard Unifed School District 6 Sanders Unified School District 18

Higley Unified School District 60 Santa Cruz Valley Unified School District 35

Holbrook Unified School District 3 Santa Cruz Valley Union High School District 840

Humboldt Unified School District 22 Scottsdale Unified School District 48

Hyder Elementary School District 6 SedonaOak Creek Unifed School District 9

Indian OasisBaboquivari School District 40 Sentinel Elementary School District 71

Isaac Elementary School District 5 Show Low Unifed School District 10

JO Combs Elementary School District 44 Sierra Vista Unified School District 68

Joseph City Unifed School District 2 Snowflake Unifed School District 5

Kayenta Unified School District 27 Somerton Elementary School District 11

Kingman Unified School District 20 Stanfield Elementary School District 24

Kyrene Elementary School District 28 St David Unified School District 21

Lake Havasu Unified School District 1 St Johns Unified School District

Laveen Elementary School District 59 Sunnyside Unified School District 12

Liberty Elementary School District 25 Superior Unified School District 15

Litchfeld Elementary School District 79 Tanque Verde Unifed School District 13

Littlefeld Unified School District 9 Tempe Elementary School District 3

Page 2 of 3



Tempe Union High School District 213 Wellton Elementary School District 24

Thatcher Unified Schools WestMEC District 402

Toltec Elementary School District 22 Whiteriver Unified School District 20

Tolleson Elementary School District 17 Wickenburg Unified School District 9

Tolleson Union High School District 214 Willcox Unified School District

Tombstone Unifed School District 1 Williams Unifed School District 2

Tuba City Unified School District 15 Wilson Elementary School District 7

Tucson Unified School District Window Rock Unified School District 8

Union Elementary School District 62 Winslow Unified School District

Vail Unified School District 20 Young Public School District

Valley Union High School District 22 Yuma Elementary School District 1

Washington Elementary School District 6 Yuma Union High School District 70

Paee 3 of 3



AGENDA ITEM f
DATG April 17 2011

CITY OF COOLIDGE

CITY COUNCIL ACTION FORM

SUBJECT Skousen Bridge and Signal Pcak STAFF PRESENTER Susanna R Struble
Closure bv PMIP Director of Public Works

RECOMMENDATION

Recommend the City Council approve continuing negotiations with Pima Maricopa Irrigation
Project PMIP on Skousen Bridge Replacement in exchange for Signal Pealosure and

application for High Risk Rural Road funds for thc Intcrsection improvements on Skousen Road
at SR87

DISCUSSION

With the continued degradation ofthe bridge at Skousen and he Pima Lateral canal the PW department has
been researching opportunities for the replacement of Skousen Bridge Options have included

1 Bridge Repair through replacement of the grating in the center portion of the bride
2 Replacement of bridge through PMIP

a Replacement tiith bridge used by RL I3orssomar as temporary bypass
6 New bridge

3 New bridge utilizing Highway Bridge Rehabilitation and Replacement HBRR funds

through ADOT for new bridge

Replacement of Grating Initialtloughts were to researoh the availabiliry and costs far the replacement of
the failing gratin in the center of the bridge After researching suppliers inclusive of Stinger welding of a

comparable grate a manufacturer of the grating was found in California LB Foster We sought out a quote
which was receied in March at a cost of39400 for 5 graes tiith a minimum of 14 wceks for deliery ime
Trame This cost does not include delivery or removal and placement of the grate Delivery is estimated at

20000

City staff is not adequately equipped to do the install in house PMIP was conacted to discuss option in

having their contractor support the removal of the center portion of grating and tlen placing the new grates
PMIP agreed to have their contractor RL 3rosamer contact us on the bridge repair work R L Brosamer

supplied a price of11500 to remove and replace die grating Work can be done during the fall dryup

Total Cost of the Grate replacemenC Center grate7090000
2 lane bridge grate replacement approximaely210000

Pro 3ridge grate replaced within 4 months during OctobedNovember dryup 201 1
No environmental clearance issues ifiork done by PMIP comractor

Least costly

Con City would be responsible for design and material ordering
Only addresses center portion of bridge additional pancls will costs approsimately8000
Assumes substructure is adequate for the nev grating
Only hvo lane bridge provided
Will require road dosure during work

No change in Load limit

CDocumcnLS nnd ScttinssnortnaoLocalScttins7emporary IntemcIilesOIKD21CfPY COUNCIL ACTIONIORM IV SAOUSCn Bridee
und PMIP2ducCDocumcnls and ScuingsnunnaoLuaJ SctGngsfcmporory Intcmcl PiIcs10LKD2CIIYCOUNCIL ACTION FORM N

Skousen Dridgc and PMIP2doc

vaec I of4
G20Z011



Replacement of Bridgc through PMIP Two optiais are available through PMIP

RL I3rosamer did offer to provide a newer bridge with a bridge they utilized asaemporary bypass on a

freeway in California

Also PMIP has offered to replace the bridge wilh a ConArch inechange for the Sigmal Peak Road

closure during ihe Southside Canal crossing ork next fall

RL Brosamer During discussion with RL Brosamer on the grate removal and replacement work
an offer was made hat they could replace the existing bridge with one they used in California as a temporary
bypass The bridge would indude the install of 52foot by 6 foot wide bridge girders at the total width

required by the City RL Brosamer would be responsibic for footing design removal of old grated bridge and

placement of the girders vith guardrail The bridge appcars o be adequate to handle heavier loading and can

be placed at a 4 lane width

Total Costs for RL Brosamer Bridge 2 lane S200000
3 lane 5275000
4 lane 350000

Pro 13ridge replaced during OctoberNovember dryup 201

Costs are reasonable for the square footage
Can specify width of bridge
Can increase load limit on bridge
No environmental clearance issues

Con Would require revie of existing girder design and proposed footing design asiell as inspection of

girders
Costs assume girders do not require paing over them Paving may create an issue with grade onto

SR87 andor cracking at cach 6 foot girdec
Using a structure that was not specifically designed for the crossing
Will require Skousen Road closure for work

CONARCH Bridge On May I 1 David Dejong of ihe PMIP southside canal project requesed a meeting
to discuss the planned improvements on Signal Peak Road scheduled for replacement during the fall dryup of
the canal in October and November this year The primary focus of this discussion was to detennine the

Citys requirements for the dosure After discussion of thc challenges the City would have with a complete
closure of Signal Peak due to the lack of paved detour routcs PMIP offercd o look into options for resolving
the detour issue and allow them the ability of a full closure on Signal Peak as they do the crossing

Options would require tha a dosure would require a paved detour capable of carrying Vuck traffic and the
amount of traffic Signal Peak carries Options included replacement of Skousen Bridge and or paving
roadways such as Curq or Macrac and upgrading Vah Kin Inn Road between Skousen and Macrae PMIP

returned a verbal offer to replace Skousen Bridge with a cost share from the City of everything over

100000 Ihe bridge ould be a nev Con Arch hat would match esisting grade and be capable of carrying
H20 loading They offered a three lane bridge for approximately 300000 It was requested to rcceive a

price for a4lane bridge however at this tiem we have not received the information In either case PMIP

aould supply bridge design and construction emironmental clearance up to 100000 cos share in eschange
for closure of Signal Peak roaday in fall of 2012

Total Costs for ConArch 13ridge 3 lane 30Q000 200000 City
4 lane estimated 400000 estimated 300000 City

Pro Bridge replaced during OctoberNovembcr dryup 201 1

Costs are reasonable for the square footage
CDocumenL and SeufngsnonnaoLocalSeltinsTemporaq Intcmel FilesOLKD2ICIPY COUNCIL ACTIONIOKM IV SAousen 13ride and
PMIP 2doc

Pac 2 of 4
602011



Can specify width of bridge
Can increase load limi on bridge
No environmental clearance issues

PMIP perform design construction and construction inspection

Con Requires review of bridgeConArch design
Costs assume only 2 lane roadway replacement ovcr Con Arch

Work will require closure of Skousen during replacement
Requires acceptance of a complete dosure of Signal Peak in fall of 2012

HBRR Funded Bridge Replacemenh ADOT has a bridge replacement fund HBRR available to local

governments at a maximum amount of1000000 with a 57 match for bridges that are no longer structural

adequate or are functionally obsolete Structural adequacy is detennined through a bridge inspectioa The
Cih has had bridge inspections performed by ADOT for die past several years Skousen Bridge has shown to

be structurally adequate through his inspection process howeer has been identified as a bridge which needs
some repair and rehabilitation work perfornied on iL In ApriL the ADOT Local Governments Director
indicated tha although structurally sufficient the bridge could qualify under the functionally obsolete

category Estimated costs for this project through ADOT to include the design emironmental clearances and

bridge removal and replacement of a4lane bridge are1350000 350000 is in escess of the alloved
HBRR funds for the project

Further investigation with ADOT indicated that if the project vas combined with safety improvements to the
intersection additional funds through the High Risk Rural RoadIIRR funds may also be available for the

projecL Due to the significant crash data at this intersection Skousen Road intersection improements qualifi
this project for HRR funds 1IRR would fund idenina of Skousen to four lanesiith right and left turn lanes
from R87 to approintately 1000 feet south to accommodate a taper back to a hvo lane road Costs for the

widening of Skousen are estimated at 600000 to includc design constniction and environmental clearance
The 350000 from the bridge replacement above is an allovable addition under these funds The city tiill be

required to provide a 57 match of theIIRR funds ADOI currently has eacess HRR funds award is on a

competitive first come first serve basis Completion of this project is estimated to be fall of 2014 due to

ADOT standard time frame for design environmental clearance and construction

Total Costs for HBRR and HRR project1950000 City match of 5104000

Pro Can specifyiidth of bridge
Will provide fully improvcd roadway and bridge to 4 lancs

Will increase load limit on bridge
PMIP perform design construction and construction inspection

Con 3 year delayed bridge replacement OctoberNovember dryup 2014
Requires new environmental clearance
Have to deal with ADOT process for design and construction
No guarantee of funding through HRR process If not available may cost the City an additional

350000 to replace bridge

Based upon lhe options it is recommended that the Council approve further negotiations with PMIP for the
fall 201 I replacement of Skousen 13ridge providcd PMIP agrees to provide up to l OQ000 in funds towards
the project as well as the dcsign construction and inspection of the bridge It is also recommended ve request
funds for HRR funds from ADOT for the widening of Skousen Road at the intersection to 4 lanes

CDocuments and SettinsnortnaoLoculSevingsTemporaq Inlcmet PilesOLKD3CIIY COUNCIL ACTION PORM IV SAousen Bridse and
PMIP2doc

Paee 3 of d
6R001 I



FISCAL IMPACT

Costs for the Bridge project will bc approximately 300000 funded through 100000 Pinal County Road
Tat funds and 200000 transportaion impact fees

Costs for Skousen Road widening will be a maximum of57000 funded through Pinal County Road Tax

ATTACHMENTS

LB Foster quote on grate
RL Brosamer quote on replacement bridge
PMIP email on verbal offer for bridge replacement

REVIEWED BY PREPARED BY

ca L

RobertFlatle Cityv

n
Susanna R Struble PE Director PW

Lisa P ella Finance Director

CDOCUmensand SmtingznomiuoLocalSettingsTemporiry Inicmet FilesOLKD2CIfyCOUNCIL AClION FORM IV SAousen 6ridge and
P11P2doc

Pae 4 of 4
60011



u rvacr wmlnLY IYJVUIVV9

Quote JPOR07559T1
Page 1 of4

Mailing Addreu

L B FosterCompany
32970 AlvaradoNiles Rd Suite 736

tait5tlUCdlon PGOduC15
Union City CA 94587

Phone 5104719840To All Bidding Contractors Mobile 5103074713

eiC Ie eS
Fax 51oa71s8a7 j

Y Date 03242011

Attention Estimating Re 32911

AZ City of Coolidge

Shipping Loeation Coolidge AZ

We are pleased to offer the following items material any exeluding field measurements insGllatlon and qxesfor fhe referenced project

gty Descriotion
Price UOM EMended Price30600 SF S3J76 Open 4Way Steel Grid Dedcing 1030000 SF 315180A709 gr 50 material Galvanized

Main bars spaoed at 712 centers

Price is based on fumishing four blank panels 77 12
witle by 8 0 long 1

G2o

Price exdudes all other Mms attachments shims fill
plates antl hardware

Total3151800

FO6 Shipping point freight allowed tojob site full Wckload basis onlyTerms Net 30 with Credit ApprovaL
Shipment Shipment may begin approximately 14 weeks aker receipt of approval drawingsNotes This quote will remainin effect for 30 days The quotation is based on arrent suap surcharges antl millbase prices We reserve the right to adjust our quoted price at the ime of an order unless eMended orwithdrawn by Seller

This quotation is based on material availability from the mill or warehouse sources Ayyfayility subjed toalloption from the mill coultl result in delivery tlelays to the contractor andor owner Any delays causedby the mills will not be the responsibility of LB Foster Material availabiliry from ihe warehouse sources issubjeC to prior sale

Where the price of materials increases signifiranUy during fhe tertn of the purchase order through no fauttof LB Foster the purchase order sum shall be equitably adjusted by change ottier A signifirant prioeincrease means a change in price from date of purchase arder exacution to the tlate of paAortnance byan amount exceeding 75 percent Such Pnce increases shafl be documented by vendor quotes invoiCescatalags receipts or other documents of commercial use
Price assumes shipment by228l12 after which Seller may at its disuetion revise prices upwardPrice exdutles shims and puliting compound
Price is tentative and was based on partial plans FAX intortnation or oral communications Firm price willbe subject to review of full set of contract plans and speafications
Due to the galvanizing process panels may have some distortion and side sweep which will requireadjustrnent in the field during instailation The cost tor his adjusUnent is the responsibiliry of the inspller



May 16 2011 B N

CITI OF COOLIDGE PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT Job No 210081
355 S lst St

Ltr No COC001
COOLiDGE AZ 85128

Attention Susanna Struble

Reference Contract No C4315
PMIP P1MA Canal Reach BWIA

Subjec t Skousen Road Bridge Repair or Replacement

Dcar Mrs Struble

Pcr your rcquest herc is thc tluroc different options that wc hnvc priced up for the Skousen Road bridge

1 Install d conernte bridge girders eneh measuring 52 long and 6 wide for a total width of 24 wlrich matches
the existing bridge width These woutd be used sections finm a previous R L Brosamer projecL The
girders would be placed onto abutments located outside of the existing abutments that would remain in
piace The abutments are assumed to tm 2 wide 8 daep and 26 long reinforced concrete which would be
bank poured no forming Concrete barriersKRail wonld hen be placed aong each side of the bridgeTota1 2Q004000

2 Insta116 coacrete bridge girders each measurng 52Ing and 6 wide for a total width ot 36 These woud
be iued sections from a previous R L Brosamer project The girders would be placed onto ttbutments
lvcated uutside of Uie existing abu6nents tlat wvuld iemain ii place Tleabutments are assuined tu Ix 2
wide 8 deep and 38 long reinforced concrete which would be bank poured no forming Guardrail would
then be mounted atong each side of the bridge Total 27500000

3 Remove and replace center section of existing metal decking Material provided by City ofCoolidgeTota I150000

if you have any qaestions or comments please contact me at623518d214

Sincerely
R@L Brosamer Inc

3osh Wilson
Assistant Project Mazager

Corporate Office 1777 Oakland Blvd Suite 300 Walnat Creek CA 94596 935627 t700 Pax 92593517003ob Office IOtfi N Arimna Bld Coolidge AZ 8 12 520237c309 Fsc5203523



Pagc 1 of 2

Susanna Struble

From DeJong David DDeJong@gilarivercomSent
Friday June 10 2011 10 06AM To

Susanna Struble Subject

This morningsmeeting regarding SKousne and Signal Peak Susanna

I

am summarizing what we discussed this morning and whatI will propose to the Governor assuming the City
agrees to proceed as we discussed Shane

Lindstrom andI met with you Bob Flatley and Luis Ramirez Thank you for your time and the continued
positive cooperation behveen the Community and the City of Coolidge Per our discussion1

We all agreed that time is of the essence since P MIPis going to bid on the remaining portion of the
Southside Canal in July and we would need to know whetheror not Signal Peak is closing this fall
or next fall 2

The City expressed interest in the Con Arch bridge at Skousen Road and is scheduling time with the
City Council on June 27 to consider City approval3

P MIPwill provide a cost estimate for the constructionofa 4 lane Con Arch crossing at Skousen Road
We are solicitinga detailed cost estimate that will include The

cost for a 4 lane bridge as a permanent solution for the City A
detailed descriptionof the specificationsieH 20 loading length of guard rail asphalt andasphalt thickness road width etc Enough
data so the City can make an informed decision4

Per our discussion the City will contribute 5200 000for a 3 lanebridge with P MIPpaying the difference
up to 100 000Depending on the cost of a 4 lanebridge the City will pay all additional costs
5

We agreed that the City would transfer the 200 000in 2011 and the remainder could transfer in fiscal
year 2012 assuming that the City can not find the additional dollars this year We would put language
in the IGA to this effect 6

The City agreed that in exchange for this P MIPcontribution Signal Peak could be closed during constructionHowever we cannot close Signal Peak and Skousen concurrently This means Signal

Peak would likely not be constructed until the fall of 20127
The City also agreed that P MIPwould not be responsible for any work on Macrae Roadiepaving

or dust control watering8
P MIPand the Communityssole responsibility would be to contributeto the Skousen Road crossing
up to 100 000and oversee construction management9

P MIPhas already paid for the environmental work and all cultural work and will conduct all CM and
will absorb these costs as part of our work on the Pima Canal or Southside Canal project 10We also spoke about the rightsofwayfor the JW laterals The City confirmed that P MIPis free to declare
the 80 ROW on the laterals and that when development occurs in the future the City will require
developersto accommodate such ROW by slightly realigning the Kenworthy Skousen and Macrae
roads to the east P MIPintends to complete the ROW this summer and file them with the County
yet this yearI

believe this cooperationis a win winfor all parties andI trust the City concurs Regards

David

H DeJong Ph DProject

Director6

202011



p
3 b

YJSK4 bC
tiS pn l A Y l a

it
s

i ryy
t E A

t A tl S Z U3I
M svfPyqffSxirt i4FFF f

n

a
i

v

r Y t
r

4
Z Y

Z

a

ii
ti

PJ
s

Ca
a

i

W 3
L z

r u

a 1t
dli

O
e

itW
r 1

N m
1

q

o

E
a8

p ki
1

z
y

g

rissxq L IiF

ia ea 17 j
x L e a s t z

wr c d v x F
f



AGENDA ITEM tt

DATE June 27 201 I

CITY OF COOLIDGE

CITY COUNCIL ACTION FORM

SUBJECT Resolution in support of restoring STAFF PRESENTER Lisa Pannella Finance
HURF funding DirectodCFO

COMPANY

CONTACT

RECOMMENDATION

Resolution No I I29 A Resolution of the Mayor and City Council of the City of Coolidge Pinal County
Arizona through the Leaue of Arizona Cities and Towns and its Municipal members call upon the
Arizona State Legislature not to further reduce the Highway User Revenue fund allocations to Arizona
Cities and Towns Coolidge further advocates that the Arizona Legislature develop a plan to at a minimum
restore HURF funding to Arizona Cities and Towns to the Fiscal Year 2008 levels over the next 30 5 year
period

DISCUSSION

During the Sates budget process they decided o reduce the share ofHihway User Funds o the Cities
and Towns by 25 Arizona Revised Stamtes mandate that HURF funds be used solely for construction
maintenance repair and reconstruction of local streets and roads It specifically prohibits the use of

Highway User revenues for the enforcement of Iraffic laws or the administration of traffic safery programs
Yet they plan to use the funds for operations of the Arizona Department of Public Safety DPS The City
of Douglas has requested that the Cities suppon them and the League of AZ Cities and Towns in an effort
to get the State of Arizona no o further reduce the Highway User Revenue Fund allocations to AZ Cities
and Towns and funher advocate that the AZ Legislawre develop a plan to restore HURF funding to AZ
Ciies and Towns to the Fiscal Year 2008 levels over the nex 3 to 5 year period

FISCAL IMPACT

The City of Coolidge lost 93620 in the allocation for Fiscal Year 1112

Attachments

Resolution 1129

HURF Reduclion Snreadsheet

REVIEWED BY PREPA D B

r1i
Robert ECaey City nager Lisa ella Finance DirectorCFO

CLpPxaaed aiaenuuC

LisaP nella Finance Director Denis Fitzgibbons City Attorney

SFinanceUisaCouncilCouncil Action FormsUlURF Rcsoluiondoc Paee I of I
621201 I

V



RESOLUTION NO ll29

A RESOLUTION OF THE MAYOR AND COUNCIL OF
THE CITY OF COOLIDGE PINAL COUNTY ARIZONA
THROUGH THE LEAGUE OF ARIZONA CITIES AND

TOWNS AND ITS MUNICIPAL MEMBERS TO CALL
UPON THE ARIZONA STATE LEGISLATURE NOT TO
FURTHER REDUCE THE HIGHWAY USER REVENUE
FUND ALLOCATIONS TO ARIZONA CITIES AND

TOWNS COOLIDGE FURTHER ADVOCATES THAT
THE ARIZONA LEGI5LATURE DEVELOP A PLAN TO
AT A MINIMUM RESTORE HURF FUNDING TO
ARIZONA CITIES AND TOWNS TO THE FISCAL YEAR
2008 LEVELS OVER THE NEXT 3 TO 5 YEAR PERIOD

WHEREAS the State of Arizona is mandated under ARS 286540 to distribute
revenues collected on sales of motor vehicle fuel to Arizona Cities and Counties based upon
a distribution formula and

WHEREAS Artide IX Section 14 of the State Constitution mandates all Highway User
Revenues be used solely for construction maintenance repair and reconstruction of local
streets and roads and

WHEREAS the Arizona Highway User Fund was set up as a method of sharing State

gas tax revenues with Arizona municipalities and

WHEREAS the State of Arizona has swept 25 of these revenues from Arizona

Municipalities to fund the operations of the Arizona Department of Public Safety DPS
and

WHEREAS additional losses of State Shared Revenue have made General Fund
revenues insufficient to subsidize road repair and

WHEREAS the City of Coolidge will no fonger be able to do either minor or major
future local road construction reconstruction or maintenance and

WHEREAS as local streets decline public and private sector construction jobs aze lost
and economic growth suffers and

WHEREAS the City will be forced to seek higher local taxation to replace swept and
lost State revenues for street repair or allow its transpoRation infrastructure to fall into
further disrepair and

WHEREAS local residents have endured increases in local tases and user fees to cover I

losses of State Shared revenue to pay for the operation of State departments and balance the
State budget



NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and Council of the City of

Coolidge supports the submission of a resolution to the Arizona Leaue of Cities and Towns
that would require he State of Arizona Executive and Legislative Branch to 1 freeze or

discontinue future sweeps of municipal HURF and 2 restore HURF sweeps to 2008 levels
over a three to five yeaz period beginning with the State FY 20122013

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Mayor and Council of the City of Coolidge Arizona this
27 day of June 201 1

Thomas R Shope Mayor

Attest Approved as to Form

Norma Ortiz City Clerk Denis Fitzgibbons City Attomey



FY 20112012 HURF Reductions and DViIR Fee

Final State Budget
2010

CENSUS HURF HURF State Budget
CITYITOWN POP PreBudget State Budget Difference DWR Fee

APACHE JUNCTION 35840 2350222 2066472 283751 49949
AVONDALE 76238 4365715 3838627 527088 106251
BENSON 5105 369485 324876 44609 7115
BISBEE 5575 403502 354786 48716 7770
BUCKEYE 50876 2913378 2561636 351742 70904
BULLHEAD CITY 39540 3247511 2855428 392083 55106
CAMP VERDE 10873 771387 678254 93132 15153
CAREFREE 3363 192580 169329 23251 4687
CASAGRANDE 48571 3185063 2800519 384544 67692
CAVE CREEK 5015 287180 252508 34672 6989
CHANDLER 236123 13521418 11888930 1632488 329078
CHINO VALLEY 10817 767414 674761 92653 15075
CLARKDALE 4097 290662 255570 35093 5710
CLIFTON 3311 255165 5224358 30807 4614
COLORADO CITY 4821 395960 348154 47 8 6 6719

COOLIDGE 11825 775429 681809 93620 16480
COTTONWOOD 11265 799197 702707 9b90 15700
DEWEYHUMBOLDT 3894 276260 242907 33354 5427
DOUGLAS 17378 1257769 1105914 151855 24219
DUNCAN 696 53638 47162 6476 970
EAGAR 4885 886860 779787 107074 6808
EL MIRAGE 31797 1820833 1600997 219835 44315
ELOY 16631 1090584 958914 131670 23178
FLAGSTAFF 65870 6781840 5963045 818795 91801
FLORENCE 25536 1674533 1472361 202172 35589
FOUNTAIN HILLS 22489 1287817 1132334 155483 31342
FREDONIA 1314 135287 118953 16334 1831
GILA BEND 1922 110062 96774 13288 2679
GILBERT 208453 11936914 10495729 1441185 290515
GLENDALE 226721 12983019 11415534 1567485 315974
GLOBE 7532 706524 621223 85301 10497
GOODYEAR 65275 3737927 3286634 451293 90972
GUADALUPE 5523 316271 278086 38184 7697
HAYDEN 662 62098 54600 7497 923
HOLBROOK 5053 605421 532326 73095 7042
HUACHUCACITY 1853 134115 117923 16192 2582
JEROME 444 31500 27697 3803 619
KEARNY 1950 127872 12434 15438 2718
KINGMAN 28068 2305289 2026964 278326 39118
LAKE HAVASU CITY 52527 4314163 3793299 520864 73205
LITCHFIELD PARK 5476 313579 275720 37860 7632
MAMMOTH 1426 93511 82221 11290 1987
MARANA 34961 2304063 2025885 278177 48724
MARICOPA 43482 2851349 2507096 344253 60600
MESA 439041 25141374 22105969 3035406 611878
MIAMI 1837 172316 151512 20804 2560



FY 20112012 HURF Reductions and DWG Fee

Final State Budget
2010

CENSUS HURF HURF SWte Budget

CITYTOWN POP PreBudget State Budget Difference DWR Fee

NOGALES 20837 1977051 1738355 238696 29040
ORO VALLEY 41011 2702781 2376464 326316 57156
PAGE 7247 746136 656053 90084 10100
PARADISE VALLEY 12820 734128 645494 88634 17867
PARKER 3083 969481 852433 117D49 4297
PATAGONIA 913 86627 76168 10459 1272
PAYSON 15301 1435278 1261992 173286 21325
PEORIA 154065 8822424 7757262 1065162 214716
PHOENIX 1445632 82783100 72788408 9994692 2014735
PIMA 2387 173027 152137 20890 3327
PINETOPLAKESIDE 4282 513044 451102 61942 5968
PRESCOTT 39843 2826667 2485394 341273 55528
PRESCOTT VALLEY 38822 2754232 2421704 332528 54105
QUARTZSITE 3677 1156271 1016670 139601 5125
QUEEN CREEK 26361 1509544 1327292 182253 36739
SAFFORD 9566 693414 609695 83718 13332
SAHUARITA 25259 1664664 1463683 200981 35203
ST JOHNS 3480 631786 555508 76278 4850
SAN LUIS 2555 1827446 1606813 220634 35546
SCOTTSDALE 217385 12448399 10945461 1502939 302963
SEDONA 10031 711651 625731 85920 13980
SHOW LOW 10660 1277218 1123015 154203 14857
SIERRAVISTA 43888 3176485 2792977 383508 61165
SNOWFLAKE 5590 669761 588898 80863 7791
SOMERTON 14287 1023671 900080 123591 19911
SOUTH TUCSON 5652 372488 327516 44972 7877
SPRINGERVILLE 1961 356015 313032 42983 2733
STAR VALLEY 2310 216685 190524 26161 3219
SUPERIOR 2837 186037 163576 22461 3954
SURPRISE 117517 6729528 5917049 812479 163780
TAYLOR 4112 492676 433193 59482 5731
TEMPE 161719 9260725 8142645 1118080 225383
THATCHER 4865 352651 310074 42577 6780
TOLLESON 6545 374795 329545 45250 9122
TOMBSTONE 1380 99880 87821 12059 1923
TUCSON 520116 34277618 30139162 4138456 724870
TUSAYAN 558 57451 50514 6936 778
WEILTON 2882 206497 181566 24931 4017
WICKENBURG 6363 364373 320381 43992 8868
WILLCOX 3757 271921 239091 32830 5236
WILLIAMS 3023 311242 273665 37577 4213
WINKELMAN 353 33112 29115 3998 492
WINSLOW 9655 1156805 1017140 139665 13456
YOUNGTOWN 6156 352519 309958 42561 8579
YUMA 93064 6668084 5863023 805061 129701

TOTALS 5022708 313859443 275966100 37893343 7000000



AGENDA ITEM I
DATE June 27 2011

CITY OF COOLIDCE

CITY COUNCIL ACTION FORM

SUBJECT Selection of FY 0i l Auditor STAFF PRESENTER Lisa Pannella Finance

DirectodCFO

COMPANY

CONTACT

RECOMMENDATION

I am requesing hat Council approve the letter ofengaement with Colby Powell for performing he FY
10I1 Audit

DISCUSSION

In June of 2009 bids were sought for preparation of the financial statements and audit services for the City
of Coolidge Colby Powell were awarded the bid Per the Request for Proposals the City has the

opportuniry to extend the award in one year intervals This will be the third year that Colby Powell

perform the Citys audit They have agreed not ro increase the fee for FY 101 l It will remain atI5500

FISCAL IMPACT

The amoun of I500 is budeed under the Finance Department Bude

Attachments

FY 10I1Enement Leter Addendum

REVIEWED BY PREPARE B
Cl U

Ro tley ity nager Lisa P ella Finance DirectorCFO

Clppnaned aiaemaiE

Li annella Finance Director Denis Fitzgibbons City Attomey

SFinanceUisaCouncillCouncil Action Porms4uditeneaement lenerdoc Pae 1 of I
615201 I



COLBYPOWELL PLC
C R T 1 D P U H I 1 C A C C O U N T d S T S

1535 W Harvard Avenue Suite 101 Gilbert Arizona 85233

Tel 480 6353200 Fax 4Rf1 6353201

May 27 2011

City of Coolidge Arizona

130 West Central Avenue

Coolidge AZ 85228

We are pleased to confirm our understanding of the services we are to provide the City of

Coolidge Arizona for lhe year ended June 30 201 l We will audit the financial statements of the

governmental activities the businesstype activities the aggregate discretely presented
component units each major fund and the aggregate remaining fund information which

collectively comprise the basic financial statements of the City of Coolidge Arizona as of and
for the year ended Junc 30 2011 Accounting standards generally accepted in the United States

provide for certain required supplementary inforniation RSI such as managemenYs discussion
and analysis MDA to accompany the City of Coolidge Arizonas basic financial statements

As part of our engagement we wil apply certain limited procedures to the City of Coolidge
Arizonas RSI These limited procedures will consist principally of inquiries of management
regarding the methods of ineasurement and presentation which management is responsible for

affirming to us in its representation lettec Unless we encounter problems with the presentation of
the RSI or with procedures relating to it we will disclaim an opinion on it The following RSI is

required by generally accepted accounting principles and will be subjected to certain limited

procedures but will not be audited

1 Managements Discussion and Analysis

Supplementary infornation other diaii RSI also accompanies the City of Coolidge Arizonas
basic financial statemcnts We will subject the Collowing supplementary information to the

auditing procedures applied in our audit of the basic financial statements and will provide an

opinion on it in relation to the basic financial statements

1 Schedulc of Expenditures of Federal Awards if required

Audit Objectives

The objective of our audit is the expression of opinions as to whether your basic financial
statements are fairly presented in all material respects in conformity with US generally
accepted accounting principles and to report on the fairness of the additional information referred
to in the first paragraph when considcred in relation to the basic financial statements

taken as a whole The objective also includes reporting on



Internal control related to the financial statements and compliance with laws regulations
and the provisions of contracts or grant agreements noncompliance with which could

have a material effect on thc financial statements in accordance with Covernment

Auditing Standnrds

Internal control related to major programs and an opinion or disclaimer of opinion on

compliance with laws regulations and Uic provisions of contracts or grant agreements
that could have a direct and material effect on each major program in accordance with the

Single Audit Act Amendments of 1996 and OMB CircularA133 Aurlits ofStntes Local

Governments andNonProfrt Organrzations

The reports on intemal control and compliance will each include a statement that the report is
intended solely for the information and use of management the body or individuals charged with

govemance others within the entity specific legislative or regulatory bodies federal awarding
agencies and iP applicable passthrough entities and is not intended to be and should not be used

by anyone other than these specified parties

Our audit will be conducted in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the

United States of America the standards for financial audits contained in Covernment Auditing
Stunrlcu issued by the Comptroller General of the United States the Single Audit Act

Amendments of 1996 and the provisions of OMB Circular A133 and will include tests of

accounting records a determination of major programs in accordance with OMB Circular A

133 and other procedures we consider necessary to enable us to express such opinions and to

render the required reports If our opinions on the financial statements or the Single Audit

compliance opinions are other than unqualified we will fully discuss the reasons with you in

advance If for any reason we are unable to complete the audit or are unable to form or have not

formed opinions we may decline to express opinions or to issue a report as a result of this

engagement

A7anagement Responsibilities

Management is responsible for the basic financial statements and all accompanying information
as well as all representations contained therein Management is also responsible for preparation
of the schedule of expenditures of federal awards in accordance with the requirements of OMB

CircularA133 As paR of the audit we will assist with preparation of your financial statements
schedule of expenditures of federa awards and related notes You are responsible for making all

management decisions and perforniing all management functions relating to the financial

statements schedule of expenditures of federal awards and related notes and for accepting full

responsibility for such decisions You will be required to acknowledge in the management
representation letter our assistance with preparation of the financial statements and the schedule

of expenditures of federal awards and that you have reviewed and approved the financial

statements schedule of expenditures of federal awards and related notes prior to their issuance
and have accepted responsibility for them Further you are required to designate an individual

with suitable skill knowledge or experience to oversee any nonaudit services we provide and for

evaluating the adequacy and results of those services and accepting responsibility for them

I

I



Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal controls including
internal controls over compliance and for monitoring ongoing activiries to help ensure that

appropriate goals and objectives are met You are also responsible for the selection and

application of accounting principles for the fair presentation in the financial statements of the

respective financial position of the governmental activities the businesstype activities the

aggregate discretely presented component units each major fund and the aggregate remaining
fund inforniation of the City of Coolidge Arizona and the respective changes in financial

position and where applicable cash flows in conformity with US generally accepted accounting
principles and for compliance with applicable laws and regulations and the provisions of

contracts and grant agreements

Management is also responsible for making all financial records and related information

available to us and for ensuring that management and financial information is reliable and

properly recorded Your responsibilities also indude including identifying significant vendor

relationships in which the vendor has responsibility for program compliance and for the accuracy
and completeness of that information Your responsibilities include adjusting the financial

statements to conectnaterial misstatements and confirniing to us in the representatiou letter that
the effects of any uncorrected misstatements aggregated by us during the current engagement and

pertaining to the latest period presented are immaterial both individually and in the aggregate to

the financial statements taken as a whole

You are responsible for the design and implementation oPprograms and controls to prevent and
detect fraud and for informing us about all known or suspected fraud or illegal acts affecting the

government involving 1 management 2 employees who have significant roles in internal

control and 3 others where the fraud or illegal acts could have a material effect on the financial
statements Your responsibilities include infoming us of your knowledge of any allegations of

fraud or suspected fraud affecting the government received in communications Crom employees
former employees grantors regulators or others In addition you are responsible for identifying
and ensuring that the entity complies with applicable laws regulations contracts agreements
and grants Additionally as required by OMB Circular A133 it is managementsresponsibility
ro follow up and take corrective action on reported audit findings and to prepare a summary
schedule of prior audit findings and a corrective aclion plan

Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining a process for tracking ihe status of

audit findings and recommendations Management is also responsible for identifying for us

previous financial audits attestation engagements performance audits or other studies related to

the objectives discusscd in the Audil Objectives section of this letter This responsibility includes

relaying to us corrective actions taken to address significant findings and recommendations

resulting from those audits attestation engagements performance audits or studies You are also

responsible for providing managemenYs views on our current findings conclusions and

recommendations as well as your planned conective actions for the report and for the timing
and format for providing that information



Audit ProceduresGeneral

An audit includes examining on a test basis evidence supporling the amounts and disclosures in

the financial statements therefore our audit will involve judgment about the number of

transactions to be examined and the areas to be tested We will plan and perforni the audit to

obtain reasonable rather than absolute assurance about whether the financial statements are free

of material misstatement whether from 1 errors 2 fraudulent financial reporting 3
misappropriation of assets or 4 violations of laws or governmental regulations that are

attributable to tbe entity or to acts by management or employees acting on behalf of the entity
Because the determination of abuse is subjective Covernment Auditirzg Stm7dards do not expect
auditors to provide reasonable assurance of detecting abuse

Because an audit is designed to provide reasonable but not absolute assurance and because we

will not perform a detailed examination of all transactions there is a risk that malerial

misstatements or noncompliance may exist and not be detected by us In addition an audit is not

designed to detect immatcria misstatements or violations o laws or govemmental regulations
that do not have a direct and material effect on the financial statements or major programs

However we will infom you of any material errors and any fraudulent financial reporting or

misappropriation of assets that come to our attention We will also inform you of any violations
of laws or govemmental regulations that come to our attention unless clearly inconsequential
We will include such matters in lhe reports required for a Single Audit Our responsibility as

auditors is limited to the period covered by our audit and does no extend to any later periods for

which we are not engaged as auditors

Our procedures will include tests of documentary evidence supporting the transactions recorded
i the accounts and may include tests of the physical existence of inventories and direct

confirmation of receivables and certain other assets and liabilities by correspondence with

selected individuals funding sources creditors and financial institutions We will request
written representations from your attorneys as part of the engagement and Ihey may bill you for

responding to this inquiry At the conclusion of our audit we will require certain written

representations from you about the financial statements and related matters

Audit ProceduresInternal Controls

Our audit will include obtaining an understanding of the entity and its environment including
intemal control sufficient to assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements

and to design the nature timing and extent of furthcr audit procedures Tests of controls may be

performed to test the effectiveness of ceriain controls that we consider relevant to preventing and

detecting errors and aud that are material to the financial statements and to preventing and

detecting misstatements resulting from illegal acts and other noncompliance matters that have a

direct and material effect on the financial statements Our tests if performed will be less in

scope than would be necessary to render an opinion on internal control and accordingly no

opinion will be expressed in our report on internal control issued pursuant to Goverronent

Aurliting Startdards



As required by OMB Circular A133 we will perform tests of controls over compliance to

evaluate the effectiveness of the design and operation of controls that we consider relevant to

preventing or detecting material noncompliance with compliance requirements applicable to each

major federal award program However our tests will be less in scope than would be necessary to

render an opinion on those controls and accordingly no opinion will be expressed in our report
on internal control issued pursuant to OMB CircularA133

An audit is not designed to provide assurance on inlernal control or to identify signiftcant
deficiencies However during the audit we will communicate to management and those charged
witb governance internal control related matters that are required to be communicated under

AICPA professional standards Governmeit Auditing Standurds and OMB CircularA133

Audit ProceduresCompliance

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of

material misstatement we will perform tests of the City of Coolidge Arizonas compliance with

applicable laws and regulations and the provisions of contracts and agreements including grant

agreements However the objective of those procedures will not be to provide an opinion on

ovcrall compliance and we will not express such an opinion in our report on compliance issued

pursuant to Government AuditingStadards

OMB CircularA133 requires that we also plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable

assurance about whether the auditee has complied with applicable laws and regulations and the

provisions of contracts and grant agreements applicable to major programs Our procedures will

consist of tests of transactions and otler applicable procedures described in the OMB Circular A

133 Compliance Supplemett for the types of compliance requirements that could have a direct

and material effect on each of the City of Coolidge Arizonas major programs The purpose of

these procedures will be to express an opinion on the City of Coolidge Arizonas compliance
with requirements applicable to each of its major programs in our report on compliance issued

pursuantto OMB CircularA133

Audit Administration Fees and Other

We may from time to time and depending on the circumstances use thirdparty service providers
in serving your account We may share confidential information about you with these service

providers but remain committed to maintaining the confidentiality and security of your
information Accordingly we maintain internal policies procedures and safeguards to protect
the confidentiality of your personal information In addition we will secure confdentiality
agreements with all service providers to maintain the confidentiality of your information and we

will take reasonable precautions to deYermine thatthey have appropriate procedures in place to

prevent the unauthorized release of your confidential information to others ln the event that we

are unable to secure an appropriate confidentiality agreement you will be asked to provide your
consent prior to the sharing of your confidential information with the thirdparty service provider
Furthermore we will remain responsible for the work provided by any such thirdparty service

providers



We understand that your employees will prepare all cash accounts receivable or other

confirmations we request and will locate any documents selected by us for testing

At the conclusion of the engagement we will complete the appropriate scctions of the Data

Collection Form that summarizes our audit findings It is managementsresponsibility to submit

the reporting package including financial statements schedule of expenditures of federal

awards summary schedule of prior audit findings auditors reporis and corrective action plan
along with the Data Collection Forni to the federal audit clearinghouse We will coordinate with

you the electronic submission and certification If applicable we will provide copies of our report
for you to include with ihe reporting package you will submit to passthrough entities The Data

Collection Forni and the reporting package must be submitted within the earlier of 30 days after

receipt of the auditors reports or nine months afrcr the end of the audit period unless a longer
period is agreed to in advance by the cognizant or oversight agency Por audits

The audit documentation for this engagement is the property of Colby Powell PLC and

constitutes confidential information Howevcr pursuant to authority given by law or regulation
we may be requested to make certain audit documentation available to cognizant or oversight
agencies or their designees a federal agency providing direct or indirect funding or the US

Government Accountability Office for purposes of a quality review of the audit ro resolve audit

findings or to carry out oversight responsibilities We will notify you of any such request If

requested access ro such audit documentation will be provided under the supervision of Colby
Powell PLC personnel Furlhernore upon request we may provide copies of selected audit

documentation to the aforementioned parties These parties may intend or decide to disfibute

the copies or information contained therein to others including other governmenal agencies

The audit documentation for this engagement will be retained for a minimum of five years after

the report release or for any additional period requcsted by the cognizant or oversight agency for

the audit or passthrough entity If we are aware that a federal awarding agency passthrough
entity or auditee is contesting an audit finding we will contacl the parties contesting the audit

finding for guidance prior to destroying the audit documentation

We expect to begin our audit on approximately October 14 2011 and to issue a draft of our

reports for your review no later than November 11 2011 Our fee for these services will be

15000 for the Audit Report and 500 for the Expenditure Limitation Report Our invoices for

these fees will be rendered each month as work progresses and are payable on presentation The
above fee is based on anticipated cooperation from your personnel and the assumption that

unexpected circumstanees will not be encountered during the audit Csignificant additional time
is necessary we will discuss it with you and arrive at a new fee estimate before we incur the

additional costs

Government Auditing Staidards require that we provide you with a copy of our most recent

external peer review repoR and any letter of comment and any subsequent peer review reports
and letters of comment received during the period of the contract Our 2006 peer review repoR
accompanies this letter



We appreciate the opportunity to be of service to the Ciry of Coolidge Arizona and believe this

letter accurately summarizes the significant terms of our engagement If you have any questions
please let us know If you agree with the terms of our engagement as described in this letter

please sign the enclosed copy and retum it to us

Very truly yours

Pp

Colby Powell PLC

RESPONSE

This letter correctly sets forth the understanding of the City of Coolidge Arizona

By

Title

Date



Addendum to Colby Powell PLC

Engagement Letter

The following provisions are added to and made a part of the Engagement Letter

AgreemenY between the City of Coolidge Arizona and Colby Powell PLC dated May
27 2011

Federal Reaulation NonFederal entities are prohibited from contracting with or making
subawards under covered transactions to parties that are suspended or debarred or

whose principals are suspended or debarred Colby Powell PLC acknowledges by

signature to this Agreement that Colby Powell PLC is not currently suspended or

debarred from contracting with the federal government or any of its agencies or the State

of Arizona or any of its political subdivisions Colby Powell PLCs principals are not

currently suspended or debarred from contracting with the federal government or any of its

agencies or the State of Arizona or any of its political subdivisions

Undocumented Workers Coiby Powell PLC understands and acknowledges the

applicability to it of the Immigration Reform and Control Act of 1986 Under the provisions

of ARS414401 Colby Powell PLC hereby warrants to the City that Colby Poweli

PLC and each of its subcontractors if any will compfy with and are contractually

obligated to comply with all Federal Immigration laws and regulations that relate to their

employees and ARS23214A

Conflict of Interest This Agreement is subject to the conflict of interest provisions set

forth inARS Section 38511

Scrutinized Business Operations In signing this Agreement Colby Powell PLC certifies

pursuant to ARS 35391 that it does not have scrutinized business operations in the

Sudan and pursuant to ARS 35393 that it does not have scrutinized business operations

in Iran

City of Coolidge Colby Powell PLC

By BY

Mayor Its

Date Date



AGENDAITEM

DATE June272011

CTY OF COOLIDGE

CITY COUNCIL ACTION FORM

SUBJECT FY 1011 Financial Statemen STAFF PRESENTER Lisa Pannella Finance

preparation for FY 1011 Comprehensive DirectorCFO

Annual Financial Repor Audit COMPANY

CONTACT

RECOMMENDATION

1 am requesting that Council approve the letter ofenaement with Henry and Home for preparation of the

financial statements for the FY 10ll Comprehensive Annual Financial Report Audit

DISCUSSION

In June of 2009 bids were sought for preparation of the financia statements and audit services for the City
of Coolidge Henry Home were awarded the bid Per the Request for Proposals the City has the

opportunity to extend the award in one year inervals This will be the third year that Henry Horne will

be preparing the financial statements 7hey have agreed not to increase the fee for FY 101 L It will

remain at9500 Henry Home have a Iocal office in the City of Coolidge

FISCAL IMPACT

The amowt of9500 is budgeted under the Finance Deparnnent Budet

Attachments

FY 10I1EisaQement Letter Addendum

REVIEWED BY PREPARE B
y

G

Robert Fj ity M ge Lisa Pannella Finance DirectorCFO

itC CLpPKaved uiaentaiC

Lisa ella Finance Director Denis Fitzgibbons City Attomey

SFinanceLisaCouncilCouncil Acfion FormsPuditfin smu enoaeemen letterdoc Page I Of I
6li2011



ta

HFIVRYIXHORNE LLP

Certifled PubLic Accounnnts

June 8 2011

City of Coolidge
Lisa Pannella Director of Finance

130 W Central Avenue

Coolidge AZ 85228

Dear Lisa

This letter is to confirm our understanding of the terms and objectives of ouregagement and

the nature and limitaticns of the services we wil provide

We will compile from information you provide the governmental activities the businesskype
activities each rnajor fund and the aggregate remaining funds information of the City of

Coolidge for the year encied June 30 2011 and issue an accountanYs report thereon in

accordance with Statements on Standards for Accourting and Review Services issued by the

American Institute of Certified Public Accountants

The objective of a compilation is to assist you in presenting financial information in the form of

financial statements We will utilize information that is your representation without undertaking to

obtain or provide any assurance that there are no materiaf modifications that should be made to

the financial statements in order for the statements to be in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America

You are responsible for

a the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with

accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America

b1 designing implementing and maintaining internal ontrol relevant to the preparation and

fair presentation of the financial statements

c preventing and detecting fraud

d identifying and ensuring that the company complies with the laws and regulations
applicable to its activities

ej the selection and application of accounting principles

fl making all financial records and related information available to us and for the accuracy

and compieteness of that information

We will conduct our compilatioh in accordance with Statements on Siandards for Accounting
and Review Services issued by the American Institute of Gertified Public Accountants

Tempe Scottsdvle Casa Grande

2055 L Ramer Road 7098 Cochise Foad 1115 E Counmvood lane

Suiie Ol Suiie 100 Suiie 700

Tempe AZ 852H434S7 Scotadale AZ82534517 Casa Grande AZ 851222950

480 fl394900 480 4831170 520 8368201

Pae 480 8391749 Fax 480 4837126 Fas 520 4269432



Ciy of Coolidge
Page 2

A compilation differs significantly from a review or an audit of financial statements A compilation
does not contemplate performing inquiry analytical procedures or other procedures performed
in a review Additionally a compilation does not contemplate obtaining an understanding of the

entitys internal control assessing fraud risk testing accounting records by obtaining sufficient

appropriate audit evidence through inspection observation confirmation or the examination of

source documents for example cancelled checks or bank images or other procedures
ordinarily performed in an audit Accordingly we will not express an opinion or provide any
assurance regarding the financial statements being compiled

Our engagement cannot be relied upon to disclose errors fraud or illegal acts However we will

inform the appropriate level of management of any material errors and any evidence or

information that comes to our attention during the performance of our compilation procedures
that fraud may have occurred In addition we will inform you of any evidence or information that

comes to our attention during the performance of our compilation procedures regaring illegal
acts thai may have occurred unless they are clearly inconsequential Ne have no responsiblity
to identify and communicate deficiencies or material weaknesses in yeur irternal control as paR
of this engagement

If for any reason we are unable to complete the compilations of your financial statemenYs we

will not issue a report on such statements as a result of this engagement

You are responsible for making all management decisions and perForming all management
functions and for designating an individual who possesses suitable skill knowledge or

experience to oversee any bookkeeping services tax services or other services we provide In

addition you are responsible for evaluating the adequacy and results of the services performed
and accepting responsibility for such services

Marilyn Mays is the engagement partner and is responsible for supervising the engagement and

signing the repert or authorizing another individual to sign it

Our fees will be based on the actual time spent at our stardard hourly rates plus travel and

other outofpocket costs such as report production typing postage etc Our siandard hourly
rates vary according to the degree of responsibility involved and the experience level of the

personnel assigned to your engagement We estimate that our fees will be 9500 for the

compilation of the financial statements for the year ended June 30 2011

The fee estimate is based on anticipated cooperation from your personnel and the assumption
that unexpected circumstances will not be encountered during the work performed ir certain

circumstances involving the identification of high risk factors such as questions about the

Companys ability to continue as a goingconcern or the existence of unusual transactiens
additional fees may be warranted In such circumstances we will discuss these matters with

you We reserve the right to increase or decrease our fees based on the value of the services

rendered If for any reason we are unable to complete our engagement of these financial

statements we will nct issue a report on them but the City of Coolidge will still be responsible
for the time spent and expenses incurred by our firm in perForming the engagement

Billings become delinquent if not paid within thirty days of the invoice date If billings are past
due we will stop all work until your account is brought current or withdraw from this engagement
The City of Coolidge acknowledges and agrees that we are not required to continue work in the
event of the City of Coolidges failure to pay on a timely basis for services rendered as required
by this engagement letter The City of Coolidge further acknowledges and agrees that in the

even4 we stop work or withdraw from this engagement as a result of the City of Cooiidges
failure to pay on a timely basis for services rendered as required by this engagement letter we



City of Coolidge
Fage 3

will not be liable to the City of Coolidge for any damages that occur as a result of our ceasing to

render services

it is our policy to keep records related to this engagement for seven years However Henry
Horne LLP does not keep any original client records so we will return those to you at the

completion of the services rendered under this engagement When records are returned to you
it is your responsibility to retain and protect your records for possible future use including
potential examination by any government or regulatory agencies

By your signature below you acknowledge and agree that upon the expiration of the sevenyear

period Henry Horne LLP shall be free to destroy our records related to this engagement

If any dispute arises among the parties hereto the parties agree first to try in good faith to settle

the dispute by mediation administered by the American Arbitration Association nder its Rules

for Professional Accounting and Related Services Disputes before resorting to litigation The

costs of any mediation proceeding shall be shared equally by all parties

Client and accountant both agree that any dispute over fees charged by the accountant to the

client will be submitted for resolution by arbitration in accordance with the Rules for Professional

Accounting and Related Services Disputes of the American Arbitration Association Such
arbitration shall be binding and final In agreeing to arbitration we both acknowledge that in the

event of a dispute over fees charged by the accountant each of us is giving up the right to have

the dispute decided in a court of law before a judge or jury and instead we are accepting the use

of arbitration for resolutior

It is not the policy of this firm to voluntarily disclose to third parties any nonpublic information

obtained from or about your Company during or as a result of this engagement absent your

express consent to do so Indeed as professionals we are obligated to preserve the

confidential nature of such information in our possession However such information may not

be protected from disclosure by an absolute privilege and therefore we may be compelled by
law or legal process with or without your consent to produce documents or testify about facts

and circumstances that have come into our possession or become known to us during or as a

result of this engagement You should consult with legal counsel to obtain a thorough
understanding of the extent and limitations of the confidentiality of information in our possession

You agree that you will not use our firms name or the name of an employee of the firm in a

communication containing a financial presentation without the written permission of our firm If

you do use our firm name or the name of an employee of the firm in a communication containing
a financial presentation you agree to include our report or a disclaimer on the financial

presentations that we so specify Further you agree to provide us with a printers proof or

master of any document that contains our firm name or the name of an employee of the firm and

a financial presentation for our review and approval before printing of the document You also

agree to provide us with a copy of the final reproduced material that contains either our firms

name or the name of an employee of the firm and a financial presentations for our approval
before it is distributed

During our engagement certain members of our staff will be assisting you If you offer one of

our staff working on your engagement employment and they choose to accept we would incur a

significant fee to find replacement personnel and therefore we would expect reimburserrent for

such costs Customarily the fee approximates 25 35 of the first years salary In the event

that you do hire one of our staff you agree to reimburse 25 of the first years salary for the

placement service



City of Coolidge
Page 4

We appreciate the opportunity to be of service to you and believe this letter accurately
summarizes the significant terms of our engagement We will be pleased to discuss this letter

with you at any time

If the foregoing is in accordance with your understanding please sign the copy of this letter in

the space provided and return it to us

Sincerely

f
LLP

Henry Horne LLP

RESPONSE

I am currently the for the City of Coolidge and I have authority to

execute this agreement on behalf of the City f agree that this letter correctly describes the

terms and conditions under which your firm agrees to perform services for the City of Coolidge
and the objectives as well as limitations of the services requested by the City of Coolidge that

your firm has agreed to perform

Signature

Title

Date



Addendum to Henry 8 Horne LLP

Engagement Letter

The following provisions are added to and made a part of the Engagement Letter

Agreement between the City of Coolidge Arizona and Henry Horne LLP dated June

8 2011

Federal Requlation NonFederal entities are prohibited from contracting with or making
subawards under covered transactions to parties that are suspended or debarred or

whose principais are suspended or debarred Henry Horne LLP acknowledges by

signature to this Agreement that Henry Horne LLP is not currently suspended or

debarred from contracting with the federal government or any of its agencies or the State

of Arizona or any of its political subdivisions Henry 8 Horne LLPs principals are not

currently suspended or debarred from contracting with the federal government or any of its

agencies or the State of Arizona or any of its political subdivisions

Undocumented Workers Henry Horne LLP understands and acknowledges the

applicability to it of the Immigration Reform and Control Act of 1986 Under the provisions

of ARS414401 Henry Horne LLP hereby warrants to the City that Henry Horne

LLP and each of its subcontractors if any will comply with and are contractually obligated

to comply with all Federal Immigration laws and regulations that relate to their employees

andARS23214A

Conflict of Interest This Agreement is subject to the conflict of interest provisions set

forth in ARS Section 38511

Scrutinized Business Operations In signing this Agreement Henry Horne LLP certifies

pursuant to ARS 35391 that it does not have scrutinized business operations in the

Sudan and pursuant to ARS 35393 that it does not have scrutinized business operations
in Iran

City of Coolidge Henry Horne LLP

By BY

Mayor Its

Date Date



AGENDAITEMl
DATE June 27 2011

CITY OF COOLIDGE

CITY COUNCIL ACTION FORM

SUBJECT Fund Balance Policy STAFF PRESENTER Lisa Pannella Finance

DirecodCFO

COM PANY

CONTACT

RECOMMENDATION

1 am requesting that Council approve the Fund Balance Policy

DISCUSSION

The Fund Balance policy is necessary to comply with the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board pronouncement referred to as GASB 54 which requires Citys to

identify the fund type for fund balances

Fund Balances identified as Unassigned are set forth in this policy Example 500000
retained as reserve for emergencies in the General Fund

Fund Balances identified as Assigned are set forth during the budget process and

approved by Council Example In fiscal year 11l12 we plan to use some of the General
Fund fund balance for transfers to the Airport and Transit

Fund Balances identified as Restricted are restricted by an outside source Example
Highway Users HURF is directed by the Arizona State Revised Statutes

FISCAL IMPACT

None

Attachments

Fund Balance Policv

REVIEWED BY PREPARE

Robert latley City Manager Lisa Pa ella Finance DirectorCFO

UiaenaiC

Marilyn Mays Henry Home LLP

SFinanceUisalCouncilCouncilAcion FormsFund Balance Policydoc Page 1 Of 1
615201 I



CITY OF COOLIDGE

POLICY TITLE EFFECTIVE DATE
FUND BALANCE POLICY

RESPONSIBLE DEPARTMENT AP RESOLUTION NO
FINANCE

APPROVAL REFERENCES
CITY MANAGER SIGNATURE

CITY COUNCIL DATE APPROVED

10 Purpose
This Policy identifies the fund type for fund balances and sets levels of fund balance
reserves for emergencies debt service capital reserves and unencumbered funds
provides a minimum level of fund balance necessary to maintain the Citys credit
worthiness and for economic uncertainties local disasters and other financial

hardships or downturns in the local or national economy provides cash flow

requirements and eliminates inconsistencies in standards for fund balance reporting
and use of governmental fund types

20Scope
This Policy applies to all financial reporting for the City of Coolidge The City of

Coolidge follows GASB 54 for establishment and implementation of Governmental
Fund Balance Types and Fund Balance Reporting

30Responsibilities
The Finance Department is responsible for the development coordination
enforcement and documentation of this Policy The Finance Department is

responsible for establishing funds and for Fund Balance Reporting

The City Manager and Finance Director are responsible for Assigned fund balance

4OPolicy

41 Fund Balance

The Fund Balance is reported in classifications that comprise a hierarchy
based primarily on the extent to which the government is bound to honor
constraints on the specific purposes for which amounts in those funds can

be spent

411 General Fund

4111 The General Fund must retain an emergency fund balance
of 500000

FUND BALANCE POLICY PAGE 1 OF 4



4112 10 of operating revenues are reserved for operational
reseroe

Exclusions from operating revenues

Operating Transfers In

Interest Income from Investments

One Time Revenues

Carry Over

4113 Emergency Fund balance and 10 reserve are designated
as Unassigned Fund Balance Use of Unassigned fund

balance shall be of an emergency nature as approved by the

City Council

4114 Fund Balance that is budgeted in the following fiscal year will

be designated as Assigned Fund Balance

412 Capital Sales Tax Fund

4121 Fund Balance in the Capital Sales Tax Fund is designated
as Committed Fund Balance to be used solely for

expenditures for capital equipment and improvements per

City Council Ordinances 8515 and 8604 that remain in

effect unless specified othervvise by Council action

413 Highway User Fund

4131 Fund balance is designated as Restricted Fund Balance

and may only be used as directed by the Arizona State

Revised Statutes Use of fund balance shall be approved by
the City Council for HURF related expenditures

414 Pinal County Road Tax Fund

4141 Fund balance is designated as Restricted Fund Balance

and may only be used as directed by the Arizona State

Revised Statutes Use of fund balance shall be approved by
the City Council for transportation related expenditures

415 Enterprise Fund Balance

4151 Enterprise Funds are Restricted as indicated in debt service

covenants

50Procedures

No procedures are contained in this Policy

FUND BALANCE POLICY PAGE 2 OF 4



60 Definitions

Assigned Fund Balance intended for purposes set by governing body or by person or

body delegated to exercise such authority All remaining balances in funds other than

general fund except negative balances do not require formal action to Unassign

Unassigned Fund Balance A residual balance Positive balance in general fund only
Deficits in other funds

Capital Projects Funds used to account for and report financial resources that are

restricted committed or assigned to expenditure for capital outlays including acquisition
or construction of capital facilities and other capital assets Capital Projects Funds

exclude those types of capital related outflows financed by proprietary funds or for

assets that will be held in trust for individuals private organizations or other

governments

Committed Fund Balance Constraints on spending that government imposes on itself

by highlevel formal action prior to the close of the period Council action by ordinance
resolution or policy must commit program revenues to a specific project Committed

Fund Balance requires same formal action to uncommit

GASB General Accounting Standards Board

General Fund Fund used to account for all financial resources not accounted for in

anotherfund

Special Revenue Fund Special Revenue Funds are used to account for and report the

proceeds of specific revenue sources that are restricted or committed to expenditure for

specified purposes other than debt service or capital projects One or more specific
restricted or committed revenues shall be the foundation for a special revenue fund

The proceeds from these special revenue sources shall be expected to continue to

comprise a substantial portion of inflows revenues that are recorded into the fund
Special revenue funds should discontinue reporting if a substantial portion of revenues

derived from restricted revenue sources will no longer be expected

Stabilization Fund a reserve of surplus revenues to be used for the purposes of

covering revenue shortfalls covering state or local losses of federal funds or for any
event that threatens the health safety or welfare of the people or the fiscal stability of

the City or any of its political subdivisions The fund is sometimes referred to asarainy
day fund serving as a source of financial support for the budget in times of slow or

declining revenue growth and as the primary source of protection against having to

make drastic cuts in City services in periods of economic downturns

Has a restricted or committed fund balance Cannot use Special Revenue Fund unless

derived from specific restricted committed revenue source These funds are restricted

by the City Council or committed by the covenants of the revenue source May be

spent only when specific circumstances exist Specific circumstances are determined

by the City Council or by the City Manager in cases of emergencies

FUND BALANCE POLICY PAGE S OF 4



Debt Service Fund used to account for and report financial resources that are

restricted committed or assigned to expenditure for principal and interest

Permanent Fund used to account for and report resources legally restricted to the

extent that only earnings and not principal may be used for purposes that support the

Citys programsthat is for the benefit of the City or its citizenry Permanent Funds do

not include privatepurpose trust funds that should be used to report situations in which

the City is required to use the principal or earnings for the benefit of individuals private
organizations or other governments

Nonspendable Fund Balance not available for spending because of the form of asset

or permanent legal restrictions Examples of nonspendable fund balance include

inventories longterm portion of loans and notes receivable if proceeds are not

restricted committed or assigned property acquired for resale if not nearterm sale

and if proceeds are not restricted committed or assigned and amounts retained in

perpetuity

Restricted fund balance has constraints on spending legally enforceable by outside

parties Examples of restricted fund batance include externally imposed by creditors

grantors contributors or laws or regulations of other governments such as bond

covenants and grant agreements and imposed by law through constitutional provisions
or enabling legislations such as the Highway User Fund May only be unassigned when

the debt is paid in full grant is released from obligation Law is rescinded or as

indicated in other documents

70 Supplements

No Supplements are contained in this Policy

FUND BALANCE POLICY PAGE 4 OF 4



AGENDA ITEM

DATE June 27 2011

CITY OF COOLIDGE

CTY COUNCIL ACTION FORM

SUBJECT Approve updates to the Capital STAFF PRESENTER Lisa Pannella Finance

Improvemen Plan DirectodCFO

COMPANY

CONTACT

RECOMMENDATION

Approve updates to the Capital Improvement Plan adopted on July 31 2006

DISCUSSION

This is the annual update to the Capital Improvement Plan for FY 1112 discussed during
the budget sessions in April I have included a copy of the summary pages Iemailed

the updated CIP in its entirety to you in April

FISCAL IMPACT

Items listed under FY 1112 are included in the budget Any project budgeted under the

Capital Sales Tax fund is frozen unless brought to the Council for approval at a Council

meeting

Attachments

All Department Section Summaries

REVIEWED BY PREPAR B

Robert Flatley ty Mana r Lisa Pa nella Finance DirectorCFO

Lisa Pa lla Finance DirectorCFO

SFinanccLisaCounciHCouncil Action FormsCIP 10IIdocPage I of I

6IS201 I



g o o a
o 0 0

0 o 0 0 o o o n

o N 9
o

m

O

e

m

0

o

o

Y

o

o m
m

LL

p
O O

p O
a o O

O

O O
o

ON

F
U LL

Fw
WWp 4 g m
pi o 2i

w w o
m

OwO

u0
OQa

wf
U W
UF Z

a O

u c c c c
U

O E u o E E E E E E

J u m Z N 0 m
O N A A v n A T n

f j
Z y U U Y C C C C Y C C

w 3 E f E 3 n f 3
m m m

rc x x E o o m o
d o

s n a m o n D m m m

o c n d a ii C t C c5 t a d u C c C t C i

a

W x m m
w 3 E N E y U e

C O y 0

F N
m E W m u C O L C

W U S U NU d
O W LL o n C a L V

p U R E 0 U
Y 6

E
W

6 m V p W

u a w E c

F F
o o m v

m w m m E c
m

o m t n q E a m

q G m
U U 7 K 7 U O N Z U d 1 Z Z U m K F O U 7 m W

m O
0 N O N

N

Z C
O

K K K K K K K K Q K K K
U V
w n a a d a n a d d d w

p u
u

c n o cn u c o o u ci o

a 8 25 8 0 0 8
o o o i

R R m o n m m n Q n m m o n m o a
qo 0 0 0 0 0
t c ci ci c c c ti t c c c c c ti ti c c 5 c ci c i i i o

cv c cv c c c c c u c c u c c c c c u c t c c c c u c r



0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 o 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

w n o 0 n w w w w o
w w n w w w w w r

J o o a

Fw P
vr m n

O w w
H

0 0 o0
0

tD o
0 0

n

Y
w n w

LL

o

N

O

LL

o w w
w

O

M

LL

y o o o a
0 0

N n vi n
p w

w w
Y
LL

r

W o o a o
NQ p o

O

a C W N

Z LL
O

W

O W Z
U K O

m
F

O J Q
a

O
U J

J

Q
H U

a z 2 z Z
p m m m m

v a a a a
0 J J J J

U
N

J m O
a

F m

F
c

W n
m 3 Z

C o Z c m

a
m

J

o 3 3
o d d

m O Z Z

m v
C7 o Z

o m Z
c

LL

p s s a o c 2 m

F K K O 7 L D N C lL E LL C
U d d H

LL
K LL LL C O y C E N N V C

c U W o F c c mi
U m

U o E d o w

O co o W v o o d c m U o r m m

o O 3
LL ii o u E d a w mOp m

a

a
d LL

N Q 3 O fn U O LL v 6
p

O t N
J

d N O W y
d m Ul C c V 7 C x J

N

d 2 d R f CdJn
a m a E o Q li J N F d H n

D Q Ql Q1 Q N N
R

t O On

J J J J H U U H W U d m



0

o m
o

g
o Q o

o o o g om o00000000000000000000no
w o o wrywwwwwowhwwwwHwwwwwNn

O m N O p O O O 8 O N N O

Q O 1D
w

N Yl w d O O N A N
N

n m
e v vi m mO

y yp

o n o 0 o w o o n no m o o m o o
m O N

N

O O

p

q Nb

N
OI

7 N

LL

n 8 N O

O O 10 O N

rv
O 0 b

a N N N
K

LL

N O S N O N

10 O 0 O ep f0

N
O 0 O

NN N K

T
LL

O O O O S O 8 O r

10 O O O

pO
O O N N p jp

F
A N N O O N p A

W a M N N
w N N p

l

p O u
uFn
owz
OV W b o O o

p epW O O 10 O O t0O dr W N O N O

LL O 0 N N 10 11 M ry
O
Fy u

UQQ
n

a z
a o
V

Q o o o o o o o 0 0 0 o o o o 0 0 o
U io m m n m m m io m m m m m
p d w v v rv w m v a d v d m m w v a

v m ai d ai v v m ai ai v u v u v m v
V K rc tt K rc tt rc K K tt rc K tt rc

w ro m m m w m w b m m m m w m a m m

m w m m m m m m m m m A m m m m m
a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a

w u

g m y
o o E u o u a U a

a

x
o

t
9

N

iUo W
y

o m a

O
p

m

o a E a a p 2 o
d z ai o O

d
W

m G N N W c U O

3
d

U
O

o
E

3 q mq E m o
c

i o o d

zA z w afaaa 3 a m o a rn a

n n m io m m m
o i c

c
m m m w m m m a o

K rc K K rc rc O a

c D
g ai n 5 d o j@

6 R 2 d 4 a d d R R V
O c C LLC E y LL

U U U U U U U U U U V K

LL LL O U y C E E C
d U

g 8 o g o 0 o w c d m
u m

U U m E v m h yVj U

0 o r o 0 0 ciin C7 ymlV lV N N N N
R IL ZOdOLL mR ODNN6NO O N N 1 0 01 O J 4

y O
L 9

O
p d q C

LL
C U

O 7 9 Y
J V

R K K R K K R R R K ll LL K K R K R C W J N m 2 E p C U J d LL J 41 F G H a

m m m as m w m ro a 6 m m m m ro ro m O 7 i w f a m E



o o 0 0 o n o 0 0 0 0 o 0 0 o a o 0 0 0 0 0 o m o 0 0 o p m
w o o w m o o

o a o n w m w w w o w w o w w w v o w w w
Q

0 0 0 0 0 0 o a M o 0 0 0

J t O N
O O

N N
N O Yl V

Q M W M N N V tli

f

F

M o m
n e

m

1O m w m
w

LL

fp N
O O O O P O

O O P
T

N
N h

QN
1
LL

O O 0 m
0 o m

m o o

o a o m o 0 0

o m o vi w rn
n w w w w

LL

O N O O O N N

N
N

r o 0 0 o m m a
V

n n m
w

w w w w o w 1O

O
w a
QF

LL

J
Z
W

Q U o o
U o m o m m

u0
ry o

m vi
o q
r

V
Q u

a
a
U 0

F

U
O

w
U V U U V V m U U U

V U

a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a

o
E E o c c q o E a

J d J U y m
F

O Q N
C m 9 O q m N J

F p K n p O d m R
e N K

f N H U L F
d N A

y
m L N

z q E E d E c

ww w ao u m E
u w

Z U n c u c
o

u u N o

K V E
N

m O

D

NI
N O C

U
C

Il 9 VJ Ip J
d a y u v E a mammov Wo a ueo o n u

a w d jm r 3 a o o a a ti a a

e m v v m a
m n i 9

C C C C C C LLc

Y
c

e
c

f 2 0 0 0
m m m m m m m m W m N

d v J
K K a K 2 d K K K R K

C N LL L c m LL C

d d d 2 R d d d R 2 6
F LL X

LL
W

LL O
O U d y E d C U V CJ

W
U U U U U U U U U U U r

o o a a o o m W U a om
U

U U o c m m w n

o
0 0 0

0 0 0 0 o O c u m c E y C v m A C K O a

1 N N N N V V C OLLAYTLLdVy mN Lry N N N

n R H
O a fq O LL C m U a m N RQ

V m
1 q N C p Y J

O O O O O O O O Q
d

d
T p N NO V N O O m N Q d

J J

f

J J J F q C J N a N d E O C J d LL J N F d

F lA

a a a a a a a a a a d a a a a t7 o r w c9 a m E



0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 o w o m o w w m o o w w wo

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 o e o v o v o 0 o v
o 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 o o N r n o o r

Q nom m rv w rn m o o rn

rHNwww w
p

0 0 0 0 0 0 o
0 0 0 0 0

o
0 0 0 0 0 0 0

o 0 0 0 0 0 0 o
0 0 0 0 o

p o

f9 f9 W
p N t0

LL

p O O O O

p p
O O O

O O O O O

Q p
O O O

N

O

N E9

LL

O O O O O O

O O

O O O

O O O O O O O O O

O O O
a vi o n o o m

CI D N
p fA

W f9 fR f9 M

LL

O O O O

U p p o 0 o a

O O O O O
W N wd

y u3

O F
Z LL

J W
O

W
WO

IL tO o
LL O O O O O

O
a N n r

V J

f LL

a
a
U

O
H

U
O

J J J J J J J J J J Q
w O O O O O O O O
O v N m a m m m m m W m v N w v

1 LL LL LL LL LL LL LL LL LL LL LL LL lL lL

W v G N a

00 m

o 0 0 0 a o
r o 0 o O o O p 9
U U C C 0 N N N N N E N q

O O
A o J o 2 o fO V o

p y m m m mm c m

N N tn m m mm m m Qc c
a a m m m

NUINQQQQQQv H

m oc r m n n

Q I 7 N N 1n N

C C C C C C C C C C C p 2

C C C C C C C C C C C f j
O m m m m m m m m n m m N a c Z

K K K O a m w 5 o
aaaaaaaaaaa c c y n E d LL

w UUUUUUU UUUU V i LL o j d o y t d a V
aooocomacmocoo w F c c m U E o w

p o0000000000 a Q
N
yo m U o r m

0000000000o a c c E v yC m m
N N N N N N N N N N N Q C LL f0 h QJ N y m

N
a Z LL Y m3 LL maLL m O 8 K

N m O LL N p o v m a

O O O O O O O O O
N m N Q m ry y a

O O N Q
LL LL LL LL LL LL LL LL LL LL LL LL LL lL LL

F LL CmrJn Q ry d E Q C CJ J d lL Jn F d F

o o m c o E
o

F Ucrw C7a m



O

o
Q q Q m

o o r p o 0 o p o 0 0 0 0 o a o n

E x S

J

F
O

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 o o S o o 0

0 0 oao 00 n o 00 0 000 0

a

g
o 0 0 o o a o 0 0 0 0 0 0

a

S A o 0 o
m g o o 0 0 0 0 0 o

m25

wQ o o o 0 0 0 0 0

0 25

w 6

O W

OOW
Ud

p0

O

F
U V

F j
a
a u
V

O C C L C t L Y L

g
C L C o C

a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a
n

a

w E E rc
c E

m m

y
a

v

W
F N

m X K

F g K

a

n
H r X

rU c
F

W C y
E m E o

4
F Q

K

a o t rE x o a
m

a Z
V

m
n J

X
Q

F N
N

p
lv 2 E K

m
a m fi3 a c c

o a z a E
a

a o o i o

zj
c

i w c c P c m u c x E c
R K K K

6 F H IL
9 O m c E

q

U Uw a n a a n r c i o n E m b w

0 0 0 o c o v e a o E m
i 8 o c3 LLO

c

33 v

a v
a o H LL c o o

a
m

0 0 0 ryf m a rv n N H n
F c JNa i a Ep t am

a rc a rc rc rc rc

a a a a a a a a a a t9 U l9 a m E
O m



r r o 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 ov o0o v00000000 000000000

N n m o o w w o w w oo ww nwo wwwwa
m

N O O O O O

O N m O O O N m O O N
J

1 N W V1 CJ 7 N N O l7

Q
Yf M N p 1 N m

f9 N W 19

F

O o O o o QQ N O O O O O

O m O N O O N m
h m
g V1 N N N O N

N YI

Y w
A

LL

1 P O p O I 1 O h

O N N O O O O O O

O N l O m

N v N m

Q
19 W M W N

O y

T
LL

n N Q O m
O

N N Q

v
m m ryO y ry

M

Y
LL

1 N O
O V 0

F m 0 N N f1 0 0
CI

V w w m
w

W N p
O y

W
K LL
a

o
J N W N vi

OQf m N o r r

O0 J N t0 N m O O

LL O y w N n
yi

oa
H J Y

LL
U J

Q
F

a
z

3 z 3 3U

a 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3
U y y N

Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y s Y

O O O O O O O O O O O

u 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3
W V U U V V

H
V

N
U V N

U U
y V N

Q C C C C C C p C p C C y C 1 C

a aO aOaOa0a0aOa
c

F w2 w
m m H m m r u u 3 m

V d o a c a c u a a m y c

w d w v m m m E
v u

v m m

m c E mc E mc E m v v v v

3vw vv 3m woo Nu in v0
a E o m E o a E o c y N N

o

d m w m v m v o m o j u u m m a
3 F E F E 3 F E LL m N LL N N K W cC Q

v o m m

h V b h O S 0 O

C C C C C C C C Ur
N pY Y Y L UrC C C C C C

N N N N N N N N

Z K K K K K K F Z C O
LL

F
a a a a a a a a y LL a c

Z a

U U U V U U V U U O a m m o v

o o m o o m o o U c c a m c LL c LL v
O O O O O O O O F

U KJ C CO C q

O O O O O N O O ry U A LL
D LLY V A O d t N

U
N N N N N N

W O
H C C N

O q U
U O t N v N

W

a K cm2 cQE iriC7 wrvmqcttOa
o aLLACmN4QdOLL m v33omN

r m m o m y m7jC ypUO LL CIO9 4

O O O O O O O
J

O p
V

O N 0 2 q N C r c p N a C y
J

O

3 3 3 3 3 3F nv wvmvgooma
qpq E c c7 aumraro

vmcm 3ao Om
UUrw ta 0

I



0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

0 0 0 0 o w o w o o w w w w o w w o

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

J o O tO m m O
O O

Q

m
m m

F M w 9 w w Vi fA

f

p O O

O O
O O O

p O O

NFq iq Ui W 19

LL

p O O

O O O O O O

O O O O O O

p O O

O N Y

a N fA f9 W
i

Y
LL

O O

O O O O

O O O

y o 0 0 0 m o
w e3 w v

Y
LL

O O O O O

O O O O O O O
O

r
O

V o vi m Q Q o v
W

N 9 f9 O

O
q f9 iA Vi fA

W a LL

pW
J tp W

a o 0 0 0 0

3 W
o

o

p o

O p N o 0
0 0 0

Oa y in
F

N

U J LL
Q
F

a
a

ZU
p
F v o o a a v

a
O o O o O o

O fn fn N n VJ fn

J
N N N N fi N

Y Y Y Y Y Y

H

W
U d U d U d U d U U d

O N N N N U1 N

aa3aaaa a
w
J v

r N
C N

y ry O N

F c U A
r

y

c m 2 aF U a
W o m H 0
0 N N

H J

K n
J

c
a m o

U U U K vl N ll

N N N
C C C
O O O

O C 10 Z Z Z

OI O C a

C C C C C C U 0 Z G

iC Y C Y Y YA Z

Q N N N N N N O
LL

Z
N Z

a
v

c Z m
K K K K

a
o

m J
y

a a a a a d U LL C c N C LL
N

LL
C

W U U U V U U 1 F iy N l j C O U y E v y F

t0 t0 tD O tD t0 U V
D LL V q O N O

V
U C7

O O O O O O W W
C C y a U A E y W

T

O O O O O O C N LL w C O E N
U

N C N N m in 1

d
N N N N N O O N N IL O U LL W UI O 0 aa Q

9

R LL Y
N 3 N a 0 N N U1

N M O N t0 a a N N t0 V O LL
y

W p O n
a N

O O O O O O
q p

y
a N N C C U

d
7 J

J
H

7 U N O O N Q N

fn fn N fn N n Q N N CJNQ 19 Ep p ECavifa ov
r c7cw c9a m



o o o w o o S o o 0
0 0 0 o g o o S o 0 0

o N g N
d

ry n o
o

m o

F
w

w w w w
O
r

g o

g

Y

O O O O

O O O O
O 0 pb O

Q O O

O O O O

N
O O

O N
O

T
LL

S o0
00 0

o o

rv

r

U
W

O
0 0

a0 o

OWf
f

UO
LLdO

a
f
U J 2 H N

a a E d d v v d E E E E m E d
G U N N N fn N

d

U O A i

u 3 3 3 3 3
O a a

u

o 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
d c a a a a a c c c c c c c c

q E

a o G e r

in 0 2 c a 3 E

a N am
F

K ln Y O g
f ll A Q

o
0

o a y E U U W u U i
1 c L

Y

K v 2 t Y cp U cm

W N y q O q
a a

a Q N a c d V d p NO C rv m

E a v Y p o U

C o u p L c cy n L h oaaa
vwtt u K c E E E Em E Ed

p zO Y mE r a q v qt v aE A t 1 d m m o e m N o v o 0 0 o E v o
w r v Ev e m tt w tti a a aa

0
z

U
w

rc o o
w o e

a o o o 0 0 0
V N N N N N fA N n n N N

Z Z 2 2 Z Z Z Z Z Z 2 Z Z Z Z

a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a

a a a rc a z a s

r r r r r r r r r r r



O O

o
O Q 8 O O 8 w O O OS O O O O O O O

OO O g N O N O b O

J
N O O O O N 0 P O h

a H M

F

O
O O

O
g

O

Y
LL

S O

O

O

f

vS o
a vi

w

LL

8
O

0 0
a

w
w

o

g g
o 0

0 0
0 s

Y

0
0 0

0 0

o o
0

o
v
E E E E E E a m E m v d v

U d v v N N n N N N lA N

q F

u 3 3 3 3 3 3 3
w

o s o o a
V

o n n v c

a c9 V c c9 c9 t C a a a a c9 0 a a a

oi 2 d 2 N
9

m
oU o B o o m d p m a

W q 30 3 rv Zq NY Y ll O N
2

O

Q c c cU c N 2 n 2 L
N U

a E n uu ma E o
m c m o

m

U io a a o awa ir m m c
w m

s

w E o W o W o o o u o v d

O i 9 s n c
m

n n m c U K c
m v o

o E
y a

E y E
N
5 E

i
m y

y 0 2 m a d i
m E

E ci o 3 o N a o d E m o

d w o y w

a t v m o
Y a N

g c c Y No E a m
0 9 o

a
w o v u

c
K RKll 44m KK QS lld U N K m 0 F R U U W NR

0
2

U
W

N i0 b F
a

m w N m m m m e m
N VI y N fn N N N y n N tn N N N

Z Z 2 Z Z Z 2 Z Z Z Z Z Z Z Z Z

a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a
K fC R C C K K K K K K K K K K

H F H F F F F F F H H 1 F 1 I



o o o o
0 0

0
m n

h o
r o
O
r

o
n

g
0

r

w w oo 0

0
PN

O
N

y
M

LL

H OO O

N O
O

0

T
LL

O O O O
O O

O

t w
LL

O O O
O O

p YI

O 0
N N

1
LL

Q N d N
O UI N ln

O O O

w 3 3 3

p a
d r a a a

o

2 a

E
J

N C

F E o

i d
rn

F
o m a

w E
0 D i

s 5
O e b

G mV p
y E

J N A C 4

OC
d 2 4 N Q N

O
Z

f
U

yW

N 0
n r Ua

n N N N F

a a a w
r

a

J
Q
ti

ti


